
  

 

 Joanne Roney OBE 

Chief Executive 
Telephone: 0161 234 3006 
j.roney@manchester.gov.uk 
PO Box 532, Town Hall 
Extension, Manchester 
M60 2LA 

 
Tuesday, 26 January 2021 

 
Dear Councillor / Honorary Alderman, 

 
Meeting of the Council – Wednesday, 3rd February, 2021 
 
You are summoned to attend a meeting of the Council which will be held at 10.00 am on 
Wednesday, 3rd February, 2021, in Virtual meeting - https://vimeo.com/event/608899. 
 

The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of 
Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) 
Regulations 2020 
 
Under the provisions of these regulations the location where a meeting is held can include 
reference to more than one place including electronic, digital or virtual locations such as 
internet locations, web addresses or conference call telephone numbers. To attend this 
meeting it can be watched live as a webcast. The recording of the webcast will also be 
available for viewing after the meeting has ended. 

 
1.   The Lord Mayor's Announcements and Special Business 

Including a presentation on Discretionary Support Grants to 
Businesses by Julie Price (Director of Customer Services & 
Transaction). 
 

 

2.   Interests 
To allow members an opportunity to declare any personal, 
prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interest they might have in 
any items which appear on this agenda; and record any items 
from which they are precluded from voting as a result of Council 
Tax or Council rent arrears. Members with a personal interest 
should declare that at the start of the item under consideration. If 
members also have a prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interest 
they must withdraw from the meeting during the consideration of 
the item 
 

 

3.   Minutes 
To submit for approval the minutes of the special and ordinary 
meetings held on 25 November 2020 
 

7 - 16 

4.   Notice of Motion - End Our Cladding Scandal 
This Council notes: 
 
• the tragic fire in Grenfell Tower in 2017 led to a series of events 

 

Public Document Pack



Council 

 

 

which uncovered a growing scandal of residential buildings with 
flammable materials, missing fire breaks, and other fire safety 
defects; 
• that thousands of Manchester people live in such buildings, and 
that number continues to rise, including disabled people who face 
compounding difficulties including lack of specific support for their 
needs, additional financial pressures, and the potential 
exacerbation of health conditions; 
• the outstanding support that the Manchester Cladiators and 
CLADDAG campaigns have been providing to many residents; 
• that many are unable to sell or re-mortgage their homes due to 
this situation and a broken ESW1 process; 
• the support of the Executive Member for Housing & 
Regeneration alongside Manchester’s Members of Parliament in 
putting pressure on Government to seek resolution and to protect 
affected Manchester People; 
• that Manchester City Council has been named an early adopter 
of Hackitt’s Grenfell building safety review, within which the 
Council aims to champion building safety, to encourage cultural 
change across the development industry, to ensure building 
safety is considered ‘upfront’ to prioritise safety now, and play an 
active role in developing building safety policy. 
 
This Council believes that: 
 
• the cladding crisis is a scandal that punishes leaseholders and 
Manchester people for systemic problems with building safety 
regulations and methods of development in England; 
• this has a cruel effect on affected Manchester people’s mental 
health, leaving them in unsafe homes and facing lifechanging 
bills; 
• it is grossly unjust that residents who bought homes in good 
faith should face remediation costs; 
• the Government’s Building Safety Fund is inadequate both in 
scope and amount, failing to protect leaseholders from costs and 
to accelerate remediation; 
• the Government must right broken promises, return to the 
original premise that no cost is past to leaseholders, abandon 
‘loan schemes’, and act quickly; 
• a viable route to remediation is for payment nationally to fall on 
the building industry coupled with a ‘pay now, litigate later’ 
approach as recently developed by the Australian Labor Party 
State Government in Victoria. 
 
 
This Council resolves to: 
 
• thank Manchester Cladiators and all campaigners for their 
efforts fighting this injustice, and to continue to support them in 
their campaign; 
• continue supporting the End our Cladding Scandal campaign’s 
10-step plan to tackle this crisis, to which Greater Manchester 



Council 

 

 

Mayor Andy Burnham, the Leader, and Councillors Richards, 
Lyons, Wheeler, Johns, Davies, and Wright are signatories  
• ask the Chief Executive to write to the Minister for Housing 
Communities and Local Government to ask Government to 
accede to those 10 asks  
• continue providing practical support to affected Manchester 
people, including asking the Planning Department to prioritise 
applications for fire-related remediation work, asking the 
Executive Member for Housing & Regeneration to continue to 
work with local groups, and helping affected Manchester people 
to understand their situation; 
• continue acting inclusively on this issue, including actively 
involving affected disabled people, raising awareness of their 
specific issues and campaigning 
• ask the Executive Member to work alongside Manchester’s 
Members of Parliament to develop a ‘Manchester Ask’ outlining 
the funding required remediate affected buildings in our city, 
saving Manchester people from hardship, unfair cost and worse 
consequences. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Johns Seconded by Councillor Jon 
Connor Lyons and also signed (via email) by Councillors 
Jeavons, Wright, Murphy, Igbon, M Dar, Douglas, Wheeler, 
Davies and Richards 
 

5.   Proceedings of the Executive 
To submit the minutes of the Executive on 9 December 2020 and 
20 January 2021 (to follow) and in particular to consider: 
 
Exe/20/134 Revenue Budget Monitoring to the end of 

October 2020  
To recommend to the Council the approval of a proposed budget 
transfer of £1m from Corporate Core directorate to Collection 
Fund to offset council tax discounts (funded through the specific 
Hardship Fund grant); and also approve a £375k transfer within 
Adults Social Care for the Impower savings delivery partnership. 
 
Exe/21/3 Manchester Aquatics Centre Investment 
To recommend that the Council approve an increase the capital 
budget by £0.7m in 2020/21, £8.5m in 2021/22 and £21.2m in 
2022/23, funded by £29.2m borrowing, and a capital budget 
virement of £1.3m funded by capital receipts via the Asset 
Management Programme Budget. 
 
Exe/21/13 Capital Programme Update 
To recommend that the Council approve the following changes to 
Manchester 
City Council’s capital programme: 
(a) ICT – End User Devices. A capital budget virement of 

£3.615m is requested, funded by Unallocated ICT 
Investment Budget. 

(b)  Children’s Services – Our Lady’s RC High School – 

17 - 26 



Council 

 

 

Permanent. A capital budget virement of £2.4m is 
requested, funded by Unallocated Education Basic Needs 
Grant Budget. 

(c)  ICT – Network Refresh Programme. A capital budget 
virement of £3m is requested, funded by Unallocated ICT 
Investment Budget. 

 
 
 

6.   Questions to Executive Members and Others under 
Procedural Rule 23 
To receive answers to any questions that councillors have raised 
in accordance with Procedural Rule 23. 
 

 

7.   Scrutiny Committees 
To note the minutes of the following scrutiny committees: 
 
Resources and Governance  1 December 2020 and 
12 January 2021 (to follow) 
Health      1 December 2020 and 
12 January 2021 
Children and Young People  2 December 2020 and 
13 January 2021 
Neighbourhoods and Environment 2 December 2020 and 
13 January 2021 
Economy     3 December 2020 and 
14 January 2021 (to follow) 
Communities and Equalities  3 December 2020 and 
14 January 2021 (to follow) 
 

27 - 100 

8.   Proceedings of Committees 
To submit for approval the minutes of the following meetings and 
consider recommendations made by the committee: 
 
Audit 19 January 2021 (to follow) 
Health and Wellbeing Board – 9 December 2020 and 27 January 
2021 
Licensing Committee – 30 November 2020 
Licensing and Appeals Committee – 30 November 2020 
Planning and Highways 19 November 2020, 17 December 2020 
and 21 January 2021 (to follow) 
 
Personnel 20 January 2021, and in particular to consider: 
 
PE/21/03 Revised Employee Code of Conduct, Smoking and 
Vaping and Digital Media Policy 
To approve the Digital Media and Smoking and Vaping Policy, 
and to commend the revised Employee Code of Conduct to 
Council at its meeting on 3 February 2021. 
 
Constitutional and Nomination on 2 February 2021 (to follow), 
and in particular to consider: 

101 - 134 



Council 

 

 

 
Item 6 - Constitution of the Council 
To recommend that Council: 

1. Adopts, subject to recommendation 5 below, the attached 
revised Sections of the Constitution of the Council, namely:  

 
Part 2 
Part 3: Sections, C and F 
Part 4: Sections A, B, C and F  
Part 5: Sections C, D and E 
Part 6: Sections B, C and E  
Part 8 

 
2. Makes consequential and ancillary changes to other Parts 

of the Constitution to align with the changes set out in this 
report. 

 
3. Amends Part 4: Section E as detailed at Paragraph 4.5. 

below. 
 

4. Readopts the remainder of the Constitution  
 

5. Notes in relation to Part 3 of the Constitution that 
responsibility for the discharge of executive functions and 
the delegation of such responsibility rests with the Leader 
of the Council and that the recommended delegations of 
executive functions set out in Part 3 (Sections A and F) are 
for the information of the Council only. 

 
9.   The Council Constitution 

A copy of the report to be considered by Council is attached. The 
appendices referred to in the report are available in the 
supplementary document.   
 

135 - 148 

10.   Key Decisions Report 
The report of the City Solicitor is enclosed. 
 

149 - 154 

 

 
Yours faithfully, 

 
Joanne Roney OBE 
Chief Executive 

 
 
 
 



Council 

 

 

Information about the Council  
 
The Council is composed of 96 councillors with one third elected three years in four. 
Councillors are democratically accountable to residents of their ward. Their overriding duty 
is to the whole community, but they have a special duty to their constituents, including 
those who did not vote for them. There are two vacancies on the Council at this time 
 

Six individuals with previous long service as councillors of the city have been appointed 
Honorary Aldermen of the City of Manchester and are entitled to attend every Council 
meeting. They do not however have a vote. 
 

All councillors meet together as the Council under the chairship of the Lord Mayor of 
Manchester. There are seven meetings of the Council in each municipal year and they are 
open to the public. Here councillors decide the Council’s overall strategic policies and set 
the budget each year. 
 

Agenda, reports and minutes of all Council meetings can be found on the Council’s 
website democracy.manchester.gov.uk 
 

Members of the Council 

Councillors:- 
 
Abdullatif, Akbar, Azra Ali, Ahmed Ali, Nasrin Ali, Sameem Ali, Shaukat Ali, Alijah, 
Andrews, Appleby, Battle, Bridges, Butt, Chambers, Chohan, Clay, Collins, Cooley, Craig, 
Curley, M Dar, Y Dar, Davies, Doswell, Douglas, Evans, Farrell, Flanagan, Green, 
Grimshaw, Hacking, Hassan, Hewitson, Hitchen, Holt, Hughes, Igbon, Ilyas, Jeavons, 
Johns, S Judge, T Judge (Chair), Kamal, Karney, Kilpatrick, Kirkpatrick, Lanchbury, Leech, 
Leese, J Lovecy, Ludford, Lynch, Lyons, McHale, Midgley, Madeleine Monaghan, 
Mary Monaghan, Moore, N Murphy, Newman, Noor, O'Neil, Ollerhead, B Priest, H Priest, 
Rahman, Raikes, Rawlins, Rawson, Razaq, Reeves, Reid, Riasat, Richards, Rowles, 
Russell, Sadler, M Sharif Mahamed, Sheikh, Shilton Godwin, A Simcock, K Simcock, 
Stanton, Stogia, Stone, Strong, Taylor, Watson, Wheeler, Whiston, White, Wills, Wilson 
and Wright 
 
Honorary Aldermen of the City of Manchester –  
Hugh Barrett, Andrew Fender, Audrey Jones JP, Paul Murphy OBE, Nilofar Siddiqi and 
Keith Whitmore. 
 
 
 

Further Information 

For help, advice or information about this meeting please contact the meeting Clerk: 
 Andrew Woods 
 Tel: 0161 234 3011 
 Email: andrew.woods@manchester.gov.uk 
 
This agenda was issued on Tuesday, 26 January 2021 by the Governance and Scrutiny 
Support Unit, Manchester City Council, Level 3, Town Hall Extension (Lloyd Street 
Elevation), Manchester M60 2LA

http://www.manchester.gov.uk/


Manchester City Council Minutes 
Council 25 November 2020 

Council 

Minutes of the Special meeting held on Wednesday, 25 November 
2020 

This meeting of Council meeting was via Zoom, in accordance with the 
provisions of the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) 
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England 
and Wales) Regulations 2020.

Present: 

The Right Worshipful, the Lord Mayor Councillor T Judge - in the Chair 

Councillors:  

Abdullatif, Akbar, Azra Ali, Ahmed Ali, Nasrin Ali, Sameem Ali, Shaukat Ali, Alijah, 
Andrews, Appleby, Battle, Bridges, Butt, Chambers, Chohan, Clay, Collins, Cooley, 
Craig, Curley, M Dar, Y Dar, Davies, Doswell, Douglas, Evans, Farrell, Flanagan, 
Green, Grimshaw, Hacking, Hassan, Hewitson, Hitchen, Holt, Hughes, Igbon, Ilyas, 
Jeavons, Johns, S Judge, Kamal, Karney, Kilpatrick, Kirkpatrick, Lanchbury, Leech, 
Leese, J Lovecy, Ludford, Lynch, Lyons, McHale, Midgley, Madeleine Monaghan, 
Mary Monaghan, Moore, N Murphy, Newman, Noor, O'Neil, Ollerhead, B Priest, H 
Priest, Rahman, Raikes, Rawlins, Rawson, Razaq, Reeves, Reid, Riasat, Richards, 
Rowles, Russell, Sadler, M Sharif Mahamed, Sheikh, Shilton Godwin, A Simcock, K 
Simcock, Stanton, Stogia, Stone, Strong, Taylor, Watson, Wheeler, Whiston, White, 
Wills, Wilson and Wright 

CC/20/47 The Lord Mayor's Announcements and Special Business - Death 
of Former Councillor John Clegg 

The Lord Mayor invited those present at the meeting to observe a minute’s silence in 
memory of former Councillor John Clegg. Mr John Clegg had been elected in 1984 to 
represent Burnage ward. 

CC/20/48 Honorary Freedom of the City of Manchester – Honorary Freedom 
of the City of Manchester - Battery 209 - The Manchester Artillery

Motion made and seconded 

That the Council hereby records its view that the powers entrusted to it by law of 
recognising distinctive and eminent service would be properly exercised by conferring 
the Honorary Freedom of the City of Manchester upon Battery 209 (The 
Manchester Artillery). 

209 Battery, together with its predecessors, served at home and abroad as a 
valuable Artillery Corps for some 216 years. 

Page 7

Item 3



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Council 25 November 2020 

It was established in 1804 as a local volunteer militia force raised across the 
Manchester area in response to the Napoleonic threat. It was then re-established in 
1859 as the United Kingdom moved to establish a standing volunteer army. From 
1860 it was garrisoned at Ardwick Green and in 1881 officially awarded the honorary 
title 'The Manchester Artillery'. It has since enjoyed a close and continuing 
association with the city as a regular army unit, a territorial unit and now as part of the 
UK’s expanding, professional military reserve based in Gorton. 

Over the subsequent one hundred and forty years, the Manchester Artillery has seen 
active duty in the Boer War and the First World War served at Gallipoli, Sinai and the 
Western Front. The Unit served extensively overseas during the Second World as 
part of the initial expeditionary force and following extensive fighting in defence of 
France during which five officers were killed was evacuated from the Dunkirk 
beaches. Members of the unit subsequently served in the middle east, in the Italian 
campaign and the subsequent D day landings, moving into Belgium and Holland 
where they took part in Operation Market Garden. 

Following the restoration of peace, the Manchester Artillery returned to its territorial 
and subsequent army reserve role. In 1947 a recruiting campaign was launched, and 
many old Dunkirk veterans filled the ranks. Recruit 'Number One' was ex-Sgt Fred 
Bowker MM, who won his Military Medal at Dunkirk as the 205 Battery Signaller, 
Manchester Artillery. 

The current 209 Battery which now carries the courtesy title has continued to recruit 
and train Manchester citizens in readiness for the defence of this country at home 
and abroad. In 2004 members of the battery were deployed to Iraq on Operation 
TELIC 4 and again in Iraq in 2007 where Sgt Crowley (209 Battery) became the first 
soldier from the Manchester Artillery to command and fire an artillery gun in action 
since 1945. 

Resolution 

The motion, having been put and voted on, the Lord Mayor declared that it was  
CARRIED.

Decision

That the Council hereby records its view that the powers entrusted to it by law of 
recognising distinctive and eminent service would be properly exercised by conferring 
the Honorary Freedom of the City of Manchester upon Battery 209 (The Manchester 
Artillery). 

209 Battery, together with its predecessors, served at home and abroad as a 
valuable Artillery Corps for some 216 years. 

It was established in 1804 as a local volunteer militia force raised across the 
Manchester area in response to the Napoleonic threat. It was then re-established in 
1859 as the United Kingdom moved to establish a standing volunteer army. From 
1860 it was garrisoned at Ardwick Green and in 1881 officially awarded the honorary 
title 'The Manchester Artillery'. It has since enjoyed a close and continuing 

Page 8

Item 3



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Council 25 November 2020 

association with the city as a regular army unit, a territorial unit and now as part of the 
UK’s expanding, professional military reserve based in Gorton. 

Over the subsequent one hundred and forty years, the Manchester Artillery has seen 
active duty in the Boer War and the First World War served at Gallipoli, Sinai and the 
Western Front. The Unit served extensively overseas during the Second World as 
part of the initial expeditionary force and following extensive fighting in defence of 
France during which five officers were killed was evacuated from the Dunkirk 
beaches. Members of the unit subsequently served in the middle east, in the Italian 
campaign and the subsequent D day landings, moving into Belgium and Holland 
where they took part in Operation Market Garden. 

Following the restoration of peace, the Manchester Artillery returned to its territorial 
and subsequent army reserve role. In 1947 a recruiting campaign was launched, and 
many old Dunkirk veterans filled the ranks. Recruit 'Number One' was ex-Sgt Fred 
Bowker MM, who won his Military Medal at Dunkirk as the 205 Battery Signaller, 
Manchester Artillery. 

The current 209 Battery which now carries the courtesy title has continued to recruit 
and train Manchester citizens in readiness for the defence of this country at home 
and abroad. In 2004 members of the battery were deployed to Iraq on Operation 
TELIC 4 and again in Iraq in 2007 where Sgt Crowley (209 Battery) became the first 
soldier from the Manchester Artillery to command and fire an artillery gun in action 
since 1945. 

Page 9

Item 3



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Council 25 November 2020 

Council 

Minutes of the extraordinary meeting held on Wednesday 25 
November 2020

This meeting of Council meeting was a meeting conducted via Zoom, 
in accordance with the provisions of the Local Authorities and Police and 
Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime 
Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020.

Present: 

The Right Worshipful, the Lord Mayor Councillor T Judge - in the Chair 

Councillors:  

Abdullatif, Akbar, Azra Ali, Ahmed Ali, Nasrin Ali, Sameem Ali, Shaukat Ali, Alijah, 
Andrews, Appleby, Battle, Bridges, Butt, Chambers, Chohan, Clay, Collins, Cooley, 
Craig, Curley, M Dar, Y Dar, Davies, Doswell, Douglas, Evans, Farrell, Flanagan, 
Green, Grimshaw, Hacking, Hassan, Hewitson, Hitchen, Holt, Hughes, Igbon, Ilyas, 
Jeavons, Johns, S Judge, Kamal, Karney, Kilpatrick, Kirkpatrick, Lanchbury, Leech, 
Leese, J Lovecy, Ludford, Lynch, Lyons, McHale, Midgley, Madeleine Monaghan, 
Mary Monaghan, Moore, N Murphy, Newman, Noor, O'Neil, Ollerhead, B Priest, H 
Priest, Rahman, Raikes, Rawlins, Rawson, Razaq, Reeves, Reid, Riasat, Richards, 
Rowles, Russell, Sadler, M Sharif Mahamed, Sheikh, Shilton Godwin, A Simcock, K 
Simcock, Stanton, Stogia, Stone, Strong, Taylor, Watson, Wheeler, Whiston, White, 
Wills, Wilson and Wright 

CC/20/49 City of Manchester Award - Marcus Rashford MBE 

Motion proposed and seconded. 

That the Council hereby records its view that the powers entrusted to it by law 
recognising the outstanding and exceptional contribution made by Marcus Rashford 
MBE concerning the work he has done for the benefit of the young people of 
Manchester. Council is asked to agree that the significant and positive contribution 
made by Mr Rashford should be formally recognised and recorded in the city’s history 
and that this would be properly exercised by conferring upon him the City of 
Manchester Award.  

Resolution 

The motion was put to Council and voted on, and the Lord Mayor declared that it was 
unanimously carried. 

Decision 

Page 10

Item 3



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Council 25 November 2020 

That the Council hereby records its view that the powers entrusted to it by law 
recognising the outstanding and exceptional contribution made by Marcus Rashford 
MBE concerning the work he has done for the benefit of the young people of 
Manchester. Council is asked to agree that the significant and positive contribution 
made by Mr Rashford should be formally recognised and recorded in the city’s history 
and that this would be properly exercised by conferring upon him the City of 
Manchester Award. 

Page 11

Item 3



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Council 25 November 2020 

Council 

Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday, 25 November 2020

This meeting of Council meeting was a meeting conducted via Zoom, 
in accordance with the provisions of the Local Authorities and Police and 
Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime 
Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020.

Present: 

The Right Worshipful, the Lord Mayor Councillor T Judge - in the Chair 

Councillors:  

Abdullatif, Akbar, Azra Ali, Ahmed Ali, Nasrin Ali, Sameem Ali, Shaukat Ali, Alijah, 
Andrews, Appleby, Battle, Bridges, Butt, Chambers, Chohan, Clay, Collins, Cooley, 
Craig, Curley, M Dar, Y Dar, Davies, Doswell, Douglas, Evans, Farrell, Flanagan, 
Green, Grimshaw, Hacking, Hassan, Hewitson, Hitchen, Holt, Hughes, Igbon, Ilyas, 
Jeavons, Johns, S Judge, Kamal, Karney, Kilpatrick, Kirkpatrick, Lanchbury, Leech, 
Leese, J Lovecy, Ludford, Lynch, Lyons, McHale, Midgley, Madeleine Monaghan, 
Mary Monaghan, Moore, N Murphy, Newman, Noor, O'Neil, Ollerhead, B Priest, H 
Priest, Rahman, Raikes, Rawlins, Rawson, Razaq, Reeves, Reid, Riasat, Richards, 
Rowles, Russell, Sadler, M Sharif Mahamed, Sheikh, Shilton Godwin, A Simcock, K 
Simcock, Stanton, Stogia, Stone, Strong, Taylor, Watson, Wheeler, Whiston, White, 
Wills, Wilson and Wright 

CC/20/50 The Lord Mayor's Announcements and Special Business 

The Lord Mayor announced that he had agreed to the submission of the minutes of 
the meeting of the Constitutional and Nominations Committee held on 24 November 
2020. The minutes had been circulated in advance of the meeting. 

CC/20/51 Minutes 

The Minutes of the two extraordinary meetings held on 28 October 2020 were 
approved as correct records and signed by the Chair. 

CC/20/52 Proceedings of the Executive  

The proceedings of the Executive on 11 November 2020 were submitted. The 
Council was asked to give particular consideration to the following recommendations: 

Exe/20/116 Greater Manchester Spatial Framework 
To recommend that Council approves the GMSF: 

Page 12

Item 3



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Council 25 November 2020 

To agree that the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework (GMSF): Publication 
Draft 2020 and supporting background documents are submitted to the 
Secretary of State for examination pursuant to Regulation 22 of the Town and 
Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 following the 
period for representations between 1 December 2020 and 26 January 2021.  
(See Minute number CC/20/56). 

Exe/20/124 Capital Programme Update 
To recommend that the Council approve the following 
changes to Manchester City Council’s capital programme: 

a) Children’s Services – Co-op Academy Belle Vue 
Permanent. A capital budget virement of £2.146m is 
requested, funded by Unallocated Education Basic 
Need budget. 

b) Children’s Services – Co-op Academy Belle Vue 
Early Opening. A capital budget virement of 
£2.140m is requested, funded by Unallocated 
Education Basic Need budget 

Decisions 

1. To receive the minutes of the Executive held on 11 November 2020. 

3. To approve the following changes to the Manchester City Council’s Capital 
Programme: 

a) Children’s Services – Co-op Academy Belle Vue Permanent. A 
capital budget virement of £2.146m is requested, funded by 
Unallocated Education Basic Need budget. 

b) Children’s Services – Co-op Academy Belle Vue Early Opening. A 
capital budget virement of £2.140m is requested, funded by 
Unallocated Education Basic Need budget 

CC/20/53 Questions to Executive Members and Others under Procedural 
Rule 23 

Councillor Leese responded to a question from Councillor Hitchen regarding the 
provision of school meals. 

Councillor Leese responded to a question from Councillor Wilson regarding 
representations made to the Government on support for businesses required to close 
during lockdown. 
Councillor Murphy responded to question from Councillor Stanton regarding 
additional powers available to Council for the closure of business not complying with 
the spirit of lockdown. 

Page 13

Item 3



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Council 25 November 2020 

Councillor Craig responded to a question from Councillor Kilpatrick regarding 
Macmillan Solutions. 

Councillor Stogia responded to a question from Councillor Kilpatrick regarding 
temporary cycle lanes on commuter routes into the city to encourage active travel. 

Councillor Stogia responded to a question from Councillor Kilpatrick regarding 
planning applications approved under the emergency power arrangements as a 
result of the COVID-19 lockdown. 

Councillor Bridges responded to a question from Councillor Leech regarding 
childcare places. 

Councillor Akber responded to a question from Councillor Leech seeing the number 
of requests received to empty refuse bins. 

Councillor Stogia responded to a question from Councillor Leech regarding Tree 
Preservation Order requests. 

Councillor Richards responded to a question from Councillor Leech regarding 
assessment of the Law Commission's report on Leasehold Reform Changes to the 
Council's policy on leasehold homes. 

Councillor Leese responded to a question from Councillor Midgley regarding a 
request for the Council to mark and commemorate the deaths of Manchester 
residents from Covid-19 and recognise the work of key workers.  

Councillor Akbar responded to a question from Councillor Wills regarding missed bin 
collections. 

CC/20/54 Scrutiny Committees  

The minutes of the following Scrutiny Committee meetings were submitted: 

Resources and Governance - 3 November 2020  
Health - 3 November 2020 
Children and Young People - 4 November 2020 
Neighbourhoods and Environment - 4 November 2020 
Economy - 5 November 2020 
Communities and Equalities - 5 November 2020 

Decision 

To receive those minutes. 

CC/20/55 Proceedings of Committees  

The minutes of the following meetings had been submitted: 

Licensing Committee 27 October 2020 

Page 14

Item 3



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Council 25 November 2020 

Licensing and Appeals Committee 27 October 2020 
Licensing Policy Committee 16 November 2020, and in particular, to consider: 

LPC/20/02 Licensing Policy Temporary Revision 2021-26 

To agree that the Licensing Policy is submitted to Council on 25 November 
2020 with a recommendation that the Licensing Policy is approved and 
adopted with effect from 4 January 2021, subject to a full review being 
conducted in 2021 when feasible in light of the Coronavirus pandemic.  

Personnel Committee 11 November 2020 and in particular, to consider: 

PE/20/20 Efficiency Early Release Scheme (comprising Efficiency 
Severance and Early Retirement)

To recommend that November 2020 Council formally confirm release of funds 
from reserves where appropriate to fund agreed releases. 

Planning and Highways Committee 22 October 2020 

Constitutional and Nomination Committee 24 November 2020 

The Council was asked to give particular consideration to the following 
recommendations: 

CN/20/08 Membership of Council committees and representation on joint 
boards and joint committees 

To recommend the Council to make the following changes in appointments to 
Committees of the Council. 

COMMITTEE MEMBER APPOINTED MEMBER REMOVED
Licensing Committee Councillor Chohan Councillor T Judge
Licensing and Appeals 
Committee

Councillor Chohan Councillor T Judge 

Audit Committee - Councillor Stanton
Children and Young 
People Scrutiny 
Committee

Councillor Chohan Councillor T Judge 

Decisions 

1. To receive those minutes submitted. 

2. To approve and adopt the Licensing Policy Temporary Revision 2021-26, with 
effect from 4 January 2021, subject to a full review being conducted in 2021, 
when feasible in light of the Coronavirus pandemic. 

3. To approve the changes in appointments to Committees of the Council, as 
detailed above. 

Page 15

Item 3



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Council 25 November 2020 

4. To confirm the release of funds from reserves where appropriate to fund agreed 
releases as detailed in the Efficiency Early Release Scheme (comprising 
Efficiency Severance and Early Retirement). 

CC/20/56 Submission of the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework 
Publication Draft 2020

The Council considered a report of the Strategic Director (Growth and Development) 
which sought approval for the submission of the Greater Manchester Spatial 
Framework (GMSF) pursuant to Regulation 22 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012. Consultation on the plan will 
commence on 1 December 2020 running until 26 January 2021. Once the 
consultation concludes, the next step is to submit the plan for examination. It is 
intended that the submission of the plan will take place in mid-2021. 

Decision 

1. To approve the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework (GMSF): Publication Draft 
2020 and supporting background documents are submitted to the Secretary of 
State for examination pursuant to Regulation 22 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 following the period for 
representations between 1 December 2020 and 26 January 2021. 

2. To delegate authority to the Lead Chief Executive, Housing, Homelessness and 
Infrastructure, in consultation with the Portfolio Leader for Housing, 
Homelessness and Infrastructure to approve any minor or non-material 
changes to the GMSF: Publication Draft 2020 and background documents 
following the period for representations and prior to their submission to the 
Secretary of State for examination. 

CC/20/57 Urgent Key Decisions 

The Council considered the report of the City Solicitor on key decisions that have 
been taken in accordance with the urgency provisions in the Council’s Constitution. 

Decision  

To note the report.

Page 16

Item 3



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  9 December 2020 

Executive 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday, 9 December 2020 
 
Present: Councillor Leese (Chair) 
 
Councillors: Akbar, Bridges, Craig, N Murphy, Rahman, Stogia, and Richards 
 
Also present as Members of the Standing Consultative Panel:  
Councillors: Karney, Leech, M Sharif Mahamed, Sheikh, Midgley, Ilyas, Taylor and 
S Judge 
 
Apologies: Councillor Ollerhead 
 
 
Exe/20/131 Minutes  
 
Decision 
 
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting on 11 November 2020. 
 
 
Exe/20/132 COVID 19 Monthly Update Report  
 
The written report from the Chief Executive took the form of three “situation reports”, 
one each for the work on the city’s economic recovery, work with residents and 
communities, and work on the future of the Council itself. The written report was 
noted. The report also included an updated version of Manchester’s 12 Point COVID-
19 Action Plan which had been brought up to date to include references to mass-
testing and to the vaccination roll-out arrangements.  
 
At the meeting the Executive Member, Councillor Craig, gave a brief update on 
significant and changing developments in recent weeks. The number of cases in 
Manchester was currently down to 164 cases per 100,000. The rate in the over 60’s 
was 189 per 100,000 and was likewise decreasing. Admissions to hospitals in the city 
were also declining and although the average length of a stay in hospital was 
increasing that was a result of more patients surviving their infection, so was a 
positive sign. However, the overall pressures on the hospitals remained very high. 
 
The Executive Member also advised residents of Manchester to continue to be 
cautious over the Christmas period. The government’s restrictions on social mixing 
were being relaxed and eased to allow more families to mix and spend time together 
indoors over the Christmas period, in larger groups and from multiple households. 
However, the way everyone behaved in the five days when the restrictions were 
relaxed could prove to be crucial to preventing a further a rise in infections and 
hospital admissions in early January. 
 
She also described the arrangement that were being put in place to allow family 
members to resume visiting the residents of care homes. That would be allowed 
where people have received a negative result from both a PCR Test up to three days 

Page 17

Item 5



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  9 December 2020 

before a visit, and a Lateral Flow Test on the day of the visit. It was felt that those 
arrangements would allow visits to resume safely. Lastly, she said that vaccinations 
were to begin within days at Manchester hospitals, with community vaccination 
starting the following week.  
 
The Director of Public Health then reported on the planning that was underway for 
the city’s programme for targeted testing at scale, and the help of the military with the 
logistics of the programme. Early in 2021 there would be the start of community 
testing to detect asymptomatic case in those parts of the city where infections rates 
were the highest, learning from the pilot testing in Liverpool and the experiences of 
the universities and the mass testing of students to allow them to return home at 
Christmas. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
 
Exe/20/133 Spending Review Announcement  
 
Following the Chancellor’s statement to the House of Commons on 25 November, 
the report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer set out the 
announcements in the Government’s Spending Review that related to local 
government funding, and the potential impact of those overall announcements on the 
council’s finances in the next year. The actual levels of funding for the council in 
2021/22 were not yet known and were expected to be announced mid to late 
December. The announcements made by the Chancellor were anticipated to provide 
an extra £8m to £9m support for adult social care and £40m to £50m in other 
measures. If confirmed in December, those would be sufficient to remove the need to 
identify further cuts for 2021/2 beyond the approximately £50m of cuts and savings 
identified in the reports considered in November (Minutes Exe/20/117 to Exe/20/123). 
 
The report set out the details of each elements of funding that the Chancellor had 
announced, as well as the implications of the partial public-sector pay freeze that had 
also been announced.  
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
 
Exe/20/134 Revenue Budget Monitoring to the end of October 2020  
 
The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer presented a review of the 2020/21 
revenue budgets. The report provided an overview of the Council’s financial position 
as at the end of October 2020 and the work to develop a balanced budget for 
2020/21. The report projected a balanced budget outturn for 2020/21, a further 
improvement on the forecast deficit that had been reported in October (Minute 
Exe/20/104). That new forecast was based on the financial implications of COVID-19, 

Page 18

Item 5



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  9 December 2020 

budget revisions through the year and additional government funding confirmed to 
date. The overall revenue forecast for 2020/21 was now: 
 

Forecast as at 31 
October 2020 

Original 
Approved 
Budget 
£000 

Revised 
Budget 
£000 

Forecast 
Outturn 
£000 

Total 
Forecast 
Variance 
£000 

Total Available 
Resources 

(666,125) (846,898) (832,997) 13,901 

Total Corporate Budgets 126,761 258,851 257,019 (1,832) 

Children's Services 130,320 134,728 132,811 (1,917) 

Adult Social Care 221,253 232,247 238,968 6,721 

Homelessness 15,285 17,604 22,771 5,167 

Corporate Core 69,958 91,354 93,178 1,824 

Neighbourhoods 93,802 100,842 109,517 8,675 

Growth and Development 8,746 11,272 15,079 3,807 

Total Directorate 
Budgets 

539,364 588,047 612,324 24,277 

Total Use of Resources 666,125 846,898 869,343 22,445 

Total forecast over / 
(under) spend 

0 0 36,346 36,346 

COVID 19 Government 
grant income (tranche 1 to 
4) - Confirmed 

   (64,782) 

COVID 19 Sales, fees and 
Charges grant income – 
Forecast 

   (6,400) 

Re-profile the use of 
reserves 

   34,836 

Net forecast over / 
(under) spend 

   0 

 
The report also addressed a number of specific changes and approvals needed as 
part of the Council’s budget revisions processes in 2020/21. 
 
Grants in Addition to that Already Planned 
 
The report explained that notifications had been received in relation to specific 
external grants as additional funds for the Council’s response to the COVID-19 
pandemic, as well as two grants for other purposes. These allocations had not been 
confirmed at the time of the 2020/21 budget setting processes, so confirmation of 
them was now being sought. These were all supported: 

 £24.330m as tranche four emergency COVID-19 funding for the council’s ongoing 
work to support communities during the pandemic. 

 £3.7m as a further sales, fees and charges grant, the support package for losses 
from sales, fees and charges. 

Page 19

Item 5



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  9 December 2020 

 £4.423m for the Contain Outbreak Management Fund to fund activities such as 
enforcement, compliance and contact tracing, being £8 per head of the city’s 
population.  

 £286,000 for Clinically Extremely Vulnerable people to provide food and support 
to the most at risk so as to enable them to stay at home as much as possible over 
the 28 national “lock-down” in November and early December 2020. 

 £2.581m for the Holiday Activities and Food programme to support families and 
the most vulnerable over winter for provision of food during school holidays for 
children who normally would have access to a free school meal. 

 £390,000 for cultural recovery, the first payment of £0.780m awarded to 
Manchester Art Gallery as a qualifying organisation that was severely financially 
impacted by COVID 19.  

 £454,000 for rough sleepers Protect Programme to provide further 
accommodation for entrenched rough sleepers who are very complex in nature 
and will include Mental Health and Drugs/Alcohol misuse support. 

 £65,000 for the Wellbeing for education return to provide training and support on 
specific mental health areas. 

 £360,000 for Safer Streets Funding for interventions that will impact on the 
acquisitive crime including targeted hardening improvements to individual 
properties. 

 
Budget to be Allocated 
 
When setting the 2020/21 budget the Council has agreed to hold some funds for 
contingencies, and other money that was to be allocated throughout the year. The 
report proposed one further use of some of these budgets to be allocated. This was 
agreed: 

 £99,000 for the Street Lighting PFI contract to fund the annual inflation increase 
on the PFI unitary payments. 

 
Budget Virements 
 
The report also proposed two budget virements, both of which would need to be 
approved by the Council. Those were both supported.  
 
Decisions 
 
1. To note the global revenue monitoring report and a forecast outturn position of 

a breakeven position.  
 
2. To approve additional COVID-19 grants, and other unbudgeted external grant 

funding, to be reflected in the budget as set out above. 
 
3. To approve the use of budgets to be allocated as set out above. 
 
4. To recommend to the Council the approval of a proposed budget transfer of 

£1m from Corporate Core directorate to Collection Fund to offset council tax 
discounts (funded through the specific Hardship Fund grant); and also approve 
a £375k transfer within Adults Social Care for the Impower savings delivery 
partnership. 

Page 20

Item 5



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  9 December 2020 

 
 
Exe/20/135 Greater Manchester Transport Strategy 2040  
 
A report submitted by the Strategic Director (Growth and Development) sought the 
endorsement of the refreshed Greater Manchester Transport Strategy 2040, as well 
as the final version of a Five-Year Delivery Plan. The report also sought approval for 
the publication of a Local Implementation Plan for Manchester.  
 
The the Greater Manchester Transport Strategy 2040 had first been published in 
February 2017 as the city-region’s statutory transport plan. Since then the steps that 
need to be taken to achieve the vision set out in the document had evolved 
significantly. It had therefore been brought up to date to make reference to: 

 the “Right-Mix” ambition for at least 50% of all journeys to be made by active 
travel and public transport by 2040; 

 details of the GM Mayor’s ‘Our Network’ plan to create an integrated, modern and 
accessible transport network; 

 an increased emphasis on the importance of cycling and walking; 

 the climate emergency declared by GMCA and all ten councils; 

 the development of the GM Clean Air Plan; 

 the contemporary devolution agenda, including publication of the Bus Reform 
business case and GM Rail Prospectus; 

 ongoing work to develop our 2040 sub-strategies including Streets for All, City 
Centre Transport Strategy, Local Bus Strategy, Rapid Transit Strategy, and 
Freight Strategy; and  

 the development of the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework. 
 
Along with the Greater Manchester Transport Strategy 2040, the GMCA was to 
publish “Our Five-Year Delivery Plan” to set out the practical actions planned to 
deliver the 2040 Transport Strategy and the transport ambitions of the GMCA and the 
Mayor. The “Our Five-Year Delivery Plan” was itself supported by ten Local 
Implementation Plans (LIPs) covering the period 2020 to 2025, one for each of the 
council district in Greater Manchester. The latest version of the Manchester LIP was 
appended to the report.  
 
Decisions 
 
1. To endorse the refreshed Greater Manchester Transport Strategy 2040 and 

the final version of Our Five-Year Delivery Plan for approval by GMCA and 
publication in December 2020, alongside GMSF. 

 
2. To approve the publication of the supporting Local Implementation Plan for 

Manchester as an appendix to Our Five-Year Delivery Plan, acknowledging 
that these are “live” documents and will be subject to regular review and 
update as appropriate. 

 
3. To delegate authority to the Strategic Director (Growth and Development) in 

consultation with the Executive Member for Environment, Planning and 
Transport to approve any subsequent updates to the Local Implementation 
Plan for Manchester. 

Page 21

Item 5



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  9 December 2020 

 
 
Exe/20/136 HS2 Phase 2b Western Leg Design Refinement Consultation 

Response  
 
This report submitted by the Strategic Director (Growth and Development) explained 
that the Council had been consulted as part of a Design Refinement Consultation 
(DRC) being carried out by HS2 Ltd. on the western leg of Phase 2b of HS2 
(Manchester-Crewe). The consultation was seeking the Council’s views on updates 
to station designs at both Manchester Piccadilly and Manchester Airport, a route 
alignment change, and the integration of Northern Powerhouse Rail at both Piccadilly 
and Manchester Airport high speed stations with proposals for extra platforms at both 
those stations. 
 
The report set out in detail a proposed response to the consultation, with a copy of 
the draft response appended to the report. The full draft response was endorsed, with 
authority delegated to finalise the document and submit it to HS2 Ltd. 
 
It was noted that the Economy Scrutiny Committee had also considered the report 
and had endorsed its recommendations (Minute ESC/20/48). 
 
Decisions 
 
1. To note the proposed refinements within Manchester in the HS2 Design 

Refinement Consultation. 
 
2. To note and comment on the City Council’s draft submission in response to 

the consultation. 
 
3. To delegate authority to the Strategic Director (Growth & Development), in 

consultation with the Leader and Executive Member for Environment, Planning 
and Transport, to finalise the response and submit to HS2 Ltd. 

 
 
Exe/20/137 Purpose Built Student Accommodation  
 
Manchester has one of the largest student populations in Europe, with over 90,000 
students at Greater Manchester’s five universities, and over 380,000 students at the 
22 Higher Education Institutions (HEIs) within an hour’s drive. 
 
Policy H12 of the city’s Core Strategy was adopted in 2012 and had been developed 
with the objective of managing the supply of student accommodation in the city. It set 
out the criteria to be used to guide planning applications for student accommodation 
and to manage the appropriate delivery of Purpose Built Student Accommodation 
(PBSA). The policy had helped ensure that housing had been developed in the city 
centre, prevented an oversupply of PBSA, and created a dynamic residential market. 
The Council, working with partners, had used Policy H12 to manage the controlled 
delivery of a limited but sustainable supply of new PBSA, in response to increasing 
student demand for accommodation in the city centre. A small amount of PBSA has 
also been developed in the south of the city, including the University of Manchester’s 

Page 22

Item 5



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  9 December 2020 

plans in Fallowfield. Whilst Policy H12 remained relevant, changes in the student 
accommodation market had created the need to review the interpretation and 
application of the policy. This primarily related to affordability challenges and the 
need to locate accommodation close to the higher education institutions. 
 
To that end, in November 2019 the Strategic Director (Growth & Development) had 
been asked to undertake an appropriate consultation with key stakeholders on this 
changing context for purpose built student accommodation, and to report back on the 
outcomes of the consultation (Minute/Exe/19/95). 
 
The report now submitted by the Strategic Director set out the outcome of that 
consultation. The consultation had been undertaken in two phases:  phase 1 up to 
March 2020 had been with developers, students and higher education 
establishments; phase 2 up to May 2020 with residents and business as part of the 
local plan review. There had then been the opportunity for further consideration and 
discussions with local ward councillors within the Council (Minute Exe/20/107). 
 
For phase 1 there were 85 respondents: six from property developers; three from 
higher education establishments; and 76 from students, including representation from 
the Manchester Metropolitan University Student Union. The report described in detail 
the range of issues that these consultees had raised in their responses.  
 
For phase 2 there were 561 respondents overall to the Local Plan consultation, 
although not all had commented on the purpose built student accommodation 
statement. Most of those responses were from residents. For the residents who 
responded on the question of purpose built student accommodation there was 
significant opposition to the conversion of existing family homes into shared living 
arrangements for students, and support for a range of good quality, affordable 
accommodation. 
 
The report then set out a detailed responses to the matters that had been raised by 
the respondents. It also considered the implication of the COVID-19 pandemic on 
future provision and development of such accommodation. Any new schemes that 
were considered under the approach being recommended in the report would not be 
ready for occupation until 2023 at the earliest, and by then it was anticipated that the 
city would have recovered from the pandemic with a sense of normality returned. So 
it was felt that demand for student accommodation would not be affected by the 
pandemic in the longer term.  
 
Decisions 
 
1. To note the outcome of the consultation exercise with key stakeholders on 

purpose built student accommodation. 
 
2. To endorse the approach set out in the report to help guide the decision 

making process in advance of the review of the Local Plan and request the 
Planning and Highways Committee take this approach into material 
consideration until the Local Plan has been reviewed. 

 
 

Page 23

Item 5



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  9 December 2020 

Exe/20/138 Withdrawal from school catering provider market  
 
The report of the Strategic Director, Neighbourhoods explained the current financial 
and operating position of Manchester Fayre, the council-operated catering services 
that provided food to 80 sites across the City, nearly all of which were schools. The 
report outlined the forecast cost of the service in the current year and the additional 
budget requirement that would be needed to continue operating the service in the 
future. The report set out the background to Manchester Fayre operation and 
described the current operations and budget positions  
 
It was explained that the Council was not required to provide a school meals service 
and the majority of schools in the city had already made their own arrangements with 
other companies, or were providing meals in-house. In the future, the subsidy 
required to continue to operate the service to a minority of Manchester schools would 
be significant, requiring budget cuts in other services. It was felt that the market for 
school meal providers in Manchester was competitive and that alternative providers 
could service the demand without the subsidy that would otherwise be required for 
Manchester Fayre.  
 
The report examined the options of increasing the charges for the meals provided but 
concluded that would most likely see even more schools leaving the service. It also 
considered the closing the service and helping the schools to make new 
arrangements. It considered the implications for the current employees if the service 
was to transfer to a new provider or be taken over by the individual schools. The 
report concluded by recommending the withdrawal of Manchester Fayre from the 
school meal provider market by no later than September 2021. At the meeting 
officers reported that discussions would take place with three other providers that 
might be in a position to take the service over from the Council.   
 
It was noted that the report had also been considered by the Resources and 
Governance Scrutiny Committee at a recent meeting (Minute RGSC/20/56). The 
Committee had recommended that the Executive do not progress the changes being 
proposed in the report and instead consider alternative options. Having considered 
the officer’s report and the advice of the Committee, it was agreed that changes 
should be made so that the service would not require financial subsidy and support 
by the Council in the future, and to explore the alternative options for the future of the 
service, including withdrawal by September 2021. 
 
Decisions 
 
1. To approve the withdrawal of Manchester Fayre from the school meal provider 

market by no later than September 2021. 
 
2. To agree that the potential to assign the current Service Level Agreements 

held by Manchester Fayre to an independent provider be progressed. 
 
3. To explore the extent by which the Council can work with other GM local 

authorities to continue to maintain a service. 
 

Page 24

Item 5



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  9 December 2020 

4. To establish clearly what would be needed to make the Council’s existing 
service financially viable. 

 
 
Exe/20/139 Amendment to Hackney Carriage Fare Card  
 
Manchester Airport Group (MAG) had amended the charging structure for the drop 
off zones at the airport terminals. Any charges imposed on Hackney Carriages by a 
third party (i.e. barrier charges to access a rank) can only be recovered on the 
Hackney Carriage meter if they are indicated on the published Fare Card (following a 
public consultation). Tariffs have to be indicated specifically on the card to ensure the 
customer understands the legal applicable charges on the meter, therefore the fare 
card has to be amended each time any third-party charge changes. 
 
In its capacity as advisor to the Executive on hackney carriage fares, the Licensing 
and Appeals Committee considered a report at its meeting on 30 November 2020, 
which set out a proposal to amend the current Hackney Carriage Fare Card in 
relation to increased charges the Hackney Carriage Trade are subject to at the 
airport (Minute LAP/20/6). The Committee was recommending that the increase in 
charges made by the airport be added to the fare card so that drivers could recover 
that from their passengers and not have to carry that cost themselves. That proposal 
was accepted.  
 
Decision 
 
To approve the recommendation of the Licensing and Appeals Committee amend the 
Hackney Carriage Fare Tariff Extra - ‘Manchester Airport Charge - Drop off at any 
terminal’ from £1.80 to £3. 
 
 
Exe/20/140 Children's COVID Winter Grant  
 
Manchester had been allocated £2.581m as a COVID winter grant. A minimum of 
80% of this grant had to be spent on families with children. The grant covers the 
period from 1 December 2020 to 31 March 2021. A report from the Strategic Director 
of Children and Education Services put forward proposals for this allocation of this 
grant funding to expenditure budgets, with the majority of the money to be used to 
support food provision for around 43,000 children and young people over the 
Christmas holidays and February half term holiday, when they would otherwise not 
have access to meals at their school. 
 
The main proposal was for £1.9m to be used to pay for supermarket vouchers to be 
distributed through schools so as to allow families to buy food over the holiday 
periods. The balance of the money would be used for a range of other schemes to 
help children, families and young people in challenging circumstances over the winter 
period. The proposals in the report were all supported and welcomed.  
 
Decisions 
 

Page 25

Item 5



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Executive  9 December 2020 

1. To note the contents of this report and the urgent time frame to provide food 
provision to Manchester children. 

 
2. To agree that the allocation of the grant would support the following priorities: 
 

• £1.9m to be allocated to provide supermarket vouchers to be distributed 
through schools and settings for children and young people eligible for 
benefit related free school meals and other children in identified groups. 

• Up to £150k to be allocated as a grant to Colleges in Manchester to enable 
them to develop a scheme for young people who were previously on FSM. 

• £24.5k to be allocated for to support care leavers with food. 
• £264k to be allocated to Early Years/Early Help service to support children 

and families experiencing poverty.  
• £132k to be allocated to Food Response team for adult only households.  

 
3. To delegate the administration and final allocation of the funds to the Deputy 

Chief Executive and City Treasurer in consultation with the Director of 
Children's Services. 

 
4. To note that the decisions proposed in this report have not been on the record 

of key decisions for 28 days or more and that therefore the special urgency 
exemption is being relied upon with the consent of the Chair of the Children 
and Young People Scrutiny Committee. 

 
5. To note that the City Solicitor has advised that the decisions proposed in this 

report are urgent. 
 
6. To note that the Chair of the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 

has agreed that these decisions are reasonable in all the circumstances and to 
them being treated as a matter of urgency as any delay likely to be caused by 
the call-in process would seriously prejudice the interests of the residents of 
Manchester, and therefore are not subject to call-in. 

 
 
 

Page 26

Item 5



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 1 December 2020

Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 

Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday, 1 December 2020

This Scrutiny meeting was conducted via Zoom, in accordance with the 
provisions of the The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel 
Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020. 

Present:  
Councillor Russell (Chair) – in the Chair 
Councillors Ahmed Ali, Andrews, Clay, Davies, Lanchbury, B Priest, A Simcock, 
Stanton, Wheeler and Wright 

Also present:

Councillor Leese, Leader 
Councillor N Murphy Deputy Leader 
Councillor Rahman, Executive Member for Skills, Culture and Leisure 
Councillor Hitchen, (Minute RGSC/20/56 only)  

Apologies: Councillor Rowles

RGSC/20/51 Minutes  

Decision 

The Committee approves the minutes of the meeting held on 3 November 2020 as a 
correct record. 

RGSC/20/52 Government Spending Review  

The committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer, 
which detailed the main announcements from the Spending Review with a focus on 
those impacting the City Council’s budget. 

Key points and themes within the report included:- 

• A 3% increase in Council Tax Adult Social Care precept (the referendum limit 
for the Council Tax precept remained at 2%); 

• Nationally, an additional £300m social care grant (£150m of this was new 
funding);  

• The New Homes Bonus scheme would continue for 2020/21 for additional 
homes delivered; 

• Some additional support for COVID-19 losses; 
• Nationally, unringfenced £670m in relation to Council tax losses including the 

impact of the increase in numbers receiving Council Tax Support  
• 75% of irrecoverable 2020/21 Collection Fund losses would be reimbursed by 

the Treasury resulting in a smaller deficit to be smoothed over three years; 

Page 27

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 1 December 2020

• The 100% Business Rate Pilots would continue for another year (including 
Greater Manchester) and there would be no Business Rates reset in 2021/22; 

• Funding for Troubled Families scheme of £165m would continue on a roll over 
basis; 

• Funding of £254m nationally was announced to reduce rough sleeping and 
Homelessness; 

• Pay rises in the public sector would be restrained with only nurses, doctors and 
others in NHS receiving a pay rise next financial year; 

• Due to the fact this was a one-year Settlement and many of the announcements 
were for one-off funding the position for 2022/23 would still remain extremely 
challenging with an anticipated gap remaining of c£120m; and 

• The Council will also need to deliver around £50m of cuts in for 2021/22 to 
achieve a sustainable position for the future. 

There were no questions in relation to this report.  

Decision 

The Committee notes the report. 

RGSC/20/53 Setting of the Council Tax Base and Business Rates Shares for
Budget Setting Purposes 2021/22.  

The Committee considered the report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City 
Treasurer that advised on the methodology of calculating the City Council's Council 
Tax base for tax setting purposes and Business Rates income for budget setting 
purposes for the 2021/22 financial year, together with the timing of related payments 
and the decision on business rates pool membership. The Chair of the Committee 
would be requested to exempt various key decisions from call in. 

Clarification was sought on how many properties were included in the Council Tax 
base for 2020. 

The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer advised that the Council tracked the 
number of council tax properties in each council tax band and the number of 
properties that were exempted from council tax which meant that the calculation was 
complex and the figure would only be confirmed in January 2021. 

Decisions 

The Committee: - 

(1) Note that the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer, in consultation with 
the Executive Member for Finance and Human Resources, has delegated 
powers to: 

• Set the Council Tax base for tax setting purposes in accordance with the 
Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) (England) Regulations 
2013; 

Page 28

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 1 December 2020

• Calculate the Business Rates income for budget setting purposes in 
accordance with the Non-Domestic Rating (Rates Retention) Regulations; 

• Agree the estimated council tax surplus or deficit for 2020/21; 
• Agree the estimated business rates surplus or deficit for 2020/21; 
• Determine whether the Council should be part of a business rate pooling 

arrangements with other local authorities; 
• Set the dates of precept payments to the Greater Manchester Combined 

Authority. 

(2) Note that the Chair of the Scrutiny Committee will be requested to exempt 
various key decisions from the call in procedures.        

RGSC/20/54 Discretionary Housing Payments  

The Committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City 
Treasurer, which provided an update on the Council’s Discretionary Housing 
Payment scheme and the potential impact of anticipated budget cuts 

Key points and themes in the report included:- 

• The officer proposal that was being considered as part of the budget 
consultation was to remove £1.5m of the £2m additional Council contribution to 
the Discretionary Housing Payment Scheme Budget; 

• The Council’s contribution has supported the policy objective to sustain 
tenancies and avoid further intervention and support costs; 

• Taking money out of the system would mean that decisions would have to be 
carefully managed to ensure that the Council could continue to support its most 
vulnerable residents; 

• The Council could if required, reduce the budget and still provide valuable, 
additional support to residents in the city that need extra support with rent costs 
with a reduced contribution of between £500,000 and £1m; and 

• The impact of which would depend upon what the government did with the, at 
present, temporary changes to Universal Credit and Local Housing Allowance. 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committees discussions were:- 

• Why had the percentage of cases relating to Registered providers increased 
significantly; 

• It was suggested that when referring to under occupancy in the report this 
needed to be clear that this was a bedroom tax introduced by the previous 
coalition government to target the least well off; 

• There was concern that the potential cuts to this budget would impact on 
potential further homelessness incidents and as such any decision should be 
put on hold until the next financial year; 

• There was a need from Government to commit to the £20 payment in regard to 
Universal Credit; 

• If the DHP budget was reduced, what contingencies would be in place to put 
more money in to the budget if pressures increased during the course of the 
next financial year; 

Page 29

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 1 December 2020

• What processes were in place to handle, in a timely manner, housing benefit 
claims for temporary accommodation; 

• Was there enough resources to support the level of homelessness being 
presented in the city; 

• Members did not feel it was appropriate to remove £1.5m of the £2m Council 
contribution to DHP and the Chair proposed instead that the Council made a 
contribution to this budget at £1m in order to maintain the current level of 
service. 

The Head of Corporate Assessments advised that the number of cases per 
registered providers had increased in large part due to the proportions of the 
payments being made, as the proportion paid to homelessness cases had reduced 
by some extent which had in turn increased the proportion being paid in to registered 
providers. 

The Leader, whilst acknowledging the point being made, advised that reference to 
under occupancy being referred to as a bedroom tax was a political terminology, 
which was not appropriate for Officers to be using when producing reports.  He also 
advised that he recognised the point being made around the potential impact of 
cutting this budget would have on the number of homelessness cases, but to 
maintain the current level of intervention would result in an over budget of between 
£0.5m and £1m and this was not appropriate to do.  He added that whilst the budget 
could be reduced for 2021/22, in subsequent years there may be the need to 
increase it again due to the uncertainty of changes to Universal Credit and Local 
Housing Allowance 

The Committee was advised that the Council would always maintain an unallocated 
contingency budget for instances where pressures for services became higher than 
anticipated. 

The Head of Corporate Assessments advised that there were fortnightly meetings 
with colleagues in Homelessness to try and address the issues arising with making 
timely and successful benefit claims for those in temporary accommodation.  It was 
acknowledged that this was a difficult area to overcome the issues that currently 
existed but was something that Officers were continually working on.  The Chair 
suggested a follow up note to Members on this would be beneficial. 

The Leader commented that the Government’s Spending Review had identified 
additional funding to address homelessness but the precise details and allocation 
had not been released. 

The Leader commented that he would be comfortable supporting the proposal for the 
Council to provide a £1m contribution to the service, which was in line with the 
current costs of maintaining the existing level of service and suggested that a deeper 
analysis of how other local authorities were supporting this service area via other 
routes. 

Decision 

Page 30

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 1 December 2020

The Committee recommends that the Council keeps its contribution to this budget at 
£1m in order to maintain the current level of service. 

RGSC/20/55 New Customer Service Centre Delivery Model  

The Committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City 
Treasurer, which outlined the proposed new delivery model for face-to-face services 
currently delivered by the Customer Service Organisation (CSO).   

Key points and themes of the report included:- 

• An overview of the pre Covid Customer Service Centre (CSC) offer,  
• Current arrangements as a result of the COVID19 pandemic; and  
• Further detail on the piece of work to look at what a future operating model 

could look like and deliver for the Council and its residents. 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committees discussions were:- 

• There was a need to be clearer on what was meant by a signing service, if this 
was in reference to BSL; 

• Would consideration be given to offering the video conferencing service in more 
libraries than just the three referred to in the report; 

• What impact would the proposals have on non-staffing related budgets; 
• What level of staffing was being proposed for the delivery of the new model of 

service; 
• It was felt that the service currently provided by the Council was superior to 

organisations providing a comparable service; 
• Further clarity was sought on the co-browsing proposals; 
• What model had been used to identify the three pilot areas; 
• It was felt that there was still a need to provide a direct face to face 

homelessness services for those who needed it in the Town Hall; 
• Was there enough capacity to deal with any increase in demand on the service, 

including homelessness triage when the current hold on evictions due to the 
COVID19 pandemic comes to an end; 

• The Committee had understood the report to be indicating that there would be 
face-to-face services in the libraries, but was this not in fact the case; 

• It was requested that information be provided to the Committee on the  number 
of residents requesting face to face appointments and subsequently getting 
these appointments and what follow up is being done to ensure residents are 
getting the support they require 

The Director of Customer Services and Transactions acknowledged the point made 
around signing service but advised that there was a range of different signing 
languages that people used so a collective reference was currently being used but 
this could be changed to something more appropriate if required. 

The Committee was advised that the three libraries were just being used as a pilots 
for the video conferencing service.  If this was well received then consideration would 

Page 31

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 1 December 2020

be given to implementing this in other libraries across the city as the cost/physical 
infrastructure requirements for implementing were not insignificant. 

The Director of Customer Services and Transactions advised that there were 
currently 18 staff in the CSC. There had been no face to face service offered since 
March 2020 due to the COVID19 pandemic and this new model only provided a face 
to face service at the CSC in the Town Hall, staffed by six employees, who would 
undertake a meet and greet function and any appointments that were required to be 
face to face at an appropriate location for the customer, which would include home 
visits if needed.  Elsewhere would be via video conferencing.  

In terms of the co-browsing proposal, this would allow for Council staff to provide real 
time digital support and view what the resident was looking at on their screen or 
having difficulty in completing. 

The Deputy Leader advised that the three pilot areas had been identified on 
geographical grounds, representing the north, central and south of the city where a 
library had a large enough interview room that could comply with COVID19 spacing 
requirements. 

The Director of Customer Services and Transactions advised she would speak to the 
Director of Homelessness in regard to the point made around the need to retain a 
face to face service. There was no plan to do this in libraries.  In terms of increase 
demand on the service in relation to benefit claims, it was explained that any new 
benefit claimants would tend to be made by phone and the co-browsing proposals 
would support this.  In relation to concerns around any possible increases in 
homelessness triage, this too would need to be passed to the Director of 
Homelessness for an appropriate response. 

Decisions 

The Committee:- 

(1) Note the content of this report. 
(2) endorse the proposed approach to developing and implementing a new 

operating model for face-to-face Council Services. 
(3) Requests the officers take into account the comments made by the Committee 

when developing and implementing the new operating model. 

RGSC/20/56 Withdrawal from school catering provider market  

The Committee considered the report of the Strategic Director, Neighbourhoods that 
informed the Committee of the current financial and operating position of Manchester 
Fayre, which provided catering services to 80 sites across the City. The report 
outlined the forecast cost of the service in the current year and the additional budget 
requirement that will be needed to continue operating the service. 

The main points and themes within the report included: - 

• Providing an introduction and background to Manchester Fayre; 

Page 32

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 1 December 2020

• Describing the current operating position; 
• Detailing the current budget position; 
• Staffing implications; and 
• Proposed transition arrangements.  

It was also reported that the Council was not required to provide a school meals 
service and the subsidy now required to continue to operate the service to a minority 
of Manchester schools was significant.  This subsidy would have a consequential 
impact on other service reductions that would be required.  It was also commented 
that the market for school meal providers in Manchester was competitive and 
alternative providers could service the demand without the subsidy that would be 
required for Manchester Fayre.  

Some of the key points that arose from the Committees discussion were:  

• Rebutting the assumption that the jobs and employment terms and conditions of 
staff would be protected under TUPE (Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of 
Employment) Regulations 2006) arrangements if transferred to alternative 
providers, and noting that the limitations within those legal protections meant 
that in the current economic climate, TUPE was highly unlikely to be effective 
and might actually incentivise redundancy; 

• Did any other local authorities in Greater Manchester have a service that was 
not loss-making, and if so, how had that been achieved;  

• What consultation had been undertaken with Trade Unions, noting that 
concerns had been expressed by the Trade Unions regarding the consultation 
process, and suggesting that industrial relations were not being adequately 
maintained; 

• Expressing the need to explore every option to protect the jobs and wages of 
the lowest paid workers, with more than one member commenting that it was a 
service predominantly staffed by relatively low paid, female workers; 

• Noting that this proposal had been made repeatedly over a number of years, 
and questioning whether the communications strategy to sell the service was 
adequate; 

• Noting that Manchester Fayre had been independently identified as a very good 
service, providing high quality and nutritious food and noting the importance of 
this for the children of Manchester; 

• Commenting that the proposals amounted to an outsourcing of services; 
• The Council should give consideration to using capital funding to deliver this 

service;  
• Questioning the argument regarding the inability to deliver the service at 

economy of scale, noting that other providers had expressed an interest in 
delivering this service; 

• Seeking clarification on the cost charged by Manchester Fayre to provide a 
school meal, commenting that there were different figures on the Council’s 
website; 

• Had consideration been given to delivering a Greater Manchester service to 
schools; and 

Page 33

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 1 December 2020

• What was the actual budget of the service, commenting that the loss incurred 
during the pandemic should be disregarded as it has been for other Council 
services.

The Director of Commercial and Operations responded to the comments and 
questions from the Committee by stating that consultations had been undertaken with 
local Trade Unions in accordance with agreed protocols and process. He advised 
that staff would be transferred to any new provider under TUPE arrangements. He 
stated that the service could not compete with alternative providers due to the 
economy of scale, noting that approximately six schools per year were opting out of 
the service and the financial loss incurred by the service next year was anticipated as 
a minimum of £600k. He further clarified the cost to a school for a meal provided by 
Manchester Fayre, however the cost charged to the pupil was determined by the 
individual school, commenting that the information on the Council’s website would be 
revised to ensure the information provided was correct. 

The Director of Commercial and Operations stated that discussions had been 
undertaken with other local authorities, and that Salford had a more profitable 
service, but that school finances were arranged differently in Salford.  Due to the 
different local funding arrangements and each school managing their own budget for 
this function in Manchester, this presented a significant challenge. He stated that 
previous attempts to re-recruit schools had stopped as the tactics used were not 
proving successful. The conversations would continue in addition to the local service 
manager and nutritionist promoting the Manchester Fayre service to Manchester 
schools, noting the positive comments on the service identified by the independent 
report. 

The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer confirmed that in some cases capital 
receipts could be used to fund transformation programmes where there was a 
financial payback.  However caution needed to be taken when using capital funding 
to finance a transformation project and some local authorities had got into difficulties 
from it.  , It was also noted that it was the schools and their governing bodies that had 
decided to opt for alternative providers to deliver schools meals as they retained and 
managed this budget. 

The Executive Member for Skills, Culture and Leisure addressed the Committee and 
stated that the report did not propose any job losses and did not impact on the 
provision of Free School Meals. He stated that the budget to provide school meals 
had been delegated to individual schools and it was their decision as to how they 
procured this service, commenting that of the 185 schools in Manchester 110 of 
these had opted for alternative arrangements. He stated that the financial situation 
was such that it was unjustifiable to continue to subsidise this service. He stated that 
the report detailed the alternative options that had been considered and reiterated 
the point that this report did not propose any job cuts. He concluded that the money 
saved by not continuing to subsidise this service could be used to protect jobs and 
services when considering the broader budgetary pressures the Council was 
experiencing.   

The Leader stated that the decision had been taken some time ago by the Council to 
delegate this budget to individual schools, noting that any surplus achieved was 

Page 34

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 1 December 2020

retained by the school. He commented that 63% of schools currently procured school 
meals from other providers and nutritional standards had not deteriorated, adding 
that in many cases the menu variety had improved, and produce had been procured 
from local providers. He stated that there was no evidence to indicate workers’ pay 
and conditions for those who had transferred to other providers had been adversely 
affected in his ward. He concluded by stating that the Council could not afford to 
continue to subsidise this service.   

Decisions 

The Committee: - 

(1) Recommends that the proposals described within the report are not 
progressed. 

(2) Accepts that Manchester Fayre may not be sustainable in its current form but 
recommends that alternative options are considered to maintain the offer of 
Manchester Fayre and protect jobs, including delivering a service with other 
Greater Manchester local authorities to achieve economies of scale and be a 
competitive provider of school meals. 

RGSC/20/57 Overview Report  

The Committee considered a report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit 
which contained key decisions within the Committee’s remit and responses to 
previous recommendations was submitted for comment. Members were also invited 
to agree the Committee’s future work programme.   

Decisions 

The Committee:- 

(1) Note the report. 
(2) Note that the Chair will finalise the Work Programme for the February and 

March 2021 meetings in consultation with Officers. 

Page 35

Item 7



 

Page 36

Item 7



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee 1 December 2020 

 

Health Scrutiny Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 1 December 2020 
 
This Scrutiny meeting was conducted via Zoom, in accordance with the 
provisions of The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) 
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England 
and Wales) Regulations 2020. 
 
Present: 
Councillor Farrell – in the Chair 
Councillors N. Ali, Clay, Curley, Doswell, Hitchen, Holt, Mary Monaghan, Newman 
O’Brien and Wills 
 
Apologies: None received 
 
Also present:  
Councillor Craig, Executive Member for Adults, Health and Wellbeing 
Nick Gomm, Director of Corporate Affairs, Manchester Health and Care 
Commissioning (MHCC) 
Dr Manisha Kumar, Executive Clinical Director MHCC 
Naomi Ledwith, Director of Commissioning, NHS Trafford CCG  
Veronica Devlin, Chief Transformation Officer, MFT 
Sara Fletcher, Head of Reform for Delivery, MHCC 
Dr Peter Fink, GP & Clinical Lead for Urgent Care, MHCC 
Kaye Hadfield, Urgent Care Reform Manager, MHCC 
Cathy O’Driscoll, Associate Director of Commissioning, NHS Trafford CCG  
Siân Goodwin, Urgent Care Reform Co-ordinator 
Fiona Meadowcroft, Deputy Director of Strategy MHCC 
Deborah Partington, Executive Director of Operations, GMMH 
Adam Young, Associate Director of Operations, GMMH 
Dr Sarah Follon, Ancoats Urban Village Medical Practice 
 
 
HSC/20/46  Urgent Business – World Aids Day 
 
The Chair introduced an item of urgent business by inviting Councillor Wills, LGBT 
Men's Lead to address the Committee on the subject of World Aids Day. 
 
Councillor Wills stated that the George House Trust had organised a World AIDS 
Day online vigil to remember people lost to HIV, show solidarity with people living 
with HIV around the world and commit to challenging HIV stigma and discrimination.   
 
Councillor Wills encouraged all Members to attend the vigil at 7pm on Tuesday 1st 
December and stated he would recirculate the information and link. He further 
encouraged Members to donate to Passionate about Sexual Health (PaSH) 
Partnership, a collaboration between BHA for Equality, George House Trust and the 
LGBT Foundation. The PaSH Partnership worked to deliver a comprehensive 
programme of interventions to meet the changing needs of people newly diagnosed 
with HIV, living longer term with HIV or at greatest risk of acquiring HIV. 

Page 37

Item 7



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee 1 December 2020 

 

Members were reminded that Manchester was a Fast Track City that was working to 
ending new cases of HIV within a generation. 
 
The Executive Member for Adults, Health and Wellbeing paid tribute to all clinicians 
and the Voluntary Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE) sector for their work in 
this important area and stated that she fully supported the virtual vigil. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the update and support the virtual vigil. 
 
 
HSC/20/47  Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 3 November 2020 as a correct 
record.  
 
 
HSC/20/48 COVID-19 Update 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Public Health that described 
that in October the Committee had received the latest version of the Manchester 12 
Point COVID-19 Action Plan. This report and accompanying presentation provided a 
brief update on some aspects of the Plan, including Targeted Testing at Scale and 
the Manchester Mass Vaccination Programme, 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

• Welcoming the reported improvements in infection rates, however the need to be 
mindful that infection rates were still high and COVID-19  remained a threat; 

• The public needed to continue to observe Public Health advice and guidance to 
reduce the risk of infection;  

• How many critical care hospital beds were occupied by COVID-19 patients; 

• Were there concerns regarding the potential impact on infection rates in the New 
Year following the relaxation of restrictions over the Christmas period; 

• What work was being done with the student population to avoid a spike in cases 
when students return to Manchester in January; 

• Welcoming the introduction of mass testing and what was the anticipated 
timescales; and 

• Noting that communities often crossed borders within Greater Manchester as 
assurance was sought that all residents would be offered a vaccine.   

 
The Director of Public Health reiterated the message that all residents needed to 
consider their personal risk when considering their options during the Christmas 
period. He said it reminded essential that everyone continued to observe the Public 
Health messages to mitigate the risk of further infections.  
 

Page 38

Item 7



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee 1 December 2020 

 

In response to the specific question regarding students, the Director of Public Health 
stated that the local Public Health team continued to work closely with the local 
Universities and they continued to make representations to Government to ensure 
students were tested prior to their return to Manchester to prevent another outbreak, 
similar to that what was experienced in October. He said that this was important as 
the focus and priority in the new year should be to focus resources on the roll out of 
the vaccination. He said that despite this the testing sites at the Universities would be 
retained and Universities would continue to be supported to digest national guidance 
and formulate plans and strategies that could be clearly communicated.  
 
The Director of Public Health stated that at the time of reporting the number of critical 
care hospital beds occupied by COVID-19 patients was 46 and that he would 
circulate further data on this following the meeting. 
 
Regarding vaccination, the Director of Public Health stated that priority groups would 
be vaccinated by Easter 2021, with the remaining adult population vaccinated by 
summer 2021. He described that all of the Greater Manchester authorities would 
work together to progress this programme in line with national guidance to ensure a 
consistent delivery.  
 
The Executive Member for Adults, Health and Wellbeing stated that the decline in the 
infection rate was as a result of the determination and sacrifice of the residents of 
Manchester. She expressed that caution was required over Christmas to avoid a 
further spike in cases in the New Year and that communications and messaging 
regarding household mixing over Chrisman needed to be explicit and unambiguous.  
 
The Executive Member for Adults, Health and Wellbeing paid tribute to the Public 
Health Team and the Universities for responding to the outbreaks within the student 
population in the absence of national guidance.  
 
Decision 
 
The Committee notes the report. 
 
 
HSC/20/49  Urgent and Emergency Care by Appointment 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Commissioning NHS Trafford 
Clinical Commissioning Group that updated Members on the urgent care changes 
happening in Manchester in line with Greater Manchester (GM) and national strategy. 
 
The main points and themes within the report included: -  
 

• In response to Covid-19, there was a refresh of the GM Urgent Emergency Care 
(UEC) priorities, which included a 'UEC by Appointment’ model to reduce the risk 
of crowding within Emergency Departments (ED) with the principal aim of 
reducing the number of self-presenter attends by 25%; 

• Proving a description of the various elements of the programme that comprised 
of: 

• NHS 111 First 

Page 39

Item 7



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee 1 December 2020 

 

• Streaming at the Front Door 

• Clinical Assessment Service  

• Virtual Clinical Hub 

• Urgent bookable appointments  

• Describing progress to date; and  

• Next steps. 
 
Dr Manisha Kumar, Executive Clinical Director MHCC provided the Committee with 
an oral update on the Walk In Centre located in the city centre. She described that 
this facility was co-located in Boots and due to the available space and the numbers 
of people attending changes were required to ensure it remained COVID safe. She 
described that a Talk Before You Walk model would be introduced to manage patient 
flow at the site and minimise the risk of COVID infection. She described that a facility 
would still be provided for the most vulnerable patients to present and wait for 
treatment. The Chair thanked Dr Kumar for the update and commented that the 
Committee would consider scheduling an update on this issue for a future meeting. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

• The Committee had always advocated for the provision of Walk In Centres across 
the city and had vigorously opposed the closure of these, noting that the 
consequence of this would be an increase in presentations at Emergency 
Departments; 

• Would Emergency Departments still have to comply with national waiting time 
targets; 

• The model was predicated on an effective  NHS111 service and what had been 
done to support and adequately resource this service; 

• What consideration had been given to ensure the service was inclusive and 
accessible to all, including those for whom English was not their first language; 

• Noting the difficulties some patients experienced accessing Primary Care it was 
understandable that many patients resorted to attending Emergency Departments 
in the knowledge that they knew they would receive treatment;   

• Whilst recognising the need to introduce measures to ensure patient safety during 
COVID-19 was it anticipated that this model would continue post COVID; 

• Noting the importance of assessments being undertaken by clinicians to ensure 
the most appropriate patient care pathway was identified; 

• To ensure the safe and appropriate transfer of care it was important that patient 
records were accessible across the various health services;  

• What was the initial feedback on the Clinical Assessment Service that went live 
on the 4 November 2020; and 

• How was this change being communicated to the general public. 
 
The Director of Commissioning, NHS Trafford CCG responded to questions and 
comments by advising the Members that initial analysis of the Clinical Assessment 
Service had been positive with no issues or complaints identified. In response to 
access she described that Equality Impact Assessment workshops would continue to 
convene to consider access and develop and refine targeted communication 
campaigns.  
 

Page 40

Item 7



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee 1 December 2020 

 

The Urgent Care Reform Co-ordinator stated that a ‘soft’ national advertising 
campaign had been launched and the local message was designed to complement 
the national campaign. She explained that engagement with various community 
groups had been planned and would be reviewed to ensure this method was 
appropriate and effective.  
 
The Chief Transformation Officer, MFT advised that Emergency Departments would 
still have to comply with national waiting time targets and the new system was 
designed to relieve pressure on Emergency Departments; allow for more effective 
management and staffing; manage patient flow and ensure that patients received the 
most appropriate care by the service best equipped to deal with their health needs in 
the most appropriate setting. She advised that all patient assessments would be 
undertaken by a clinician to manage risk and safety. She explained that if a patient 
was referred to Primary Care an appointment would be made for the patient. She 
further described that such referrals would be monitored and reported and any ‘Did 
Not Attends’ would be followed up.  
 
The Executive Clinical Director MHCC stated that during COVID-19 Primary Care 
had continued to deliver services to patients and how this had been achieved in the 
context of the pandemic had been recently reported to the Committee.  
 
The Chief Transformation Officer, MFT stated that national discussions around 
improving Emergency Departments had been ongoing for many years and was an 
element of the NHS Long Term Plan, however COVID-19 and the need to ensure 
patient safety at this time had prioritised the issue. She described that there were 
many valid clinical reasons for introducing the changes and stated that some aspects 
of the changes would remain post COVID. She stated that at an appropriate time a 
review of the model would be undertaken to understand lessons learned and this 
would include the views of patients. The Chair commented that the Committee would 
request a further update on this subject at an appropriate time.  
 
The Director of Commissioning, NHS Trafford CCG acknowledged the comment 
regarding the need to improve integrated IT systems and record sharing across 
services and she advised the Committee that this work was ongoing.  
 
In response to specific concerns raised by Members the Committee was advised that 
no patient would be turned away from an Emergency Departments if they required 
urgent care, including those patients who self-presented. In response to comments 
made the Committee were informed that the new model was designed to improve 
patient care and was not driven by cutting costs or staff. 
 
Members were further informed that additional staff had been recruited and trained to 
deliver the NHS 111 service. The Chair stated that an update report on the NHS 111 
service would be scheduled for consideration at a future meeting. 
 
The Executive Member for Adults, Health and Wellbeing described her recent 
personal experience of accessing emergency care during the pandemic and stated 
that it had been very positive. She further supported the call for an update report on 
the implementation of the new model and suggested that this would be most 
appropriate post COVID. 

Page 41

Item 7



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee 1 December 2020 

 

  
The Executive Member for Adults, Health and Wellbeing further recognised the 
importance of Primary Care and the role that they would play in the delivery of the 
COVID-19 vaccination programme that was planned. 
 
The Executive Member for Adults, Health and Wellbeing concluded by paying tribute 
to all health professionals and staff delivering services on behalf of the residents of 
Manchester. 
 
Decisions 
 
The Committee; 
 
1. Note the report; 

 
2. Recommend that a report on the delivery of services at the city centre Walk In 

Centre be submitted for consideration at an appropriate time; and 
 
3. Recommend that a report on the delivery of the NHS 111 Service be submitted for 

consideration at an appropriate time. 
 
 
HSC/20/50  Mental Health Services and COVID-19 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Greater Manchester Mental Health NHS 
Foundation Trust (GMMH) that described the organisational response to the COVID-
19 pandemic and the steps take to sustain services throughout the initial lockdown 
period and then develop a sustainable model of provision. Steps taken to forward 
plan the changing demand and impact on services as a consequence of the 
pandemic were also presented with a surge predicted to coincide with the autumn 
and winter months. 
 
The main points and themes within the report included: -  
 

• Providing an introduction and an overview of national guidance; 

• Describing the GMMH COVID-19 Governance Arrangements; 

• Information on the Recovery Planning Group; 

• Information on the work of the Physical Healthcare and Infection Prevention and 
Control workstream; 

• A summary of the work of the Service Users and Carers workstream; 

• A summary of the work of the Workforce workstream; 

• Information on Demand and Capacity Planning; 

• Information on Community Activity; 

• Information on Crisis Response; 

• The response to Student Mental Health; 

• Winter Planning; 

• Infection Prevention and Control; 

• Vaccination; and 

• Lateral Flow Testing. 

Page 42

Item 7



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee 1 December 2020 

 

 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

• What work had been undertaken with local universities to support the local 
student population; 

• How was this specific work with students communicated; 

• Welcoming the extended 24/7 crisis helpline and did this link in with other services 
such as Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS); 

• Noting the IAPT (Improving Access to Psychological Therapies) service reported 
as providing increasingly efficient access and as a result the service had reduced 
secondary waits throughout Manchester by over a 1000 clients, what percentage 
of clients did this represent; 

• What work was being done to improve the transition from Children’s Services to 
Adult Services; 

• Noting the anticipated long-term impact of COVID-19 on mental health what 
comparisons could be made with other periods of economic downturn; 

• Has there been an increase of people with mental health issues presenting at 
Accident and Emergency Departments; and 

• Noting the increase in digital access to services, could people still access face to 
face services and support. 

 
The Executive Director of Operations, GMMH informed the Members that the service 
for students had been established pre COVID-19 and had been established using the 
GM Transformation fund. She described that teams were established at each 
University and the number of referrals to this service had increased and staff had 
been deployed to support this service.  The Deputy Director of Strategy MHCC 
further added that COVID-19 had highlighted the need to improve access to this 
service and Commissioners across Greater Manchester were looking at this using 
the lessons learned.  
 
The Associate Director of Operations, GMMH stated that the 24/7 crisis helpline was 
open to all age groups and not restricted to mental health. He advised that the 
helpline could sign post to other services and offer advice on other issues such as 
substance misuse, NHS 111 and CAMHS. 
 
The Associate Director of Operations, GMMH stated that he would circulate the 
details of the percentage of clients the reduction in secondary waits for IAPT services 
represented. He further confirmed that clients could still access face to face services, 
subject to COVID safe requirements and this was in addition to the provision of 
virtual services. 
 
In response to the specific question regarding CAMHS and the transition to Adult 
Services the Executive Director of Operations, GMMH advised that work was 
ongoing to develop standards and protocols and commented that during COVID-19 
teams across services had responded positively and collaboratively to ensure 
continuation of care and support.  
 
In response to the numbers of patients with mental health issues presentation at 
Emergency Departments the Associate Director of Operations, GMMH informed the 
Committee that in the initial stages of the pandemic the incidents of this dramatically 

Page 43

Item 7



Manchester City Council  Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee 1 December 2020 

 

reduced, however the number was beginning to increase again. He added that the 
Trust was working closely with Acute Services to address this. 
 
The Executive Director of Operations, GMMH informed the Committee that the long 
term impact of COVID-19 continued to be modelled and analysed, noting that this 
was comparable to periods of economic recessions and the impact on mental health 
would be felt for at least two years to come. She stated that Greater Manchester was 
engaging with NHS England to ensure appropriate funding was secured to continue 
to deliver mental health services. 
 
The Executive Member for Adults, Health and Wellbeing called upon the government 
to adequately fund mental health and wellbeing services in Manchester. She further 
paid tribute to all staff delivering mental health services.  
 
Decision 
 
The Committee note the report and welcome the steps taken by GMMH to support 
the strategic objectives of the City Council to address local need throughout the 
pandemic 
 
 
HSC/20/51  Overview Report 
 
A report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit which contained key decisions 
within the Committee’s remit and responses to previous recommendations was 
submitted for comment. Members were also invited to agree the Committee’s future 
work programme.   
 
Decision 
 
To note the report and agree the work programme. 

Page 44

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee 12 January 2021 

Health Scrutiny Committee 

Minutes of the meeting held on 12 January 2021 

This Scrutiny meeting was conducted via Zoom, in accordance with the 
provisions of The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) 
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England 
and Wales) Regulations 2020.

Present: 
Councillor Farrell – in the Chair 
Councillors N. Ali, Clay, Curley, Doswell, Hitchen, Holt, Mary Monaghan, Newman 
O’Brien and Wills 

Apologies: None received

Also present:
Councillor Craig, Executive Member for Adults, Health and Wellbeing 
Nick Gomm, Director of Corporate Affairs, Manchester Health and Care 
Commissioning (MHCC) 
Dr Manisha Kumar, Executive Clinical Director MHCC 
Ant Hanlon Chief Executive Manchester Irish Community Care 
Martin Moran Manager Manchester Irish Community Care 
Laura Foster, Director of Finance Manchester Local Care Organisation 

HSC/21/01   Urgent Business – Manchester Irish Community Care 

The Chair introduced an item of urgent business by informing the Committee that he 
had invited the Chief Executive, Ant Hanlon and the Manager, Martin Moran from 
Manchester Irish Community Care to be provide Members with a verbal update and 
presentation on their work. 

The main points and themes within the presentation included: -  

• A background to the organisation;
• Describing what services and support they provide;
• An overview of the structure of the organisation;
• Operational objectives;
• Describing how these activities were funded;
• Describing the approach to partnership working; and
• The desired outcomes of this work.

In response to questions Members were advised that the Irish community 
experienced many adverse health outcomes that were particularly associated with 
historical social and economic experiences. Members were informed that the referral 
telephone contact details were available on the organisations website, and it was 
anticipated that a referral form would be available via the site following a redesign. 

Page 45

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee 12 January 2021 

The Committee were advised that the work of Manchester Irish Community Care had 
been restricted due to COVID-19, whoever telephone support had continued to be 
offered and all working practices had been reviewed in accordance with all Public 
Health guidance. 

Following a discussion on funding and how the organisation could support the wider 
health and wellbeing ambitions of the Council the Chair recommended that the 
relevant Executive Member should engage with the group to explore these options 
further. 

Decision 

The Committee; 

1. Notes the presentation and thanked the representatives from Manchester Irish 
Community Care for attending the meeting. 

2. Recommend that the relevant Executive Member should engage with the 
group to explore the options for how the service can support the wider health 
and wellbeing ambitions of the Council. 

HSC/21/02  Minutes 

Decision 

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 1 December 2020 as a correct 
record.  

HSC/21/03 COVID-19 Update

The Committee considered the joint presentation of the Director of Public Health and 
the Executive Clinical Director Manchester Health and Care Commissioning that 
provided an update on COVID 19 activity and an update on the Manchester COVID-
19 Vaccination Programme. 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  

• What was the view on how best to protect yourself from the latest strain of the 
virus; 

• Noting the infection rates amongst the over 60’s and the corresponding numbers 
of hospital admissions; 

• Noting that the pressures currently experienced by hospitals as a result of 
COVID-19 was impacting on their capacity to deliver other services and care;  

• Acknowledging the positive work of the Woodhouse Park Lifestyle Centre to 
support residents; 

• It was important that as the vaccination programme progressed all residents were 
given the opportunity to be vaccinated;  

• How quickly would schools obtain the result of mass testing; 

Page 46

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee 12 January 2021 

• Noting the current two different vaccines that were being administered was there 
a clinical difference as to who should receive these; 

• What was the view of the Director of Public Health on the time gap between the 
administration of the vaccine;  

• What was being done to ensure that the children of key workers could still access 
school places during lockdown; 

• Were volunteers still required for the vaccination sites; 
• How would residents be contacted to inform them to attend for a vaccination; and 
• What was the approach to addressing and dispelling the many misconceptions 

surrounding the vaccine. 

The Executive Member for Adults, Health and Wellbeing stated that she wished to 
pay tribute to all staff who had worked to mobilise the vaccination programme and 
she had every confidence on the delivery of this, however noted that the success of 
the vaccination programme in Manchester was predicated on the successful supply 
of the vaccine that was being coordinated at a national level. 

The Director of Public Health responded to questions by stating that in regard the 
new variance of COVID-19 the public were being advised to continue to follow all of 
the Public Health advice and guidance to ensure the rates of infection decreased. He 
advised that by reducing the rates of infection this would in turn reduce the pressures 
being experienced in hospitals. He described that the next couple of weeks would be 
critical and every attempt was being made to safely discharge patients from acute 
settings to help relieve the pressure on hospitals. He described that the levels of 
infections continued to be monitored and analysed. 

The Executive Clinical Director MHCC stated that whilst the pressures currently 
experienced by hospitals as a result of the pandemic could not be underestimated it 
was important to emphasise that if anyone was experiencing a medical episode to 
seek immediate advice and assistance. She stated that the successful delivery of the 
mass vaccination programme would contribute to the stabilisation of hospital 
services.  

The Director of Public Health stated that following briefings of senior clinicians he 
was confident that the current guidance relating to the time between vaccine 
injections was correct. He advised that a communications campaign relating to the 
vaccination programme had been developed and added that an individual did not 
need to be registered with a GP to be eligible for a vaccination. 

The Director of Public Health stated that the results of testing in schools would be 
available after thirty minutes and schools had developed protocols to administer and 
mange this in line with advice from the Department for Education. He further 
commented that colleagues within Children’s Services and the Education Department 
had responded positively to the issue of school places for children of key workers 
and a dedicated phone line had been established for parents to contact if they were 
experiencing difficulties.

The Executive Clinical Director MHCC stated that the different vaccines that were 
being administered were appropriate for the vast majority of all over 18 year olds, 
however one was more appropriate for some patients with severe allergies and those 

Page 47

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee 12 January 2021 

who were pregnant or breast feeding. She described that the difference between the 
two vaccines was due to the storage and management of the vaccine.

The Executive Clinical Director MHCC expressed her gratitude to all those who had 
volunteered to assist at the vaccination centres and additional volunteers would be 
welcomed as this would be an ongoing programme, adding that training and support 
would be offered to all volunteers. 

The Executive Clinical Director MHCC informed the Committee that residents would 
be invited for a vaccination, using the contact details retained by Primary Care. She 
commented that if people did not subsequently then book in for an appointment or 
did not attend a booked appointed would be monitored and followed up. She 
described that the booking system for the mass vaccination sites was currently 
administered nationally.  

The Director of Corporate Affairs, MHCC described that a specific vaccination 
communications campaign had been designed in consultation with a range of 
partners. He described that the campaign would engage with a variety of different 
community groups and organisations and local intelligence would be used to target 
the campaign and deliver key messages regarding vaccination. 

The Chair, on behalf of the Committee placed on record his gratitude to all staff and 
volunteers working to respond to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Decision 

The Committee notes the report. 

HSC/21/04  Budget Options for 2021/22 

The Committee considered a report of the Acting Chief Executive Manchester Local 
Care Organisation and Executive Director of Adult Social Services that detailed the 
service and financial planning and associated budget strategy work that is taking 
place for adult social care with partners across the health and care system. 

The report detailed the identified and proposed opportunities to make savings in 
2021/22 aligned to the remit of the Health Scrutiny Committee, to support the City 
Council to achieve a balanced budget in 2021/22.  

As adult social care is both within the MHCC health and care pooled budget, works in 
partnership is increasingly focused on integrating with community health services 
through the Manchester Local Care Organisation (MLCO); this report is jointly 
presented to the Scrutiny Committee by the key partners of MHCC, MCC and MLCO, 
noting the areas that would be led by MLCO. 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  

Page 48

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee 12 January 2021 

• Commenting on how the pandemic had highlighted the consequences of 
continued and prolonged underfunding of NHS and Adult Social Care by central 
government;  

• Welcoming the Better Outcomes, Better Lives programme, noting that the level of 
savings from within this programme would increase in future years and 
substantively replace the one-off grant and support funding provided; 

• Commenting that the Health Scrutiny Committee should have regular updates and 
oversight of the delivery of the Better Outcomes, Better Lives; 

• More information was requested on the governance arrangements of the 
Manchester Partnership Board; 

• Noting the anticipated long term impact of COVID-19 on mental health, was the 
budget allocated to deliver mental health services sufficient to meet these 
demands both in the immediate and long term; 

• Members would welcome a separate briefing session on local pooled budget 
arrangements; 

• Welcoming the ongoing commitment to paying the National Living Wage; and 
• Welcoming the stated commitment to ensure that as service plans for 

neighbourhoods were shared with the relevant elected members and other key 
stakeholders as they are developed. 

The Executive Member for Adults, Health and Wellbeing advised the Committee of 
the significant pressures that had been placed on services and budgets as a result of 
COVID-19. She commented that this been exacerbated by continued and repeated 
cuts to funding imposed by the government. She stated that the government had 
failed to deliver on their commitment to address Adult Social Care and she called on 
the Chancellor to adequately and fairly fund all local authorities. She stated that 
despite these cuts Manchester had worked to respond to these challenges and 
support the most vulnerable residents in the city. She described that the Better 
Outcomes, Better Lives programme was one example of innovative working and she 
gave a commitment that the Committee would be regularly updated on the delivery of 
this programme. 

The Executive Member for Adults, Health and Wellbeing further commented that 
Public Health services would be reviewed in line with all funding announcements and 
the Committee would be kept informed with any developments. 

The Executive Member for Adults, Health and Wellbeing informed the Members that 
there was political representation on the Manchester Partnership Board, stating that 
she was appointed to the Board. She stated that further information on the work of 
the Board and the organisational arrangements could be submitted for consideration 
at a future meeting. 

The Interim Deputy Director of Adult Social Services noted the positive comments 
from Members regarding the Better Outcomes, Better Lives programme and 
commented that it was important to note that this was supported by the work force 
who were essential for the successful delivery. 

In response to the comments regarding mental health budgets, the Director of 
Finance Manchester Local Care Organisation stated that the Greater Manchester 

Page 49

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee 12 January 2021 

Mental Health NHS Foundation Trust were managing and delivering these services 
within the budgets that were available to them. 

Decision 

The Committee agree the savings proposals as described within the report and 
endorse these to the Executive. 

HSC/21/05 Our Manchester Strategy Reset – Draft Strategy 

The Committee considered the report of the Executive Director of Adult Social 
Services and Director of Public Health that provided an update on the draft Our 
Manchester Strategy – Forward to 2025 reset document. The draft of the reset 
Strategy is appended to this report.  

Our Manchester Strategy – Forward to 2025 would reset Manchester’s priorities for 
the next five years to ensure we could still achieve the city’s ambition set out in the 
Our Manchester Strategy 2015 – 2025. 

The main points and themes within the report included: -  

• Describing the background to the Our Manchester Strategy reset; 
• Providing an overview of the Our Manchester Strategy – Forward to 2025; 
• Describing the final design and communications; and 
• Next Steps. 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  

• Welcoming the engagement with local elected Members; 
• Every attempt should be made to increase participation with the consultation to 

ensure all views of the community were captured and reflected; 
• Congratulating staff for the work they had delivered on this area of work in the 

context of the COVID-19 pandemic; 
• Noting that it was important to feedback to residents to provide confidence that 

their views had been listened to and were reflected; and 
• Was data and information collected on who responded to consultations.     

The Deputy Leader stated that 3,800 people who had directly participated in the  
engagement activity that had ran from 3 August 2020 to 25 September 2020 
compared favourably to the original Our Manchester Strategy engagement in 2015 
when approximately 2,000 people were directly engaged, and is higher than other 
recent similar Council activity, however he stated that this activity would always be 
reviewed to ensure maximum participation.  

Officers reported that this activity was supported by a communications campaign with 
specific targeted campaigns to reach hard to reach groups. She stated information 
was asked for and recorded when responses were completed, such as gender, 
ethnicity etc however this it was not compulsory for residents to complete this 
information.   

Page 50

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Health Scrutiny Committee 12 January 2021 

Decision 

The Committee endorse the recommendation that the final version of Our 
Manchester Strategy – Forward to 2025 be taken for consideration by the Executive 
in February 2021.   

HSC/21/06  Overview Report 

A report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit which contained key decisions 
within the Committee’s remit and responses to previous recommendations was 
submitted for comment. Members were also invited to agree the Committee’s future 
work programme.  

Decision 

To note the report and agree the work programme. 

Page 51

Item 7



 

Page 52

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 2 December 2020 

Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee  

Minutes of the meeting held on 2 December 2020 

This Scrutiny meeting was conducted via Zoom, in accordance with the 
provisions of the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) 
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England 
and Wales) Regulations 2020.

Present: 
Councillor Stone – in the Chair 
Councillors Sameem Ali, Chohan, Cooley, Hewitson, Kilpatrick, Lovecy, Madeleine 
Monaghan, Reeves, Reid and Wilson

Co-opted Voting Members: 
Ms S Barnwell, Parent Governor Representative 
Ms Z Derraz, Parent Governor Representative  

Co-opted Non Voting Members:  
Mr L Duffy, Secondary Sector Teacher Representative 
Ms J Fleet, Primary Sector Teacher Representative 

Also present: 
Councillor Bridges, Executive Member for Children and Schools 
Councillor Rahman, Executive Member for Skills, Culture and Leisure 
Tracey Forster, Health Visiting, Vulnerable Babies and Community Health Services 
Lisa Sanchez, Health Visiting, Vulnerable Babies and Community Health Services 

Apologies: 
Councillors Abdullatif, Alijah and McHale 

CYP/20/49 Minutes 

Decision 

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 4 November 
2020. 

CYP/20/50 Early Years

The Committee received a presentation of the Strategic Head of Early Help, the Early 
Years Strategic Lead and Tracey Forster, Lead Manager, Health Visiting, Vulnerable 
Babies and Community Health Services.  The presentation provided a progress 
update on the priorities and delivery from Early Years and partners during the 
coronavirus pandemic. 

Officers referred to the main points and themes within the presentation, which 
included: 

• Strategic priorities; 

Page 53

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 2 December 2020 

• The impact of the pandemic on Early Years settings; 
• The financial impact of the pandemic; 
• The Early Years Service’s response to the pandemic; 
• The performance and impact of the Speech and Language Pathway; 
• The performance and impact of the Parenting Pathway; 
• Work to support school readiness; and 
• The Health Visiting Service, including its performance and its response to the 

pandemic. 

The Chair clarified that the budget savings referred to in the presentation slides were 
officer proposals at this stage. 

Some of the key points and themes that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
were: 

• To praise the way that the services had adapted in response to the challenges 
presented by the pandemic, as well as the impact and outcomes of their work, 
which had been outlined in the presentation; 

• How many Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) families had the service 
been in contact with regarding speech and language support; 

• To note from the presentation that 120 daycare settings were open and to ask 
how many settings there were in Manchester in total; 

• The challenges that new parents were experiencing during the pandemic; and 
• The limitations of health visitors only speaking to parents on the telephone 

rather than seeing them and whether any alternatives were being used, for 
example, Zoom meetings. 

The Early Years Strategic Lead clarified that 120 daycare settings were now open, 
out of a total of 130 settings.  She reported that uptake of daycare places was being 
monitored on a weekly basis and that this was 20% lower than the previous year, 
which was due to parental choice and fear of perceived risks.  In response to the 
question about BAME families and speech and language support, she advised that 
she did not have the figures to hand but could provide this information outside of the 
meeting.  She outlined how the Early Years Service had responded to the needs of 
new parents during the pandemic, including baby groups, which had been taking 
place since September 2020, outreach work and projects with partners, such as work 
with Manchester Art Gallery to provide sensory boxes. 

Tracey Forster agreed that, where possible, face-to-face contact was best for health 
visiting.  She reported that most contacts had been swapped to telephone contact 
during the pandemic but that the option of appointment-only clinics had been retained 
and that staff had Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) to carry out home visits, 
where this was needed.  She informed Members that the service could also use 
online video meetings to speak to families but that this was not been heavily used, 
although it had proved useful for observing and providing advice on feeding.  She 
advised that telephone contact had been the main means of contact during lockdown 
but that health visitors had made a note of families where they felt that face-to-face 
contact would be most beneficial and, from June onwards, those families had been 
prioritised to receive home visits or to be invited in for a clinic-based appointment.  
She advised that families who were not known to the service, for example, families 

Page 54

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 2 December 2020 

who had recently moved into the city and first-time parents, had been prioritised for 
these face-to-face contacts.  

Decision 

To thank Manchester’s health visitors for the excellent work they are doing and to 
thank everyone involved in the Early Years work for their contribution. 

[Ms Barnwell declared a personal interest as a Member of Manchester Parents 
Forum] 

CYP/20/51 Early Help Evaluation (2015 - 2020)  

The Committee received a report and presentation of the Strategic Director of 
Children and Education Services which provided an overview of the Early Help 
evaluation and its findings. 

Officers referred to the main points and themes within the report and presentation, 
which included: 

• Presenting needs of families that had been worked with; 
• Evidence that support had led to reduced needs; and 
• How investment in Early Help and a ‘whole family’ way of working could help 

support wider city priorities and strategies. 

Some of the key points and themes that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
were: 

• To welcome the preventative approach being taken and the impact that had 
been made, in particular the number of children kept out of care; 

• The difficulty in demonstrating what a preventative approach had achieved; 
• The financial impact of the pandemic on families and what work was being 

done, including to help families who could become at risk of homelessness 
due to rent arrears; 

• The availability of parenting classes during the pandemic; 
• Whether the Early Help Hubs had connections with local food banks; and 
• Whether Early Help was working with housing providers.  

The Strategic Head of Early Help informed Members that work was taking place at a 
Manchester and Greater Manchester level to prevent and alleviate homelessness.  
She outlined the support available to families in rent arrears or experiencing other 
financial difficulties, including provision of advice on benefit entitlement and on debts, 
as well as work on gambling harm reduction, which had become an area of 
increasing concern during the pandemic. 

The Strategic Head of Early Help reported that there was a high demand for 
parenting support and this was being provided through a range of means including 
online parenting support, one-to-one support, interactive video guides, a telephone 
helpline and small socially distanced parenting classes in Sure Start centres.  She 
reported that there were a number of food clubs which were based at Sure Start 

Page 55

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 2 December 2020 

centres and that the three locality-based Early Help Hubs were well-connected with 
local food banks, although she would welcome the opportunity to expand those links. 

The Strategic Head of Early Help advised that evaluations and feedback from 
families were used to demonstrate the value of investing in preventative work which 
would improve outcomes for families and result in savings later on.  In response to a 
Member’s question, the Early Help Project Manager explained that police data about 
offences relating to a particular address in the 12 months prior to an intervention and 
in the following 12 months demonstrated the impact of this work in reducing offences. 

The Executive Member for Children and Schools advised that the evidence 
presented demonstrated that it had been a good decision to continue with the early 
intervention work and, in response to Members’ comments, he suggested that in 
future it would be useful to clearly articulate the savings from this work in the 
evaluation. 

In response to a Member’s question, the Early Help Project Manager offered to 
provide information on the number of families concerned, in relation to the data on 
areas of the city and the sustainability of impacts, as only percentages had been 
provided.  The Chair requested that he send this to the Scrutiny Support Officer for 
circulation to all Members of the Committee.  In response to a question from another 
Member, the Early Help Project Manager advised that officers would look at 
analysing data broken down by sex and ethnicity. 

The Strategic Head of Early Help informed Members that registered housing 
providers were a key partner in Early Help but that stronger connections were 
needed with the private rented sector.  She reported that she would take this issue to 
the next partnership board meeting.  

Decisions 

1. To recognise the success of Early Help. 

2. To ask officers to consider how Councillors could help with this work and to 
circulate a note to the Committee Members on this. 

3. To request that the Early Help Project Manager provide information on the 
number of families, in relation to the presentation slides on areas of the city 
and the sustainability of impacts. 

CYP/20/52 Children and Education Services Proxy Indicators March 
2020 - October 2020 

The Committee received a presentation of the Deputy Director of Children’s Services 
and the Strategic Lead (SEND and School Improvement) which provided proxy 
indicators in relation to the performance of Children and Education Services. 

The Deputy Director of Children’s Services referred to the main points and themes 
within the presentation, which included: 

Page 56

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 2 December 2020 

• The rate of Children in Need; 
• The rate of Child Protection Plans (CPP) and the percentage of children 

required a second or subsequent CPP; and 
• Average Social Worker caseloads.  

The Strategic Lead (SEND and School Improvement) provided an overview of the 
education data within the presentation.  She also informed Members about changes 
to the way school attendance was being recorded, which meant that the attendance 
figures could not be directly compared to the previous figures.  She reported that the 
Department for Education (DfE) had introduced a new attendance code of ‘X’, which 
was used if a pupil was self-isolating or a group of pupils had been sent home due to 
a COVID-19 case within the group.  If a pupil tested positive for COVID-19, she 
advised that they would then be classed as ‘I’ for ill.  She reported that pupils with the 
‘X’ code were not classed as either present or absent so were excluded from the 
overall attendance figures.  Therefore, she informed Members, while the school 
attendance rate was 94% overall, only 84% of pupils were present in school. 

The Executive Member for Children and Schools informed Members that he had 
written to the Secretary of State, recommending that national assessments should 
not take place next year and should be replaced by teachers’ assessments, as some 
pupils had been required to spend a number of weeks self-isolating while other pupils 
had not been affected by this.  He expressed concern that Manchester children could 
be disproportionately affected compared to pupils in areas with lower infection rates 
and also that pupils from less privileged backgrounds would have already been 
disadvantaged when studying at home during the first lockdown.  In response to a 
question from the Chair, the Executive Member stated that he had not yet received a 
response to his letter.  A Member advised that it was important for Members to lobby 
on this issue. 

A Member commented that, while social workers’ caseloads had increased recently, 
they were still a significant improvement on the situation a few years ago. 

In response to a Member’s question, the Deputy Director of Children’s Services 
advised that there was no comparator data available on Children Missing from Home. 

In response to a Member’s question, the Director of Education advised that the 
Children Missing from Education referred to in the presentation slides were children 
whose families had recently applied for a school place, as new families were moving 
into the area all the time, and they were still in the process of being offered a school 
place.  She advised that some children were offered places through the In Year Fair 
Access Protocol and, for others, the School Admissions Team would look for the 
most suitable vacancy for a maximum of four weeks before offering a place.  She 
also advised that, where a child had an Education Health and Care Plan (EHCP), her 
service had to consult with the school prior to offering the place.  

Decision 

To thank officers for the presentation. 

Page 57

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 2 December 2020 

CYP/20/53 Holiday Provision Evaluation 

The Committee received a report of the Strategic Director of Neighbourhoods and the 
Strategic Director of Children and Education Services which provided an evaluation 
of the summer and half term offer following the agreed proposal to enhance the offer 
during the COVID-19 pandemic.  The report stated that all youth providers were 
working alongside young people to understand what impact their lives had on the 
environment. 

The main points and themes within the report included: 

• The objectives of the summer and half term offer; 
• Its implementation; 
• Statistics on the sessions and attendees; 
• Outcomes; 
• Holiday hunger; 
• Young people’s feedback; and 
• Next steps. 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -   

• To welcome the focused, targeted offer that had been made available to 
young people; 

• To request a ward breakdown of the take-up of these activities; and 
• Would there be any activities over the Christmas holidays for children with 

Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND). 

The Head of Youth Strategy and Engagement advised that every ward, with the 
exception of the city centre wards, had had provision available on most days and that 
she would provide Members with the requested information.  She reported that all 
providers were now asked to make their provision inclusive of children with SEND 
and that officers had worked with providers to ensure they understood how to do this, 
although some activities specifically for this group had been provided at Debdale 
Outdoor Centre.  She reported that she was currently working with Manchester 
Active and Greenwich Leisure Limited (GLL) on an offer for the Christmas period and 
that she would share this with the Committee.  The Chair praised the provision for 
children with SEND at Debdale Outdoor Centre.  

Decisions 

1. To thank everyone involved in this work. 

2. To note that the Head of Youth Strategy and Engagement will share with 
Committee Members a ward breakdown of take-up of the holiday provision 
and the offer for the Christmas period, once this has been finalised. 

CYP/20/54 Overview Report

A report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit was submitted. The overview 
report contained key decisions within the Committee’s remit, responses to previous 

Page 58

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 2 December 2020 

recommendations and the Committee’s work programme, which the Committee was 
asked to approve. 

Decision 

To note the report and agree the work programme. 

Page 59

Item 7



 

Page 60

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 13 January 2021 

Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee  

Minutes of the meeting held on 13 January 2021 

This Scrutiny meeting was conducted via Zoom, in accordance with the 
provisions of the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) 
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England 
and Wales) Regulations 2020.

Present: 
Councillor Stone – in the Chair 
Councillors Abdullatif, Cooley, Hewitson, Kilpatrick, Lovecy, Madeleine Monaghan, 
Reeves, Reid and Wilson

Co-opted Voting Members: 
Ms S Barnwell, Parent Governor Representative 
Ms Z Derraz, Parent Governor Representative  

Co-opted Non Voting Members:  
Mr L Duffy, Secondary Sector Teacher Representative 

Also present: 
Councillor Bridges, Executive Member for Children and Schools 
Councillor Murphy, Deputy Leader 

Apologies: 
Councillors Alijah and McHale 
Ms J Fleet, Primary Sector Teacher Representative 

CYP/21/01 Minutes 

Decision 

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 2 December 
2020. 

CYP/21/02 Children and Education Services Budget 2021/22

The Committee received a report of the Strategic Director of Children and Education 
Services which outlined the financial management and leadership of the Directorate’s 
budget, the financial position which included demography, growth of demand and a 
series of savings options proposed by officers aligned to the remit of the Committee 
to contribute to the Council’s duty to achieve a balanced budget in 2021/22. The 
report also set out the impact the options would have on residents and the workforce.  
It noted that the Council’s budget proposals for 2021/22 and onwards would be 
subject to further refinement following feedback from public consultation and scrutiny 
committees and that final budget proposals would be made to Scrutiny and Executive 
in February 2021.  The report reflected the fact that the Council had declared a 
climate emergency by making carbon reduction a key consideration in the Council’s 
planning and budget proposals. 

Page 61

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 13 January 2021 

Officers referred to the main points and themes within the report, which included: 

• The background and context; 
• Directorate budget approach; 
• Directorate Revenue Budget 2021/22 and proposed savings; 
• Changes to the report since it was last considered at the Committee’s meeting 

on 4 November 2020; 
• The impact on the workforce and Manchester residents; and 
• Next steps. 

Some of the key points and themes that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
were: 

• Whether the proposed savings rated as “red” in the table appended to the 
report could be looked at again and whether there were any alternatives that 
could be considered; 

• Concern about the proposal relating to the Children and Parent Service, 
outlined at point 4.56 in the report, noting the considerable benefits of early 
intervention in improving outcomes for children and families and reducing the 
need for more expensive interventions later on; 

• The impact of COVID-19 on families and on Children’s Services; 
• Request for further clarification on the information relating to residential 

placements, including the plans for Lyndene Children’s Home; 
• Concern about the proposed cut to funding for interventions to support the 

improvement of maintained schools outlined at points 4.47 and 4.48 in the 
report; and 

• Request for further clarification on the savings relating to Unaccompanied 
Asylum Seeking Children (UASC) and the impact of these. 

The Strategic Director of Children and Education Services informed the Committee 
that, as the majority of the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) was allocated to schools 
and 47% of the Children’s Services budget was spent on care provision for children, 
the opportunities and areas of the budget where savings could be made was limited.  
He advised that these areas were interconnected so changes in one area of the 
service would have an impact elsewhere and that none of these proposals were 
without risk.   

In response to Members’ comments about the impact of the pandemic, the Strategic 
Director of Children and Education Services advised that there had been an increase 
in requests for advice and support and an increase in referrals to Children’s Services, 
which had included an increase in issues relating to domestic abuse but that the 
number of children becoming Looked After had not significantly increased so far.  He 
advised that it was a challenging situation as it was more difficult to predict future 
demand.  He also outlined some of work that was currently being developed to 
support children and families during this time, including short break provision for 
children attending special schools, sessions for children and young people, similar to 
the summer holiday provision, and help with paying utility bills for families who were 
struggling financially. 

Page 62

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 13 January 2021 

The Strategic Director of Children and Education Services informed Members that 
Lyndene was a commissioned children’s home and that the children and young 
people being placed there predominantly had additional health needs, learning 
disabilities and autism spectrum disorder.  He outlined work taking place with health 
colleagues to commission specialist provision and re-purpose the home to improve 
outcomes for these children.  He suggested that the Committee might want to look at 
this work further at a future meeting. 

In response to a Member’s question, the Strategic Director of Children and Education 
Services clarified that it was proposed to re-purpose three Child and Adolescent 
Mental Health Services (CAMHS) workers to work with foster families to reduce the 
risk of foster care placements breaking down.  He informed Members that unplanned 
endings of foster care placements could result in significantly increased costs if the 
young person had to be placed in a residential children’s home. 

The Strategic Director of Children and Education Services reported that, as 
Manchester was now receiving more UASC, this enabled the work to support them to 
be more intelligence-led and for better commissioning arrangements, based on 
contracts for supporting a number of young people rather than buying ad hoc support 
for individual children.  He informed the Committee that the Home Office had also 
recently increased the grant payment to the Council for UASC.  Therefore, he 
advised, that the savings in this area did not represent a reduction in the quality of 
support provided to these young people.  He suggested that the Committee might 
want to look at the work taking place to secure settled status for these young people.  

In response to a Member’s question, the Strategic Director of Children and Education 
Services outlined the support provided to Care Leavers and advised the Committee 
that a report providing more information on this would be submitted to the next 
meeting of the Corporate Parenting Panel. 

The Chair noted the improvements that had been made in Children’s Services in 
recent years, expressed disappointment that the Council had been put in this 
financial position due to the level of funding provided by the national government and 
expressed concern that this could impact on these services in future. 

Decisions 

1. That the Committee does not support the proposal for the revised parenting 
commission at 4.56 in the report, which would reduce the number of families 
receiving this support, and believes that this reduction in early intervention 
would result in increased costs later on. 

2. That the Committee does not support the proposed cut to funding for 
interventions to support the improvement of maintained schools outlined at 
points 4.47 and 4.48 in the report, particularly in light of the impact that 
COVID-19 is having on children’s education. 

3. To receive further information on the plans to re-purpose Lyndene Children’s 
Home in a future report. 

Page 63

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 13 January 2021 

4. That the Committee will monitor the impact of the transformation of CAMHS.   

CYP/21/03 Update on Schools and Their Response to COVID-19  

The Committee received a report of the Director of Education which provided a 
further update on the impact of COVID-19 on schools in the city and how this had 
been responded to during the Autumn term 2020. Members were also provided with 
an update on how the situation had changed since the report had been published. 

Some of the main points and themes highlighted by the Director of Education 
included: 

• The remote learning offer; 
• How the COVID Winter Grant was used to make provision over Christmas for 

children and young people eligible for Free School Meals; 
• The announcement the previous week that schools and colleges would only 

be open for vulnerable children and children of critical workers, with other 
children accessing remote learning from home;  

• The cancellation of GCSE and A-level examinations, noting that the Council 
and schools were still awaiting further guidance on how pupils’ grades would 
be assessed; and 

• Testing for COVID-19 in schools. 

The Executive Member for Children and Schools expressed concern about how the 
situation had been managed by the Department for Education (DfE) and outlined the 
challenges that schools had faced.  

Some of the key points and themes that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
were: 

• Sharing the Executive Member’s concern about the way the situation had 
been managed by the national government, in particular the Secretary of State 
for Education, including that decisions were being made late and were not well 
communicated; 

• The impact of this on schools and pressure on schools’ senior leadership 
teams; 

• To thank officers and the Executive Member for their work supporting schools 
during this challenging time; 

• The challenges that schools were facing due to the high number of families 
who met the criteria for being critical workers; 

• To highlight that schools and colleges offering vocational qualifications to 
students in Key Stage 4 and Key Stage 5 were informed that the examinations 
did not have to go ahead less than 12 hours before they were due to start; 

• That it was important to remember and to continue to remind government that 
Manchester schools had been dealing with high infection rates since 
September 2020, including over 17,000 pupils having to self-isolate, and the 
impact this had had; 

• Request for more information on COVID-19 testing in schools, including 
whether it would be voluntary; 

Page 64

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 13 January 2021 

• The challenges of remote learning, including pupils’ access to the internet and 
devices and whether the expectations for the amount of remote learning taking 
place were sustainable; 

• The impact of the pandemic on pupils in Years 10 and 12 who were due to 
take GCSE and A-level examinations in 2022; 

• Concern that there was a lack of consistency between schools about requiring 
staff to come into the school building to deliver online lessons; and 

• That providing food parcels to families who were entitled to Free School Meals 
instead of vouchers or money was inappropriate and stemmed from negative 
attitudes towards and lack of trust in working class families. 

The Director of Education clarified that COVID-19 testing in schools was currently 
voluntary and only for secondary and college-age students who were attending 
school.  She reported that, even where families had internet access, many did not 
have a separate device for each school-age child to use and that feedback indicated 
that secondary-age children were being given priority for this in many families; 
however, she advised that remote learning did not have to take place online.  She 
reported that children who did not have access to remote learning or a quiet space at 
home to work were now classed as vulnerable pupils who could continue to attend 
school but that this added to the challenges schools were facing with the number of 
pupils who met the eligibility criteria for attending school.  She advised Members that, 
even if pupils were awarded fair GCSE and A-level grades which took into account 
the additional challenges children in this region had faced, they would still have 
missed out on their education and parts of the course content. 

The Executive Member for Children and Schools supported the Committee’s 
comments regarding Free School Meals.  He expressed concern about the quality of 
some of the food parcels provided to families and that benefits were not sufficient for 
people to be able to feed their children.  He advised Members that both schools and 
families were in a difficult position regarding the issue of which children should be in 
school and that there needed to be better communication to employers about who 
should or should not still be going into work and appropriate financial support put in 
place.  He informed Members of the positive feedback from schools about the 
support they had received from the Council during the pandemic.   

In response to Members’ questions, the Director of Education reported that 
Alternative Provision was required to remain open for all pupils and that 
supplementary schools could stay open, although many supplementary schools had 
chosen to move to remote learning, and that both these types of settings were being 
provided with support and guidance by her team.  She outlined how the Council was 
working to achieve a consistent approach across the city, liaising with trade unions 
and sending Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) and other communications to all 
schools. 

Decisions 

1. To thank the Director of Education and her team for all the support they 
have provided to schools during the pandemic and to ask her to pass those 
thanks on. 

Page 65

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 13 January 2021 

2. To agree that the Chair of the Committee writes to the Prime Minister and 
the Secretary of State for Education to raise concerns that the Secretary of 
State is not fit for the post.   

CYP/21/04 Our Manchester Strategy Reset - Draft Strategy 

The Committee received a report of the Strategic Director of Children and Education 
Services which provided an update on the draft Our Manchester Strategy – Forward 
to 2025 reset document. A draft of the reset Strategy was appended to the report.  
The report noted that achieving Manchester’s zero carbon target was reflected 
throughout the work on the Our Manchester Strategy reset and would be clearly 
captured in the final reset document. 

The main points and themes within the report included: 

• The background to the Our Manchester Strategy reset; 
• Our Manchester Strategy – Forward to 2025; 
• Final design and communications; and 
• Next steps. 

A Member expressed concern that, although the COVID-19 pandemic was referred 
to in the Strategy, it did not fully reflect the impact of the pandemic across all areas of 
the Strategy.  The Deputy Leader advised Members that it was difficult to fully reflect 
how the situation would develop as it was still changing but that it was important to 
ensure that the city was in the right position to react to changes and to enable local 
residents to benefit.  He reported that the Strategy was subject to change and that 
the Council had tried to engage on it with residents who would not normally respond.  
He informed Members that the Strategy aimed to set down key principles and a 
vision of where the city should be in five years’ time. 

Decision 

To note the report and to thank everyone for their work on the Strategy. 

CYP/21/05 Overview Report

A report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit was submitted. The overview 
report contained key decisions within the Committee’s remit, responses to previous 
recommendations and the Committee’s work programme, which the Committee was 
asked to approve. 

The Chair informed the Committee that he had discussed with another Committee 
Member the impact of the pandemic on the mental health of young people and their 
families, including both positive and negative aspects, and a suggestion that the 
Committee should receive a report about this at a future meeting.  He advised that he 
would this discuss with officers after the meeting. 

Decision 

To note the report and agree the work programme, subject to the above comment. 

Page 66

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Neighbourhoods and Environment Scrutiny Committee  2 December 2020 

Neighbourhoods and Environment Scrutiny Committee

Minutes of the meeting held on 2 December 2020

This Scrutiny meeting was conducted via Zoom, in accordance with the 
provisions of The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) 
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England 
and Wales) Regulations 2020.

Present:
Councillor Igbon – in the Chair 
Councillors Azra Ali, Appleby, Butt, Flanagan, Hassan, Hughes, Jeavons, Kilpatrick, 
Lynch, Lyons, Whiston, White and Wright  

Apologies: Councillor Razaq 

Also present:
Councillor Akbar, Executive Member for Neighbourhoods 
Councillor Rahman, Executive Member for Skills, Culture and Leisure 
Jo Walby, CEO, Mustard Tree 
John Ryan, Hub Manager, Shelter 

NESC/20/51  Minutes

Decision 

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 4 November 2020 as a correct 
record. 

NESC/20/52  Homelessness Update

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Homelessness that provided 
an update on the work that was taking place to tackle homelessness and rough 
sleeping in the city. 

The main points and themes within the report included: -  

• The numbers of homeless presentations by month in 2020; 
• Number of homelessness presentations by recorded area of where the applicant 

presented from; 
• Data on the number of Section 21 and Evictions; 
• An overview of the Housing Solutions Service; 
• Facilities to support and accommodate Homeless People; 
• Voluntary sector providers who support homeless people with accommodation 

and other services; 
• An update on the Bed Every Night scheme; 
• Describing the 2020/2021 Cold Weather Plans 
• ‘Everyone In’ - accommodation during the Covid Crisis update; 

Page 67

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Neighbourhoods and Environment Scrutiny Committee  2 December 2020 

• Next Steps Accommodation Programme (NSAP) overview; 
• Rough Sleeping Accommodation Programme (RSAP) overview; 
• Information on the ‘Protect Programme’, a new scheme to help protect some of 

the most vulnerable people in our communities from COVID-19; 
• Inspections of Temporary Accommodation information; 
• The length of time people stayed in temporary accommodation; and 
• Information on the work of the Homeless Partnership and Prevention Work. 

The Committee heard from Jo Walby, CEO, Mustard Tree and John Ryan, Hub 
Manager, Shelter who had been invited to the meeting to discuss their experience of 
responding to homelessness in Manchester. 

Jo Walby provided an overview of the history and work of Mustard Tree, describing 
that they aimed to combat poverty; support the homeless and offer support around 
training and employment. She stated that during the pandemic they had used their 
furniture vans to deliver food to vulnerable and shielding residents. She described 
that they had worked closely with Officers from the Council to coordinate this activity. 
She said that Mustard Tree also offered support to those that were digitally excluded 
to access welfare benefits and other means of support.  

Jo Walby described that they had experienced an increased number of people 
seeking advice and support on the issue of debt and Mustard Tree were using the 
Hardship Fund that they had available to pay off rent arrears and avoid evictions.  
She commented that issues of mental health, addiction and relationship breakdown 
were all contributing to the issue of homelessness within the city, noting that funding 
cuts had been experienced in drug and alcohol services and she called upon the 
Government for an equality of funding for these services. She commented that she 
predicted that there would be an increase in homelessness in the new year.  

Jo Walby paid tribute to the Homelessness Team within Manchester City Council and 
when asked what the Council could do to support the work of Mustard Tree she 
stated that the issue of eradicating homelessness should be a high priority for the 
Council and the Planning Policy, and all other available Council strategies should 
prioritise addressing homelessness.    

John Ryan, Hub Manager, Shelter provided an overview of the service that Shelter 
provided that included offering advice on debt; welfare benefits; housing and 
homelessness. He described that Shelter had experienced a significant increase in 
the number of people accessing the service, especially on the issue of homelessness 
and the threat of homelessness.  

John Ryan described the work of Inspiring Change Manchester, a programme that 
had been established to make sure that when the most vulnerable people did seek 
help in a crisis, there was no ‘wrong door’ and that agencies could work together to 
put in place the support needed, no matter what the first point of contact. He 
explained that this had been designed with the voice of people who had lived 
experience of multiple needs. 

John Ryan stated that the reasons for people approaching Shelter for advice was 
varied and included debt, rent arrears, domestic violence and young people having to 

Page 68

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Neighbourhoods and Environment Scrutiny Committee  2 December 2020 

leave the family home. He stated there were difficulties experienced by people 
accessing homeless accommodation, especially women and young single people 
without high need. He further described that loneliness and mental health were 
significant contributing factors. 

When asked what the Council could do to support the work of Shelter, John Ryan 
stated the need and importance of building affordable homes at scale, adding that 
this would also support the ability to move families on from temporary 
accommodation to more appropriate housing. He further called for an immediate end 
to the Right to Buy scheme to protect the availability of affordable homes. He called 
for adequate funding for services, including the Entrenched Rough Sleeper Service 
and Housing First. He described that the reduction and cuts to those services 
designed to support vulnerable people had a significant impact on their mental and 
physical health, which eventually placed increased pressure on services and 
contributed to the increased numbers of homeless. 

John Ryan stated that he also predicted an increase in the numbers of homeless in 
the new year period when it is expected that the suspension of the ability of private 
landlords to issue a Section 21 (Notice to Quit) is lifted. In response to a question 
from a Member he stated that Discretionary Housing Payments had prevented many 
people becoming homeless in the Private Rented Sector.

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  

• Noting that debt was a major contribution to homelessness and there was an 
increase in the number of people who were working homeless and sleeping in 
cars;

• Calling for an increase in the provision of affordable homes in Manchester;
• What provision is available to those entrenched rough sleepers who may have 

previously refused assistance by services;
• Had Discretionary Housing Payments contributed to reducing rent arrears and 

subsequent evictions and what would be the implications if this were to be 
removed;

• Noting the potential increase in Section 21 notices being issued by Private 
Landlords following the temporary suspension the role of the Housing Solutions 
Service was important;   

• Requesting an update report on the revised Housing Allocations Policy that had 
previously been reported to the Committee;

• Noting that giving food and money directly to people who were sleeping rough 
was an understandable and immediate response by people who witnessed a 
person sleeping rough, however this was not the most appropriate way to resolve 
homelessness, how could citizens wishing to help best support them;

• Requesting a further breakdown by reason on the figures presented that detailed 
the number of homeless presentations;

• Requesting that in future update reports submitted to the Committee comparative 
annual data on the numbers housed in temporary homeless accommodation 
should be reported; 

• What was being done to move people on from temporary accommodation;
• Welcoming the reported activities to support people access substance misuse 

and mental health services;

Page 69

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Neighbourhoods and Environment Scrutiny Committee  2 December 2020 

• Recognising that short term funding streams to address homelessness impeded 
the ability to plan and deliver services long term;

• Who should the public contact out of office hours to seek support for someone 
they discover rough sleeping;

• Noting that despite a manifesto promise the government had failed to address the 
issue of homelessness and had failed to fund local authorities appropriately;

• Requesting further details on the findings from the inspections of temporary 
accommodation, including details of any hazards identified;

• What support was available to people who were homeless but had no recourse to 
public funds; and 

• Would Manchester continue to contribute to the funding of the Bed Every Night 
service. 

The Director of Homelessness described that the Homelessness Service discharged 
the statutory duty of the local authority in regard to homelessness, however it was 
recognised and understood that a wider ‘safety net’ for the homeless and those at 
risk of homelessness was required. He stated that the service was a member of the 
wider Homeless Partnership that consisted of public, private, charity, faith sector, 
education and voluntary sector organisations that was detailed within the report. 

The Director of Homelessness described that Manchester provided a Cold Weather 
Provision that was above the statutory requirement, commenting that this provision 
allowed for services to engage with people in a meaningful manner and work to 
stopping them returning to the streets. He described that the Homeless Service 
approach, and the challenge he has given the service is to look at outcomes rather 
than process as the method of delivering improved outcomes for those people in 
Manchester experiencing homelessness.   

The Director of Homelessness informed the Committee that the dedicated Section 21 
team had Officers with specialist knowledge of this area of tenancy law and had been 
successful in challenging notices that had been issued incorrectly by landlords. He 
stated that this engagement with landlords had allowed officers the opportunity to 
negotiate with landlords on behalf of the tenant to maintain the tenancy or work with 
the tenant to find alternative solutions and prevent homelessness. He stated that they 
were looking to retain this service within the budget considerations. He further 
informed the Members that conversations were ongoing with the Combined Authority 
around the issue of the future funding arrangements of the Bed for every Night 
(ABEN) scheme. 

The Director of Homelessness acknowledged the comment made regarding the 
immediate response to offer a homeless person food or money; however, this was 
often counter productive. He advised that residents wishing to support homeless 
people should contribute to the many different charities offering practical help and 
support to the homeless in Manchester and he made reference to the Big Change 
Manchester campaign and day of action campaigns to raise awareness of this issue.  

In response to the question relating to those homeless people without recourse to 
public funds, they would be directed to charitable organisations for advice and 
support. 

Page 70

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Neighbourhoods and Environment Scrutiny Committee  2 December 2020 

In response to the question regarding out of hours contacts, the Director of 
Homelessness informed the Members that after 8pm the contact number was 
diverted to the Longford Centre provision, this could also be diverted to the Women’s 
Direct Access Centre as appropriate. The Chair requested that contact details should 
be circulated to the Members following the meeting. 

The Director of Homelessness further commented that the information as to the 
reasons for presentations and information relating to the inspection of temporary 
accommodation would be provided, commenting further that people placed in 
temporary accommodation were provided with the details of a dedicated officer. 

In regard to a specific request from a Member for further information on the Protect 
Programme that was referenced within the report, the  new scheme to help protect 
some of the most vulnerable people in our communities from COVID-19, the Chair 
requested that this information is provided by Officers to the Member following the 
meeting.  

The Strategic Lead for Homelessness did advise that the Protect Programme was 
designed to work with people who sleep rough who were entrenched, and this work 
was being supported by dedicated social workers and mental health workers to 
provide a wrap around service. She further described the challenge to plan and 
deliver innovative schemes and programmes due to the short term funding 
arrangements provided to local authorities stating that long term funding was 
required. 

The Executive Member for Skills, Culture and Leisure stated that Manchester 
remained committed to helping and supporting the most vulnerable residents in the 
city. He stated that the Government had imposed austerity on the city and repeated 
cuts to enable the delivery of appropriate services. He said that despite the 
Government’s manifesto pledge to address homelessness they had repeatedly failed 
to fund this action. He stated that he further called upon the Government to support 
the building at scale of affordable housing to meet the demand.  

The Chair concluded this item of business by expressing her appreciation to the 
invited guests, the Executive Member, all staff working with the homelessness 
service and the Voluntary Community and Social Enterprise Sector who were 
working to support the most vulnerable residents in the city. 

Decisions 

The Committee; 

1. Note the report and place on record their appreciation to all staff and volunteers 
working to tackle homelessness and offer support to the most vulnerable 
residents within the city. 

2. Recommend that the Executive Member for Skills, Culture and Leisure write to 
the Government to lobby for an adequate funding settlement to support the 
delivery of work to tackle homelessness. 

Page 71

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Neighbourhoods and Environment Scrutiny Committee  2 December 2020 

3. Recommend that the Executive Member for Skills, Culture and Leisure write to all 
Manchester MPs to raise awareness of this issue and request their support in the 
lobbying of Government for an adequate funding settlement for Manchester.

4. Recommend that an update report on the revised Housing Allocations Policy be 
included on the Committee’s Work Programme for consideration at the March 
2021 meeting.

NESC/20/53 Compliance and Enforcement Service - Performance in 
2019/20

The Committee considered the report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) that 
provided an update on demand for and performance of the Compliance and 
Enforcement service during 2019/20. 

The main points and themes within the report included: -  

• An overview of the teams that make up the Compliance and Enforcement 
services;

• Information and data on overall demand; 
• An update on Proactive Activity; 
• A breakdown by ward of the number of fly-tipping cases by month with 

comparisons against the previous year’s figures; 
• Information on where the additional investment to tackle fly-tipping had been 

spent;
• Data by ward on the number and nature of calls to the Out of Hours service during 

the first Covid-19 lockdown period; and
• Case studies.

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  

• Waste and fly tipping in areas of North Manchester remained an issue; 
• What work was being undertaken with the Universities to address Anti-Social 

Behaviour caused by students; 
• What action was being taken to address waste generated by HMOs (Houses in 

Multiple Occupation); 
• Further information was sought on the work of the Biffa Investigation Team; 
• Data on the types of enforcement action by ward was requested; 
• Noting the prevalence of commercial waste, often in district centres and asking 

what was being done to address this; 
• Did Officers engage with Letting Agents when seeking to address issues; 
• Clarification was sought on the reported number of prosecutions generated as a 

result of the 2-year pilot scheme that saw the introduction of 8 overt mobile CCTV 
cameras and 6 concealed cameras that were deployed across the city to tackle fly 
tipping; 

• Was the money from fines issued following a successful prosecution invested 
back into the service; 

Page 72

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Neighbourhoods and Environment Scrutiny Committee  2 December 2020 

• Issue arose related to terraced properties and the imposition of communal bins as 
opposed to individual household bins; 

• What were the priorities for the service next year; 

In response to the questions raised the Head of Compliance, Enforcement and 
Community Safety explained that the Biffa Investigation Team, in addition to 
removing fly tipping would seek to identify any persons who were responsible for the 
fly tipping and using the evidence obtained enforcement action could be taken 
against those who illegally disposed of their waste. 

The Head of Compliance, Enforcement and Community Safety stated that any 
money from fines was retained by the Treasury, only monies generated through the 
issuing of a Fixed Penalty Notices and and civil penaly notices could be retained by 
the local authority. 

The Neighbourhood Compliance Manager (Neighbourhoods) addressed the question 
regarding the rates of prosecutions generated by the investment into CCTV cameras 
by describing the challenges in obtaining evidence as a result of criminality, however 
he expected the figures to increase as the judicial system had been delayed due to 
the impact of the pandemic. 

The Head of Compliance, Enforcement and Community Safety stated that a lot of 
work had been undertaken with landlords of HMO properties around a range of 
issues, including student behaviour and appropriate waste management and the 
report provided examples of these. She further stated that the teams would work with 
all parties to resolve issues, including commercial premises and letting agents and 
that when appropriate, enforcement action would be taken.

In response to the comments regarding ongoing issues in the Cheetham Hill area the 
Head of Compliance, Enforcement and Community Safety commented that a lot of 
targeted work had been delivered in the area in an attempt to resolve the ongoing 
issues. She acknowledged the comment from the local Member and advised that  
Officers would contact the Member following the meeting to discuss further. 

In response to the question regarding the priorities for the service next year, the 
Head of Compliance, Enforcement and Community Safety advised that they would 
be similar to this year with a continued focus on addressing issues of waste and fly 
tipping, further adding that residents needed to take responsibility for disposing of 
their waste in an appropriate and responsible manner.  

The Head of Compliance, Enforcement and Community Safety stated that the service 
had responded well during the pandemic and she remained confident that the service 
would continue to be flexible, working collaboratively with partner agencies to 
respond to the challenges of the pandemic and any changes announced as the 
lockdown was eased and Tiers introduced. This includes flexing shift patterns of the 
LOOH to meet the demands of the service.

The Executive Member for Neighbourhoods stated that he wished to place on record 
his appreciation to all of the staff working within the various Neighbourhood Teams 
for all of their continued hard work and dedication to residents during the previous 

Page 73

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Neighbourhoods and Environment Scrutiny Committee  2 December 2020 

challenging year. He further stated that target hardening work had been delivered in 
North Manchester to address fly tipping hotspots and to support this a 
communication campaign would be delivered. In relation to the issues raised 
regarding terraced properties he stated that the Passageway Container Service 
Improvement Programme, as reported to the Committee at their meeting of 7 October 
2020 would address the concerns raised by the Member. 

Decisions 

The Committee; 

1. Note the report and express their appreciation to all of the staff working within the 
various Neighbourhood Teams for their continued hard work and dedication to 
residents during the previous challenging year. 

2. Recommend that post Covid Neighbourhood Teams work with partners, including 
registered housing providers and local businesses to actively engage with 
residents and stake holders on the issue of responsible waste management. 

[Councillor Appleby declared a personal and non-prejudicial interest as her partner is 
employed by Biffa.]

NESC/20/54  Overview Report 

The report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit which contained key 
decisions within the Committee’s remit and responses to previous recommendations 
was submitted for comment. Members were also invited to agree the Committee’s 
future work programme.  

A Member recommended that in addition to the items already scheduled a report be 
included for consideration at the February 2021 meeting that describes the progress 
made to date against the Council’s Climate Change Action Plan.  In addition to this, 
the report would include details of progress to deliver on the specific actions as 
prescribed within the Motion that was adopted in July 2019 when the Council 
declared a climate emergency. 

A Member recommended that a progress report on the delivery of the Extension to 
Selective Licensing Schemes, previously reported to the Committee be considered at 
the March 2021 meeting. 

The Committee endorsed these recommendations. 

Decision 

To note the report and agree the work programme, subject to the above and noting 
the decision taken during consideration of a previous agenda item to include an item 
on the revised Housing Allocations Policy, to be added for consideration at the March 
2021 meeting.

Page 74

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Neighbourhoods and Environment Scrutiny Committee  13 January 2021 

Neighbourhoods and Environment Scrutiny Committee

Minutes of the meeting held on 13 January 2021

This Scrutiny meeting was conducted via Zoom, in accordance with the 
provisions of The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) 
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England 
and Wales) Regulations 2020.
Present:

Councillor Igbon – in the Chair 
Councillors Azra Ali, Appleby, Butt, Flanagan, Hassan, Hughes, Jeavons, Kilpatrick, 
Lynch, Lyons, Razaq, White and Wright  

Apologies: Councillors Sadler and Whiston 

Also present:
Councillor Murphy, Deputy Leader 
Councillor Akbar, Executive Member for Neighbourhoods 
Councillor Rahman, Executive Member for Skills, Culture and Leisure 
Councillor Stogia, Executive Member for Environment, Planning and Transport 

NESC/21/01 Minutes

Decision 

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 2 December 2021 as a correct 
record. 

NESC/21/02 Neighbourhoods Directorate Budget Proposals 2021/22

The Committee considered the report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) that 
provided a further update to the Scrutiny committee on the savings proposals being 
proposed as part of the 2021/22 budget process and reflected any feedback from the 
November Scrutiny committees. The savings proposals would be considered by all 
six Scrutiny Committees for those areas within their remit, prior to going out to public 
consultation.  

The Committee was invited to consider and comment on the savings proposals 
identified prior to being considered by Executive.  

The main points and themes within the report included: -  

• Funding announcements in the government’s spending review on 25 November 
2020 and provisional local government finance settlement on 17th December 
2020 suggested the Council would not be facing the worst-case scenario for 
21/22, which was a shortfall of around £100m; 

• It was now expected that savings in the region of £50m, as previously identified, 
would be sufficient; 

Page 75

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Neighbourhoods and Environment Scrutiny Committee  13 January 2021 

• Providing a further update to the Scrutiny committee on the savings proposals 
being proposed as part of the 2021/22 budget process and reflected any feedback 
from the November Scrutiny committees; 

• Savings within the overall Neighbourhoods directorate included proposals of 
£7.376m requiring an FTE (full-time equivalent) reduction of 2.  Due to lead in 
time around investments etc, the £7.376m would be phased over the period 
2021/22- 2024/25, with an initial £6.683m being delivered in 2021/22;  

• Charging residents for replacement waste bins would not be considered for 
2021/22; 

• Outlining the Budget Savings Proposals; and 
• Noting that as part of implementing the savings proposals an Equality Impact 

Relevancy Assessment would be undertaken for each of the proposals. 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  

• Welcoming the withdrawal of the option to charge residents for the replacement of 
waste bins; 

• Further information was requested on the proposals for the animal welfare 
service; 

• Stating that the Government had failed to fund local authorities appropriatley over 
many years and had failed to reimburse Councils for the additional finincial 
presuures incurred as a result of COVID-19; and 

• Further information was sought on the reported introduction of new charges for 
providing advice to businesses.  

The Deputy Leader stated that he agreed with the comments from the Members 
regarding the ongoing failure of the Government to adequately fund the Council. He 
stated that rather than fairly fund services they were relying on Councils to introduce 
a rise in the Council Tax charge. He stated this was a punitive and regressive 
approach adopted by the Government. He stated that despite this the Council 
remained committed to delivering the best services on behalf of the residents of the 
city with the funds that were available. 

In regard to the removal of any proposal to charge residents for the replacement of 
waste bins in this round of budget considerations, the Executive Member for 
Neighbourhoods stated that the importance of this was recognised and how this 
contributed to the Councils recycling targets and the impact on the levels of flytipping. 
He stated that whilst any cuts to services were always unpalatable, he expressed 
caution that this option may need to be revisited in future years budget 
considerations, adding that the Committee would be kept informed of any future 
proposals. 

The Head of Compliance, Enforcement and Community Safety stated that if the 
animal welfare service proposal was agreed, work would be progressed to develop a 
service specification prior to the tendering of this contract. 

The Head of Compliance, Enforcement and Community Safety also provided 
examples of the type of opportunities that existed to generate revenue through 
providing advice to businesses e.g. in respect of a food business providing a pre-

Page 76

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Neighbourhoods and Environment Scrutiny Committee  13 January 2021 

inspection visit to advise on measures needed to ensure compliance before the 
official inspection and rating. 

The Chair stated that an audit of all road safety measures around schools should be 
undertaken and capital funding be used to fund the delivery of appropriate signage 
and road markings to improve road safety around all Manchester schools where any 
deficiencies were identified. 

Decision 

The Committee; 

1. Endorse the savings proposals identified to the Executive;

2. Recommend that the Executive Member for Environment, Planning and Transport 
considers undertaking an audit of all road safety measures around schools and 
capital funding be used to fund the delivery of appropriate signage and road 
markings to improve road safety around all Manchester schools where any 
deficiencies are identified. 

NESC/21/03 Homelessness Directorate Budget and Savings Options 2021/22 

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Homelessness provided the 
high level budget context and priorities for Homelessness across 2021/22 and the 
feedback from the budget conversation, which had been used for the development of 
savings options 2021/22 and investment requirements to fund population driven and 
other budget pressures 

The Committee was invited to consider and comment on the savings proposals 
identified prior to being considered by Executive.  

The main points and themes within the report included: -  

• Funding announcements in the government’s spending review on 25 November 
2020 and provisional local government finance settlement on 17th December 
2020 suggested the Council would not be facing the worst-case scenario for 
21/22, which was a shortfall of around £100m; 

• It was now expected that savings in the region of £50m, as previously identified, 
would be sufficient; 

• The overall approach to the budget strategy had been to align with the 4 key 
strategic aims of the service and to utilise the investment to maintain frontline 
delivery in support of these aims, keeping service reductions to a minimum; 

• The budget strategy for Homelessness had been to contain the cost of rising need 
for temporary accommodation within available resources whilst also prioritising 
resources towards service developments that would achieve the service’s priority 
to prevent and reduce the incidence of homelessness; 

• Noting that the greatest risk for the priorities of the service and the budget 
strategy was the continuing rise in need which was likely to be exacerbated by the 
impact of Covid-19 and the uncertainty of short term funding; 

Page 77

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Neighbourhoods and Environment Scrutiny Committee  13 January 2021 

• The Service Transformation Programme would form the core of the approach to 
tackling and reducing homelessness over the next three years. It would be the 
framework in which reductions in temporary accommodation and rough sleeping 
would be achieved through a radical reorganisation of the Homelessness Service 
and its activities. 

• Savings Options and Proposals; and 
• Workforce Impact. 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  

• What was the impact of recent changes to the lifting of the restriction on evictions 
in the Private Rented Sector, introduced as a result of COVID-19 on 
homelessness services; 

• Consideration should be given to providing in-house temporary homelessness 
accommodating as this would allow for better control of quality and management; 

• Further information was sought on the delivery of the A Bed Every Night (ABEN) 
scheme;   

• Noting the Protect Programme funding that had been awarded as a result of 
COVID-19, was there a commitment from Government to continue funding this 
programme; and 

• Could the Council’s reserves be used to support homelessness services. 

The Executive Member for Skills, Culture and Leisure stated that despite the 
promises made to Manchester and all other local authorities that financial assistance 
would be made available to support councils to accommodate homeless people 
during the pandemic this had not been provided. He described this as a failure of 
government, however despite this Manchester had responded to the situation and 
sought to support the most vulnerable residents in the city and he now called upon 
the government to fund Manchester appropriately and fairly.   

The Executive Member for Skills, Culture and Leisure reiterated that the proposals 
did not represent a cut in services, but rather savings were to be achieved through a 
service redesigning. He described that that the reasons for homeless presentations 
were varied, however recognised that the removal of the protection from eviction 
would have an impact on the number of presentations. The Members were also 
advised that the proposals also protected the current ABEN spaces and there was no 
requirement to draw down on the Council’s reserves. 

The Executive Member for Skills, Culture and Leisure described the challenge to plan 
and deliver innovative schemes and programmes to tackle homelessness due to the 
short term funding arrangements provided to local authorities, stating that long term 
funding was required. He informed the Committee that the Manchester 
Homelessness Partnership had written to the Secretary of State to lobby on this 
issue. 

In response to the question regarding the suggestion of providing in-house temporary 
accommodation, the Executive Director of Adult Social Services stated that a 
response to this would be provided following the meeting. 

Page 78

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Neighbourhoods and Environment Scrutiny Committee  13 January 2021 

The Chair stated that the work of the homelessness team and all voluntary 
organisations was important and valued in addressing homelessness in Manchester. 
She stated the importance of the preventative work undertaken and stated that the 
Committee should be kept informed of any changed to the service, 

Decision 

The Committee endorse the savings proposals identified to the Executive.

NESC/21/04 Our Manchester Strategy Reset – Draft Strategy 

The Committee considered the report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) that 
provided an update on the draft Our Manchester Strategy – Forward to 2025 reset 
document. The draft of the reset Strategy is appended to this report.  

Our Manchester Strategy – Forward to 2025 would reset Manchester’s priorities for 
the next five years to ensure we could still achieve the city’s ambition set out in the 
Our Manchester Strategy 2015 – 2025. 

The main points and themes within the report included: -  

• Describing the background to the Our Manchester Strategy reset; 
• Providing an overview of the Our Manchester Strategy – Forward to 2025; 
• Describing the final design and communications; and 
• Next Steps. 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  

• Some Member’s debated as to whether as a result of the ongoing pandemic it 
was an appropriate time to proceed with the reset; 

• Had any analysis of the previous strategy been undertaken; 
• Members welcomed the ambitious strategy as it was required to tackle issues of 

poverty and health inequlaity; 
• Noting that the consultation response rate had been good, despite the challenges 

presented by COVID-19; 
• Had the demographic characteristcs of repondants been recorded to ensure the 

views obtained reflected the city; 
• How were outcomes measured and reported; and 
• Did the Our Manchester Forum hold partners, such as Greater Manchester Police 

(GMP) and local health service providers to account.  

The Deputy Leader reiterated that this was not a new strategy, but rather a reset of 
an existing strategy to reflect on how the city would recover from the COVID-19 
pandemic. He stated that the report set out how the city was taking a lead on this 
issue and being on the ‘front foot’ as the city emerged from the pandemic. He 
described that there had been a lot of involvement in this programme of work, 
including consultation with local Members. 

The Policy and Partnerships Manager informed the Committee that information on 
the benchmarking data and respondent demographic data, where available had been 

Page 79

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Neighbourhoods and Environment Scrutiny Committee  13 January 2021 

reported to the November 2020 meeting of the Resources and Governance Scrutiny 
Committee. She further advised that it was important to note that the Our Manchester 
Strategy was not a Council strategy, but rather a city wide strategy that involved a 
range a partners, adding that the outcomes and progress was reported in the 
comprehensive State of the City report.  

The Policy and Partnerships Manager further advised the Committee that a 
comprehensive communications strategy had been established to maintain links and 
channels of ongoing dialogue with the different groups across the city who had 
contributed to the strategy. She stated this provided a mechanism to reflect on what 
they said to ensure their voice was captured and obtain feedback.  

In response to the question regarding holding partners to account, the Strategic 
Director (Neighbourhoods) advised that formal structures existed for overseeing the 
performance of partners such as GMP and health service. 

Following the discussion, the majority of the Members agreed that the final version of 
Our Manchester Strategy – Forward to 2025 should be taken for consideration by the 
Executive in February 2021.    

Decision 

The Committee recommend that the final version of Our Manchester Strategy – 
Forward to 2025 should be taken for consideration by the Executive in February 
2021.    

NESC/21/05 Manchester Green and Blue Strategy and Implementation Plan, 
including: Annual update and a report on the Tree Action Plan 

The Committee considered the report of the Strategic Director, Development that 
provided the annual update on the delivery of the Green and Blue Implementation 
Plan (G&BI ) together with information on the delivery of the Tree Action Plan. 

The main points and themes within the report included: -  

• The work on the green and blue agenda is an essential component of creating a 
climate resilient city and delivering Manchester’s Climate Change Action Plan; 

• The report addressed the current context within which this agenda was being 
delivered including the impact of Covid and the need to deliver an economic 
recovery that was both inclusive and environmentally sustainable;   

• Providing a background to the G&BI Strategy and Implementation Plan; 
• Describing the Manchester’s Tree Action Plan; 
• The role of the G&BI Board and the G&BI stakeholder Group; 
• The role of G&BI in delivering the Council’s Climate Change Action Plan; 
• The Impact of Covid; 
• Key delivery highlights from the G&BI Strategy on progress in 2020; and 
• Future Priorities. 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  

Page 80

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Neighbourhoods and Environment Scrutiny Committee  13 January 2021 

• Welcoming the recent delivery of trees in the Old Moat ward and what were the 
plans for the delivery of phase 1 and phase 2 of Tree Action MCR; 

• Noting the scale of ambition to plant trees, had consideration been given to 
training Council staff and staff in schools to equip them with the skills to help them 
maintain trees; 

• The species of trees should be the most appropriate for their intended location; 
• Consideration should be given to planting the species of the Manchester Poplar 

tree at appropriate sites;  
• There was no mention within the report of Bee network investment in the north of 

the city;  
• Every attempt should be made to protect tree’s, especially those that were lost as 

a result of development and consideration should be given to designating areas 
as conservation areas to offer that additional protection to trees from 
development; 

• Noting that the delivery of green infrastructure was ofen an element of any 
planning consent granted, what measures were taken to ensure these were 
delivered; 

• Noting the delviery of Mayfield Park, stating that this was a good example of 
partnership working to deliver viable green space to the residents of the city; 

• Noting the importance of quality green space had been highlighted during the 
pandamic; 

• How could Council owned land be used to promote and support local community 
wellbeing and green initiitves; and 

• What work was being done with Registered Housing Providers around this 
agenda. 

The Executive Member for Environment, Planning and Transport stated that there 
were a range of initiatives to be delivered in the north of the city, making reference to 
the Northern Gateway Development and the Rochdale Canal towpath scheme that 
would see the route improved for both walking and cycling, enhancing access to 
Manchester's waterways.  When completed the Rochdale Canal would provide a 
traffic free environment for local residents to walk and cycle along. She further 
commented that a schedule of projects to be delivered was planned and she would 
welcome feedback and suggestions from Members on these.  

The Executive Member for Environment, Planning and Transport commented that the 
designation of conservation areas would be considered as part of the Local Plan and 
she encouraged local Members if they deemed it appropriate for an area within their 
ward to progress this through via ward coordination.  

The Executive Member for Environment, Planning and Transport commented that the 
informed consideration was given as to the variety of tree species that were selected 
for any given location, adding that they were selected to maximise carbon capture 
and promote biodiversity.  

The Principal Planning Policy Officer responded to questions by advising that within 
the first phase of Tree Action MCR, wards had been identified that typically had fewer 
trees, including a lower percentage of street trees. Many of these wards were in the 
central part of Manchester, so the list had been amended to include some wards in 
the North and South to allow a wider geographical spread.  Wards not included in 

Page 81

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Neighbourhoods and Environment Scrutiny Committee  13 January 2021 

Phase 1 would have the opportunity for tree planting in Phase 2, adding that every 
ward would receive tree planting. She commented that this was in addition to the 
ongoing programme of works described within the report relating to community 
orchards. 

The Principal Tree Officer commented on the challenges presented by disease to the 
Manchester Poplar, however noted the comments from the Member regarding a 
disease resistant variety and suggested he discussed this with the Member following 
the meeting.  In response to the suggestion regarding training to support the ongoing 
maintenance of trees, he stated that they were a small team however this would be 
taken away from this meeting and discussed with City of Trees. 

The Director of Planning, Building Control and Licensing advised Members that 
where trees were to be lost as a result of development there was a condition that the 
developer replace these with a ratio of two trees planted for every one lost, adding 
that this was to be increased to three. In regard to any specific concerns regarding 
the delivery and maintenance of green space by developers she stated she would 
discuss this further with the Member following the meeting. She further welcomed the 
positive comments regarding the delivery of green space from the development of 
the Mayfield area, adding that the lessons learnt from the scheme would inform 
future regeneration projects. 

The Senior Policy Officer stated that positive relationships existed with local 
Registered Housing Providers and good practice regarding green and blue projects 
and initiatives was shared between them, however acknowledged more needed to be 
done to capture and report this activity. The Chair recommended that the information 
that was provided to Registered Housing Providers was circulated to members of the 
Committee. In response to the question relating to the use of land to facilitate and 
support community projects he recommended that Members discussed this with their 
local Neighbourhood Teams. 

Decision 

The Committee:- 

1. Recommend that Officers, in consultation with the Executive Member for 
Environment, Planning and Transport explore the options for delivering a 
programme of tree maintenance training. This training to be made available to 
all relevant partners, including staff working in schools. 

2. Recommended that the green and blue information that is provided to 
Registered Housing Providers is circulated to members of the Committee for 
information. 

NESC/21/06 Monitoring and Compliance – Construction Sites

The Committee considered the report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods); the 
Director of Planning, Building Control and Licensing and the Head of Compliance, 
Enforcement and Community Safety that had been submitted to provide information 
that had been requested by the Committee. 

Page 82

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Neighbourhoods and Environment Scrutiny Committee  13 January 2021 

The main points and themes within the report included: -  

• Known active construction sites across the authority; 
• The city’s start and end times for construction works to be undertaken and the 

rationale for those times; 
• How many neighbouring local authorities and other core cities had the same 

permitted construction times as Manchester; and 
• Information on the monitoring of construction sites and the approach taken to 

enforcement, including examples of types of breaches identified and how these 
were addressed. 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  

• The need to manage development to achieve the correct balance to support the 
development of the city and mitigate the impact and disruption to local residents, 
adding that city centre ward Members had supported resident campaigns on this 
issue; 

• How wre compaints managed, to date how many developers had been issued 
with a fine and what was the approach if disturbacnes and complaints arose from 
devleopments in neighbouring authorities; 

• Noting that trees were often removed as part of preliminary land clearance activity 
prior to any formal planning consent and conditions; 

• How many enforcement officers were employed; 
• Noting the contuned lack of communication wth local residents and Members to 

advise them of works to be undertaken, espicaily work undertaken at night; 
• The impact of temporary road closure on local neighbourhoods; and 
• Noting that the understaning amongst devlopers as to their responsiblities to local 

residents as part of the agreed Management Plans, with particualr reference 
given to inconsiderate parking. 

In response to the questions and comments raised by the Committee, the Executive 
Member for Environment, Planning and Transport acknowledged the concerns 
expressed relating to the impact on city centre residents as a result of development. 
She gave a commitment that she would progress the discussions on how best to 
address this with Members outside of the meeting, stressing that it was important to 
strike the correct balance. She stated that all complaints would be investigated and 
addressed with the developer concerned. 

The Director of Planning, Building Control and Licensing recognised that complaints 
did arise from Manchester residents as a result of development work being 
undertaken in neighbouring authorities. She advised that she would liaise with her 
opposite colleagues in Salford to discuss this further. The Licensing and Out of Hours 
Manager gave an assurance that all noise complaints would be invesigated and an 
agreeable resolution sought in all cases, even those that crossed boundaries.   

The Director of Planning, Building Control and Licensing advised the Committee that 
certain preparatory works were permitted on land prior to a formal planning 
application submission and consent being granted, however if Members had 

Page 83

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Neighbourhoods and Environment Scrutiny Committee  13 January 2021 

concerns regarding any activity they should contact her department at the earliest 
opportunity and a site visit could be arranged.  

The Director of Planning, Building Control and Licensing sated that works after 6pm 
was only permitted if the developer had a satisfactory communication strategy in 
place to relay this information to local residents. A Member commented that from her 
experience she was not confident this was happening, especially for those residents 
living in flats. The Director of Planning, Building Control and Licensing further advised 
that road closures were permitted to allow for the delivery of a development scheme 
and the Considerate Constructors Scheme was a tool to address the issue of 
parking. 

In response to the specific question regarding fines and enforcement, the Licensing 
and Out of Hours Manager stated that there were two Licensing and Out of Hours 
Teams (City Centre and City Wide), whose duties included responding to noise 
complaints from construction sites. These two teams comprised of 35 FTE officers 
working a seven-day shift pattern, including evening and night cover. He stated that 
to date no fines had been issued to developers as cases had been resolved 
informally by engaging with the developer when complaints had been received.   

The Section Planning Manager advised the Committee that there were five Planning 
Enforcement Officers and stated that both teams worked closely together to resolve 
issues. 

The Chair commented that the Considerate Constructor Scheme was a voluntary 
scheme and consideration needed to be given to estbalishing a bespoke Manchester 
Considerate Constructors Scheme that had to be adhered to by contrators and be 
included as a mandatory condition of any planning consent. The Committee 
supported this recommendation. 

The Chair further reommened that a briefing session be arrnaged for Members of the 
Committee to provide an overview of a range of activiees that included, but not 
restricted to planning and related enforecment; roles and responsilibities and Traffic 
Regulation Orders. The Committee supported this recommendation. 

Decision 

The Committee:- 

1. Recommend that the Executive Member for Environment, Planning and 
Transport give consideration to establishing a bespoke Manchester Considerate 
Constructors Scheme that had to be adhered to by contrators and be a included 
as a mandatory condition of any planning consent. 

2. Recommend that Officers, in consultation with the Executive Member for 
Environment, Planning and Transport arrange a briefing session for Members of 
the Committee that provides an overview of a range of activiees that included, 
but not restricted to planning and related enforecment; roles and responsilibities 
and Traffic Regulation Orders. 

Page 84

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Neighbourhoods and Environment Scrutiny Committee  13 January 2021 

NESC/21/07 Overview Report 

The report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit which contained key 
decisions within the Committee’s remit and responses to previous recommendations 
was submitted for comment. Members were also invited to agree the Committee’s 
future work programme. 

In concluding the meeting the Chair wished to place on record her appreciation and 
gratitude to all staff and partners across the city for their ongoing resolve, dedication 
and commitment to support the residents of the city during the pandemic. 

Decision 

To note the report and agree the work programme.  

Page 85

Item 7



 

Page 86

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Economy Scrutiny Committee 3 December 2020 

Economy Scrutiny Committee 

Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday, 3 December 2020

This Scrutiny meeting was conducted via Zoom, in accordance with the 
provisions of the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) 
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England 
and Wales) Regulations 2020. 

Present:  
Councillor H Priest (Chair) – in the Chair 
Councillors Green, Hacking, Johns, Noor, Raikes, Shilton Godwin and Stanton 

Also present:
Councillor Leese, Leader 
Councillor N Murphy, Deputy Leader  

Apologies: Councillor K Simcock

ESC/20/46 Minutes  

Decision 

The minutes of the meeting held on 5 November 2020 were approved as a correct 
record. 

ESC/20/47 Manchester Digital Strategy  

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Inclusive Economy, which 
provided an overview to the development of the Manchester Digital Strategy and its 
alignment to the city’s strategic priorities. The Committee also received a 
presentation that detailed the work to date to create the Strategy and its emerging 
priorities. 

Key point and themes of the report included:- 

• A strategy was required to drive the cohesive vision of digital across the city; 
• Supporting all Manchester residents to be able to access opportunities digitally 

is key to building a more inclusive city; 
• The proposed emerging Strategy was currently based around four pillars which 

aligned to the Developing A More Inclusive Economy – Our Manchester 
Industrial Strategy; 

• Strategic alignment was essential to ensure successful implementation of the 
Digital Strategy’s aims both within the Council and across the city; 

• The city’s digital sector continued to be one of our key growth sectors, both in 
terms of increasing jobs and gross value added; 

• Whilst there were many employment opportunities in this growth area, it was 
essential to increase digital skills levels and improve digital infrastructure to 
ensure all of Manchester’s residents and neighbourhoods could access them; 
and 

Page 87

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Economy Scrutiny Committee 3 December 2020 

• Following the Committee’s comments, the draft Strategy would go out for public 
consultation in early 2021. 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussion were:- 

• What was meant by the phrase deploying digital connectivity as a utility and to 
what extent could the Council support this; 

• There was concern that there would not be enough capacity to upskill 
Manchester residents in using digital; 

• Was there any capacity within the strategy to ensure that the Council and its 
partners procured from organisations that were committed to being carbon zero 
or carbon negative; 

• Further information was requested on Fibre Manchester and the required 
physical infrastructure to enable the Strategy to be delivered; 

• To what extent did the Strategy address access to the necessary technology for 
all residents in the city, such as fibre broadband to all properties; 

• Who would be held accountable for the progress of the Strategy; and 
• Would there be a joined-up GM approach to procuring the necessary digital 

devices for those who were subject to digital poverty. 

The Digital Strategist informed the Committee that the Council would be joining with 
Tameside and potentially a further three GM Councils to enable the delivery of the 
physical infrastructure across the city and region through the use of digital co-
operatives.  This would allow for smaller operators to enter the market and provide 
more choice for residents at lower prices.  He clarified that in terms of ownership of 
the infrastructure, this would belong to the co-operative or a co-operative member.  
He added that viewing digital connectivity as a utility simply meant that it would be 
available everywhere, in some places free and in other at an affordable rate.  In 
terms of the Green Economy, there were many organisations within the industry that 
were operating as Carbon neutral and reinvesting in renewable energy and it would 
be these types of organisations that the Council should align itself with going forward. 

The Director of Inclusive Economy advised of the steps that were being taken to help 
residents get connected and develop the necessary digital skills, including the work 
of schools and colleges with students in terms of blended learning.  She added that 
at present she was not aware of any GM wide procurement approach but would 
investigate the possibility of this and outlined how the Council and MAES had 
provided a vast number of residents with the necessary equipment to enable them to 
become digitally included. 

The Deputy Leader agreed to take on board all the comments made by the 
Committee as the Strategy was developed and agreed to report back as to how the 
digital offer could be improved for Manchester residents. 

Decisions 

The Committee:- 

(1) Notes the report. 

Page 88

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Economy Scrutiny Committee 3 December 2020 

(2) Notes that a number of themes emanating from this item will likely form future 
agenda items in the next Municipal Year. 

ESC/20/48 HS2 Phase 2b Western Leg Design Refinement Consultation 
Response  

The Committee considered the report of the Strategic Director, Growth and 
Development that informed the Committee and the Executive of a Design Refinement 
Consultation (DRC) being carried out by HS2 Ltd on the western leg of Phase 2b of 
HS2 (Manchester-Crewe). The consultation sought views on updates to station 
designs at both Manchester Piccadilly and Manchester Airport, in addition to a route 
alignment change, in order to reduce the impact on the existing train care facility at 
Ardwick, and to facilitate the integration of Northern Powerhouse Rail (NPR) at both 
Piccadilly and Manchester Airport high speed stations. 

The report outlined the Council’s proposed response to the consultation. The draft 
response was attached as an appendix and should be read in conjunction with the 
report.  

The main points and themes within the report included: - 

• Providing an introduction and background to the report; 
• Describing the context of the response; and 
• Providing a summary of the main issues to which the city continued to seek 

resolution, and which the Council and its partners expected further 
collaborative engagement on. 

The Committee heard from Councillor Lovecy, Member for Rusholme ward. She 
described that local Councillors continued to oppose the proposed location of the 
vent shaft on Fallowfield Retail Park. She stated that this would have a detrimental 
impact on local schools; it would result in the loss of a Park and Ride scheme that 
would have an adverse impact on air quality. She stated that the current proposal 
would also result in a loss of local retail provision that would have a negative impact 
on the local community. She stated that these arguments, in particular that from the 
local schools, needed to be strengthened within the response. 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  

• Supporting the local Councillors in opposing the ventilation shaft that was still 
proposed to be located on Fallowfield retail park and that alternative, more 
appropriate sites should be considered by HS2 Ltd; 

• Supporting the call for an underground station to be built at Piccadilly station; 
• What more could be done to support the case of the Council; and 
• The views of the Economy Scrutiny Committee needed to be taken into 

consideration and reflected within the response. 

The Leader stated that it was important to continue to argue for the need to build an 
underground station at Piccadilly to accommodate HS2 and address issues of 
capacity at the site, noting that a surface station would be inappropriate. He further 
commented that the design of the HS2 Airport Station needed to be fully integrated 

Page 89

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Economy Scrutiny Committee 3 December 2020 

with local development plans and existing planning policies, including Metrolink and 
Northern Powerhouse Rail.   

The Head of City Centre Growth & Regeneration stated that discussions continued 
with HS2 Ltd to discuss the issue of the planned ventilation shaft that was still 
proposed to be located on Fallowfield retail park. She described that alternative 
locations had been suggested; however, these had been rejected on the grounds of 
visual disamenity and antisocial behaviour. 

The City Centre Growth and Development Manager informed the Committee a 
summary would be provided in response to the consultation; however, individual 
responses would not be provided to issues raised. She stated that officers and 
Members would continue to work and engage with HS2 Ltd to seek to influence the 
design. She advised that she was aware that a local MP had requested an urgent 
meeting with Ministers to discuss the issue of Fallowfield retail park and the location 
of the vent shaft.  

The Head of City Centre Growth & Regeneration advised that having regard for 
Councillor Lovecy’s comments the response would be reviewed to strengthen the 
points that she had addressed. The Strategic Director, Growth and Development 
further commented that the views of Committee would also be incorporated into the 
final submission. 

Decisions 

The Committee:- 

(1) Recommend that having regard for the views and comments expressed by 
the Committee and that of the local ward Member, Section 8 of response 
relating to the Birchfield Road Ventshafts be reviewed to reflect the 
opposition of schools to these proposals.   

(2) Having regard to recommendation 1, endorse the recommendation that the 
Executive: 

• Note the proposed refinements within Manchester in the HS2 Design 
Refinement Consultation;  

• Note and comment on the City Council’s draft submission in response to 
the consultation; and 

• Delegate authority to the Strategic Director – Growth & Development, in 
consultation with the Leader and Executive Member for Environment, 
Planning and Transport, to finalise the response and submit to HS2 Ltd. 

ESC/20/49 Update on COVID-19 Activity  

Further to Minute ESC/20/38 (Update on activity under COVID 19), the Committee 
considered a report of the Strategic Director (Growth and Development), which 
provided a further update of the current situation in the city in relation to COVID-19 

Page 90

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Economy Scrutiny Committee 3 December 2020 

and an update on the work progressing in Manchester in relation to areas within the 
remit of the Committee. 

The key points and themes included:- 

• An economic overview at a national, regional and local level; 
• A sectoral impact update, including the impact on footfall within the city, 

hospitality and visitor economies, aviation and universities; 
• The steps needed to stimulate development and investor confidence in the 

city; 
• Work being undertaken with TfGM to agree a broad overall transport plan to 

support the gradual opening up of the city with a focus on pedestrian 
movement and safe use of public transport; 

• Work being undertaken around Skills, Labour Market and Business Support 
following on from the THINK report findings; and 

• A progress update on the lobbying of government for additional funding. 

The Leader also provided a verbal update on the most recent developments since 
the publication of the report. 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committees discussions were:- 

• There had been a failure of government in providing appropriate financial 
support to the city and wider region for the length of time that people have been 
living under strict restraints; 

• It would be useful to have year on year comparative data on footfall in the city 
and district centres to help in the longer term thinking of recovery; 

• There was concern about the impact of the pandemic on the hospitality sector 
especially for the months following Christmas as trade was usually quiet in 
these months; and 

• There was concern in relation to the number of people claiming unemployment 
related benefits in the city centre and the impact this might have on private 
renters. 

The Director of Inclusive Economy advised that the increase in unemployment 
increased rapidly in April and May and although this has levelled off it was still 
increasing.  She outlined the work that was being undertaken to address the increase 
in unemployment in the city.   

The Strategic Director confirmed that year on year data of footfall could be provided 
and could be reported in future Economy Dashboards.  It was also reported that the 
Business Sounding Board would be launching a campaign in the new year around 
supporting restaurants, cultural venues and hotels, building on the eat out to help out 
model, but more specific to Manchester. 

Noting the concerns raised, the Leader commented that the full economic recovery of 
the city would likely take three to five years and that areas that had been placed in 
Tier 3, such as Manchester, received no further financial support than those in Tiers 
1 or 2.  As such it was important that the City was placed into Tier 2 as soon as 
possible to enable businesses to trade and survive. 

Page 91

Item 7



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Economy Scrutiny Committee 3 December 2020 

Decision 

The Committee notes the report. 

ESC/20/50 Overview Report  

The Committee considered a report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit 
which contained key decisions within the Committee’s remit and responses to 
previous recommendations. Members were also invited to agree the Committee’s 
future work programme.   

Decisions 

The Committee:- 

(1) Note the report. 
(2) Note that the Chair will finalise the Work Programme for the February and 

March 2021 meetings in consultation with Officers. 

Page 92

Item 7



Manchester City Council   Minutes 
Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee 3 December 2020 

Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee  

Minutes of the meeting held on 3 December 2020 

This Scrutiny meeting was conducted via Zoom, in accordance with the 
provisions of the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) 
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England 
and Wales) Regulations 2020.

Present: 
Councillor Hacking - In the Chair  
Councillors Andrews, Chambers, Collins, M Dar, Doswell, Douglas, Grimshaw,
Hitchen, Kirkpatrick, Moore, Rawlins, Rawson and Russell

Also present: 
Councillor Murphy, Deputy Leader 
Councillor Craig, Executive Member for Adult Health and Wellbeing 
Councillor Rahman, Executive Member for Skills, Culture and Leisure 
Councillor Akbar, Executive Member for Neighbourhoods 
Councillor Watson, Lead Member for Age Friendly Manchester 
Councillor Cooley, Ward Councillor for Brooklands 
Elaine Unegbu, Chair of the Age Friendly Manchester Older People's Board 
Marie Greenhalgh, Vice Chair of the Age Friendly Manchester Older People's Board 

CESC/20/48  Minutes 

Following on from the Committee’s recommendation at its November meeting, the 
Executive Member for Skills, Culture and Leisure confirmed that the public meeting 
about the Peterloo Memorial had been postponed.  He reported that the new date 
had not yet been finalised but that work was taking place with the Equalities Team to 
ensure that the meeting would be accessible. 

Decision 

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 5 November 2020 as a correct 
record. 

CESC/20/49  Manchester's Age Friendly Recovery  

The Committee received a report of the Consultant in Public Health (Ageing Well 
Lead) which outlined how COVID-19 and the impacts of restrictions in place this year 
had disproportionately affected older people. It also outlined a set of proposals, 
developed by the Age Friendly Manchester Older People’s Board, the Age Friendly 
Manchester Team and senior officers in the Council, that were designed to help 
address the barriers many of Manchester’s mid to later life residents reported that 
they faced.  The report also stated that the Age Friendly Manchester Older People’s 
Board – and more broadly the Age Friendly Assembly - was a strategic partner in the 
delivery of the Manchester Climate Change Framework 2020-2025.  A key principle 
within the framework was that older people as residents of Manchester had a role to 

Page 93

Item 7



Manchester City Council   Minutes 
Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee 3 December 2020 

place in reducing the contributors to and impacts of climate change. It was expected 
that this would contribute to Manchester’s zero carbon target. 

The main themes within the report included: 

• Ageism; 
• Care homes; 
• Neighbourhoods; 
• Employment; and 
• The Our Manchester Strategy Reset. 

Elaine Unegbu, Chair of the Age Friendly Manchester Older People's Board, 
highlighted the issue of ageism, how this had been exposed by the pandemic and its 
impact on the health and wellbeing of older people, including isolation, loneliness and 
depression.  She reported that the language of vulnerability and stereotypical images 
of older people perpetuated negative attitudes and that a different approach was 
needed with positive narratives to combat ageism, everyone having a role to play and 
honest, sustained conversations taking place.   

Councillor Watson, Lead Member for Age Friendly Manchester, spoke to the 
Committee about older people living in care homes.  She reported that this group of 
older people had not been involved in the Board before now and the Board was 
working to address this.  She drew Members’ attention to the recommendations 
within the report related to care homes, advising that care homes and their residents 
needed to become part of and able to participate in the local neighbourhood.  She 
advised that community integration was being considered from the start within the 
new LGBT-Affirmative Extra Care Scheme that was being built in her ward and that 
all older people’s accommodation should be like this.  She also reiterated the 
importance of thinking about the language used to describe older people.   

Marie Greenhalgh, Vice Chair of the Age Friendly Manchester Older People's Board 
addressed the Committee about the role of neighbourhoods in whether people aged 
well and experiences of health problems, social isolation and poverty.  She outlined 
some of the challenges that older people had faced during the pandemic and 
highlighted the role of neighbourhood and community groups in addressing these.  
She drew Members’ attention to the recommendations in the report relating to 
neighbourhoods.  The Chair praised the work of Good Neighbour Schemes, including 
the one in his ward, particularly their invaluable work during the pandemic.  A 
Member highlighted the work of The Place (Fallowfield Library) including the Forever 
Young group for older residents.  The Programme Lead advised that there were a 
range of examples of good practice across the city and the aim was to make this 
good practice consistent across the city.  In response to a Member’s question, he 
advised that Members could sign up for a monthly bulletin to find out what was going 
on.  A Member expressed concern that some older people who normally contributed 
to the work of community and voluntary organisations within their neighbourhood felt 
unable to do so during the pandemic. 

Councillor Cooley spoke about employment in relation to people over the age of 55.  
She reported that a lot of people in this age group would find themselves 
unemployed, particularly as a result of the pandemic, and that it was important to 

Page 94

Item 7



Manchester City Council   Minutes 
Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee 3 December 2020 

support this age group to find work, not just younger people, particularly as people 
were now expected to work longer.  She recommended that the Council should lead 
the way on this, setting an example and working with partners to encourage them to 
offer apprenticeships and other work opportunities to older people.  She also 
highlighted the contribution that people who had not been in paid employment made, 
for example, to family and community life, and advised that this should also be 
valued.   

Elaine Unegbu welcomed that the Board had been involved in the Our Manchester 
Strategy reset and she emphasised the importance of ensuring that the voices of 
older residents were heard during engagement processes.  She asked the 
Committee to note all the recommendations that had been made in the report and 
asked that they put them forward to the Executive. 

A Member welcomed the recommendations and advised that the Council needed to 
further embed equalities across its policies. 

Councillor Cooley stated that all Members should be raising the Age Friendly 
Manchester agenda at their ward co-ordination meetings and asking what was 
happening within their own wards.   

In response to a Member’s question about care home residents being able to have 
visitors, the Executive Member for Adult Health and Wellbeing reported that, while 
care homes in some parts of the country were using lateral flow tests, which were 
carried out by care home staff and gave results within 30 minutes, to test visitors for 
COVID-19, there were concerns about the accuracy of the results.  She advised that 
it was proposed that in Manchester care home visitors would have to take another 
test which was sent to a laboratory for testing four days beforehand, followed by a 
lateral flow test on the day of the visit.  She reported that it was hoped to have a 
process in place for this within a fortnight.   

A Member expressed concern that, although people were living longer, they were 
spending longer periods of this in poor health and that there was a gap in healthy life 
expectancy between different areas of the country.  The Programme Lead informed 
Members that work was taking place at a Greater Manchester level, through the 
Ageing Hub, to help people to age well and also to support people with long-term 
health conditions.  He advised the Committee that the Council and partner 
organisations were looking at how ageing well could be incorporated into all 
neighbourhood plans across the city. 

In response to a Member’s question, Councillor Cooley confirmed that the 
information on baby boomers’ income in point 7.13 of the report came from research 
by the Resolution Foundation. 

A Member stated that the first draft of the Workforce Equality Strategy, which had 
been considered by the Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee at its 
November meeting, while referencing older employees, had focused more on 
creating job opportunities for younger people.  She asked that the draft Strategy be 
amended to recognise the need to create opportunities for older people.  The 
Executive Member for Neighbourhoods supported the Member’s comment and 

Page 95

Item 7



Manchester City Council   Minutes 
Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee 3 December 2020 

advised that he would speak to the Executive Member for Children and Schools, who 
currently also had responsibility for Human Resources, about the report 
recommendations relating to employment and how the draft Workforce Equality 
Strategy could be amended, in response to the point the Member had made.   

The Programme Lead advised that the Age Friendly Manchester team would be 
working with the Director of Human Resources and Organisation Development to 
progress the Board’s recommendations relating to employment.  In response to a 
Member’s question about the North Manchester Age Well in Employment Pilot, he 
advised that discussions were currently taking place about holding a socially 
distanced jobs fair.  Elaine Unegbu advised that meaningful apprenticeships should 
be offered to older people.   

A Member highlighted the importance of education opportunities for older people and 
that financial costs could be a barrier for some people.  The Director of Inclusive 
Growth advised that employment for people over the age of 50 was a priority area for 
the Work and Skills Strategy.  She informed Members that the Greater Manchester 
Working Well programme had been expanded by approximately £13 million.  She 
advised that there had been a long-term underinvestment in adult education, 
including a lack of funding for adults taking qualifications beyond their first Level 2 
qualification, other than loans which people could be reluctant to take; however, she 
advised that there had been an indication from the government that there would be 
more investment in adult education, including funding for adults to take A-level or 
equivalent qualifications.  She advised that work was taking place regarding 
apprenticeships for older people but that there were some issues, in particular, the 
perception of apprenticeships as being for younger people and for roles in particular 
industries and the wage offered for apprenticeships which could be difficult for people 
with more financial commitments to manage on. 

The Chair thanked the officers and guests.  He recognised that Manchester was 
leading the way in this work, the achievements so far and the importance of 
continuing to build on that.  

Decision 

That the Committee welcomes the report and wishes to convey to the Executive that 
it strongly and unanimously supports the recommendations contained within it. 

CESC/20/50  Driving Digital Inclusion and Bridging the Digital Divide in 
Manchester  

The Committee received a report of the Director of Inclusive Growth and the Head of 
Libraries, Galleries and Culture which provided an update on the digital inclusion 
challenge within Manchester, the impact of COVID-19 on those who were excluded 
and the initiatives that were being developed to scale up efforts to tackle the 
challenges. 

The main points and themes within the report included: 

• How digital exclusion affected communities in Manchester; 

Page 96

Item 7



Manchester City Council   Minutes 
Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee 3 December 2020 

• The Council’s work so far to address this; 
• Manchester Digital Inclusion Working Group; 
• Get GM Digital Programme; 
• Manchester Digital Inclusion Action Plan, focusing both on residents who did 

not have home internet access and those who did not have the skills or 
confidence to use it effectively; and 

• The role of adult education providers. 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: 

• Help for people who were applying for Universal Credit; 
• That some people who were digitally excluded would also not have any 

contact with the Council and its services and how those people could be 
reached; 

• An example of how local people in one area had been connected to the 
internet via MiFi, a mobile Wi-Fi device; and 

• To recognise the important role libraries were playing in enabling people to 
have digital access and to thank the staff for their work. 

The Director of Inclusive Growth advised that the Council’s Revenue and Benefits 
service was not notified of residents who were claiming Universal Credit but that the 
Council was working closely with the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP).  
The Citywide Services Manager (Reform) reported that a common issue that people 
contacted the Digital Support telephone line, set up in May 2020, for was help with 
applying for Universal Credit and that these queries were referred to Manchester 
Citizens Advice who could assist them with both the digital element and knowledge 
about the benefits system.  The Work and Skills Specialist advised that the Council 
was working closely with Jobcentre Plus to support them to link with adult learning 
providers. 

The Citywide Services Manager (Reform) informed Members that residents who had 
received Chromebooks had been identified either through contact with the Council’s 
COVID Hub or through a referral from a partner agency, such as health services, but 
that it was difficult to reach people did not have contact with any agencies.  The Work 
and Skills Specialist reported that some people had found out about the help 
available through word of mouth but that it would be useful to get information into 
more places where people went, such as cornershops. 

The Chair reported that the Economy Scrutiny Committee had discussed the 
infrastructure element of digital inclusion at its most recent meeting but that MiFi had 
not been mentioned and that he would raise this with the Chair of the Economy 
Scrutiny Committee. 

The Chair thanked officers for their contribution. 

Decision 

To note the report.

Page 97

Item 7



Manchester City Council   Minutes 
Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee 3 December 2020 

CESC/20/51  Update on COVID-19 Activity  

The Committee received a report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) which 
provided a further update summary of the current situation in the city in relation to 
COVID-19 and an update on the work progressing in Manchester in relation to areas 
within the remit of this Committee. 

The main points and themes within the report included: 

• The impact and challenges relating to residents at risk, community resilience 
and equality and inclusion; and 

• Key planning and recovery activity being undertaken in relation to these areas.  

The Executive Member for Adult Health and Wellbeing informed the Committee that, 
from the following month, the way this information was reported would change and 
that the reports would be shorter but that the Committee could ask for more 
information to be provided on specific areas. 

In response to a Member’s question, the Director of Inclusive Growth advised that 
domestic abuse support services had adapted the way they worked during the 
pandemic and that some had received additional resources during this period.  She 
clarified that the report reflected that at present it was expected that the services 
could revert to a more business-as-usual approach from March 2021 but that this 
was being reviewed regularly. 

In response to a Member’s question, the Director of Inclusive Growth advised that 
she would check where the request for more funding from the DWP for the Test and 
Trace payments was up to and let the Member know. 

A Member asked if there was any further progress on identifying satisfactory 
accommodation for homeless people who might test positive for COVID-19.  The 
Chair requested that the Executive Member for Adult Health and Wellbeing provide a 
response directly to the Member concerned. 

A Member highlighted that some Manchester residents had concerns about the 
vaccines for COVID-19.  The Executive Member for Adult Health and Wellbeing 
outlined plans to understand and address these concerns and advised that there 
would be a more detailed plan for this after Christmas. 

Decision 

To note the report. 

CESC/20/52  Overview Report 

A report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit was submitted. The overview 
report contained a list of key decisions yet to be taken within the Committee’s remit, 
responses to previous recommendations and the Committee’s work programme, 
which the Committee was asked to approve. 

Page 98

Item 7



Manchester City Council   Minutes 
Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee 3 December 2020 

The Chair informed Members that the Committee would receive reports on the 
Budget, the Parks Investment Programme and a further COVID-19 update at its next 
meeting and that the Equalities Update was likely to be considered at the February 
meeting, dependent on the amount of budget information the Committee had to 
consider at that meeting. 

A Member commented that she had not received the information which had been 
circulated to the Committee about the review of symbols across the city.  The Chair 
asked that this be re-circulated. 

Decisions 

1. To note the report and agree the work programme, subject to the above 
amendments. 

2. To ask the Scrutiny Support Officer to re-circulate the information about the 
review of symbols across the city. 

Page 99

Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Health and Wellbeing Board 9 December 2020

Health and Wellbeing Board 

Minutes of the meeting held on 9 December 2020 

This Health and Wellbeing Board meeting was conducted via Zoom, 
in accordance with the provisions of the Local Authorities and Police and 
Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime 
Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020. 

Present:  
Councillor Richard Leese, Leader of the Council (Chair) 
Councillor Craig, Executive Member for Adults Health and Wellbeing 
Councillor Bridges, Executive Member for Children’s Services and Schools 
Vicky Szulist, Chair, Healthwatch 
Dr Tracey Vell, Primary Care representative - Local Medical Committee 
Dr Murugesan Raja, GP Member (North) MHCC 
Dr Vish Mehra, Central Primary Care Manchester
David Regan, Director of Public Health 
Bernadette Enright, Director of Adult Social Services 
Dr Denis Colligan, GP Member (North) Manchester Health and Care Commissioning 
Kathy Cowell, Chair, Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust 
Mike Wild, Voluntary and Community Sector representative 
Rupert Nichols, Chair, Greater Manchester Mental Health NHS Foundation Trust 

Apologies: 
Dr Ruth Bromley, Chair Manchester Health and Care Commissioning 

Also in attendance: 
Dr Sohail Munshi, Chief Medical Officer, MLCO 
Ian Williamson, Manchester Health and Care Commissioning  

HWB/20/19 Minutes  

The minutes of the meeting held on 26 August 2020 were submitted for approval. 

Decision 

To agree as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board held on 26 August 2020. 

HWB/20/20 COVID-19 Update: Manchester's 12 Point Plan 

The Director of Public Health and Wellbeing submitted a report following on from the 
report submitted in July that detailed the COVID-19 Manchester Prevention and 
Response Plan. The report included a 12-point plan that incorporates all key 
programmes of work and mirrors the national and Greater Manchester approach. The 
Board also received a presentation from the Director of Public Health on the latest 

Page 101

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Health and Wellbeing Board 9 December 2020

available data and intelligence (point 1) and the latest information on Targeted 
Testing at Scale (TTaS) (point 2) and Mass Vaccination (point 12). The Board was 
advised of the latest data available on Covid for Manchester and comparisons to GM. 

The Chair invited comments and questions. 

In welcoming the presentation and acknowledging the scale of the of the tasks 
involved in the 12 Point Plan, a member of the Board referred to the mention of 
dashboards in relation to care homes and Covid19, in Manchester and asked if the 
dashboards are accessible to the public. 

It was reported that key public information on Covid19 is published on the Council’s 
website every Wednesday. The dashboard relating to care homes included 
information/data such as capacity levels and infection rates issues, however checks 
would be required for the information owners consent to ensure that no sensitive or 
commercial information is included in the dashboards before sharing with the public/ 
partner organisations. 

A member of the Board referred to Point 11 of the plan and the work to the roll out a 
national programme for Lateral Flow Testing for care home visitors and asked 
officers how the geographic spread for the provision of the test might look. 

The Director of Public Health and the Director of Adult Social Services reported that 
in preparation, contact had been made with ninety care home providers in 
Manchester, via a webinar. Checks had been made with each care home to establish 
individual readiness for testing and this would take account of the size of the care 
home and facilities available. There is a combined approach to the provision of the 
Lateral Flow Testing and care home providers have been offered support and 
guidance during preparations in addition to weekly communications from the Council, 
as part of the implementation of the Winter Plan. The Lateral Flow Tests have started 
to arrive in larger homes across GM (these are care homes with resident numbers 
over 50, with twelve home of that size in Manchester). The Council will mobilise it’s 
co-ordination plan to support those care home providers with a range of support and 
more would be known on the implementation of the tests in the following week/s. 
Officers are mindful of the high expectations of families and residents wishing to see 
each other and an assurance was given that everything is being done to facilitate 
family visiting in a safe way. 

The Chair thanked officers for the report and presentation. 

The Chair also thanked Health Service staff and Care staff for their work and 
commitment in continuing to provide important services over a very difficult ten 
months since the beginning of the Covid19 pandemic. It was noted that although 
there are positive signs beginning to emerge there would still be a challenging period 
during January and February 2021, which is the peak time for the provision of acute 
health services. The Chair also acknowledged the resilience of the primary health 
care sector following the challenges experienced during this period, which had 
reacted and performed well under such difficult circumstances. It was also noted that 
the challenge to the primary health care sector will extend into next year with the 
implementation of the mass vaccination programme. 

Page 102

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Health and Wellbeing Board 9 December 2020

Decision 

The Board note the report. 

HWB/20/21 COVID-19 Governance Update

The Board considered the report of the Director of Public Health that provided an 
update for the Board on the revised governance arrangements to incorporate the 
plans for delivering the Mass Vaccination and other COVID-19 programmes in 
Manchester. 

Decisions 

1. The Board note the report. 

2. The Board approve the governance arrangements for the delivery of the 
Manchester Mass vaccination Programme as set out in section 2 of the report 
submitted. 

HWB/20/22 Manchester Partnership Board - Presentation

The Board received a presentation from Ian Williamson – Integrating Health and 
Social Care – the next steps and the progress made. The presentation provided 
details of: 

• Progress made over the last five years 
• Rationale for change 
• Ongoing work  
• NHSE proposals 
• Likely changes 
• Health and Wellbeing Board – considerations for 2021 

The Chair invited the Board to comment and ask questions. 

A member of the Board referred to the difference between the provision of health 
care and social care and asked how will an integrated service combining both work in 
view of the provision of social care being means tested, unlike health care which is 
free at the point it is accessed. Reference was also made to the organisational nature 
of the presentation and how the issues referred to would look from a patient 
perspective. 

It was reported that the impact of the strategic changes had involved closer working, 
which is already being seen by Neighbourhood Teams between professionals. On 
the ground, patients and residents are receiving more care and support that 
enhances the individual’s freedom and is consistent with the ‘Our Manchester 
Principles’. Work would continue to produce a simplified dashboard for the changes 
and their implementation. The Board was informed that the was no national view for 

Page 103

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Health and Wellbeing Board 9 December 2020

the provision of social care and the proposals describes were from the NHS which 
presented an incomplete picture for the services. 

The Chair stated that there is a social care and public care absence with indications 
that proposals will be coming from the Government following the demise of Public 
Health England and what will follow on from it. Reference was made to the NHS 
England engagement paper - Integrating care - the next steps to building strong and 
effective integrated care systems across England. The theme of the paper related to 
NHS budgets, the paper presented wider context relating to Integrated Care 
Systems, involving: 

• Stronger partnerships in local places between the NHS, local 
government and others with a more central role for primary care in 
providing joined-up care; 

The document also describes four fundamental purposes: 
• improving population health and healthcare; 
• tackling unequal outcomes and access; 
• enhancing productivity and value for money; and 
• helping the NHS to support broader social and economic 
development.  

The Chair informed the Board that from the arrangements and from an NHS 
perspective there will be single GM budget. Decisions about the budgets will be 
made at the lowest possible level with an expectation that the budgets could be used 
at a neighbourhood level. It was noted that the presentation given was 
organisational, however this was necessary to demonstrate how a population, health 
and neighbourhood devolved agenda may be delivered. The point was also made 
that Manchester has been working on arrangements in advance of decisions being 
made by the NHS and is ahead in those preparations. The Chair referred future 
organisational change and the ongoing work to strengthen the clinical leadership role 
in primary care and the recognition this has received across all sectors as a strength 
and an area to be enhanced and built upon.      

A member of the Board provided a summary response to the presentation the Local 
Medical Committee and highlighted some concerns, in particular: a lack of reference 
to the involvement of the LMC over the past five years, the work of primary care, 
recognisinge the work of GPs in fighting Covid19, representation of the LMC within a 
future structure and references to PCNs. 

The Chair reported that Primary Care representation in a future structure would be 
for the LMC to determine. The Board was also informed that as part of the work on 
clinical leadership the Chair and members of the LMC had been invited to be 
involved in meetings of the PCN Group. 

A member of the Board referred to the lack of a community involvement in the 
structure at a national level and could this be raised and addressed in Manchester’s 
response to the consultation, in view of the engagement work that has taken place.    

Page 104

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Health and Wellbeing Board 9 December 2020

The Executive Member for Adults Health and Wellbeing acknowledged the strong 
role GPs and Clinicians have at all levels and the importance of showing how 
decisions are made. In noting the significant change at a national level, it was also 
important to use the changes positively to continue in Manchester by using the most 
successful elements of engaging the public to provide a voice on the provision of 
services. Also, to ensure that a public based voice is at the heart of a response made 
to a national consultation, including public health and social care. 

A member of the Board referred to the commissioning of work carried out on a city-
wide basis and questioned how this could happen under the arrangements 
suggested. Also, it was noted that PCNs were useful but were not a model for all 
types of engagement. The structure also appeared to include gaps for the 
involvement of patients. 

The Chair stated that the purpose of the NHS engagement paper was the welfare of 
patients but also working to ensure that the public did not become patients. The point 
was also made that in a hierarchy of commissioning the starting point would be at a 
neighbourhood level and then, if necessary, to make a case to widen the provision to 
a city-wide level and not the other way around. 

Ian Williamson thanked the Board for the comments and contributions made to the 
presentation which would be noted. Acknowledgement was also given to the valuable 
work of GPs and professionals for their valuable and pivotal work.    

Decision 

To note the presentation and the comments received. 

HWB/20/23 Children and Young People's Plan 2020 – 2024 

The Chair reported that in the absence of the Strategic Director of Children’s 
Services, the consideration of the Children and Young People's Plan 2020 – 2024 
report had been deferred to the next meeting. 

Page 105

Item 8



 

Page 106

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Licensing Committee 30 November 2020 

Licensing Committee 

Minutes of the meeting held on Monday, 30 November 2020

Present: Councillor Grimshaw – in the Chair 

Councillors: Andrews, Chohan, Hassan, Hewitson, Hughes, Jeavons, Lyons, 
Madeleine Monaghan and Reid  

Apologies: Councillor Evans, Ludford and Lynch

LHP/20/6 Minutes  

The minutes of the meeting held on 27 October 2020 were submitted for approval.

Decision 

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the Licensing Committee meeting held 
on 27 October 2020. 

LHP/20/7 Update of Model Conditions 

The Committee were informed by the Principal Licensing Officer that the report was 
not yet ready for submission and would be presented at the next Licensing 
Committee meeting. 

Decision 

To defer consideration of the report until the next Licensing Committee meeting on 25 
January 2021. 

Page 107

Item 8



 

Page 108

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Licensing and Appeals Committee 30 November 2020 

Licensing and Appeals Committee 

Minutes of the meeting held on Monday, 30 November 2020

Present: Councillor Grimshaw – in the Chair 

Councillors: Andrews, Chohan, Hassan, Hewitson, Hughes, Jeavons, Lyons, 
Madeleine Monaghan and Reid  

Apologies: Councillor Evans, Ludford and Lynch

LAP/20/5 Minutes  

The minutes of the meeting held on 27 October 2020 were submitted for approval.

Decision 

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 27 October 2020. 

LAP/20/6 Amendment to the Hackney Carriage Fare Tariff 

The Committee were provided with information from the Licensing Unit Manager with 
information in relation to a recent increase in charges levied by Manchester Airport. 

The Licensing Unit Manager informed the Committee that these charges related to all 
vehicles dropping off passengers on the forecourts directly in front of the three 
terminals and that the current Fare Card requires amending in order to allow 
Hackney Carriage drivers and proprietors to be able to recover these additional costs 
levied upon them by the Airport (if they are dropping off passengers on a forecourt). 
The Licensing Unit Manager’s report recommended that the Committee agree to 
make a recommendation to the Executive to amend the Hackney Carriage Fare Tariff 
Extra - ‘Manchester Airport Charge - Drop off at any terminal’ from £1.80 to £3. 

Decision 

To approve the recommendation within the report. 

LAP/20/7 Impact of Covid on Vehicle Testing and Age Policies 

The Licensing Unit Manager informed the Committee that the report was to set out 
relevant information, considerations and risks for the Committee following 
approaches by both the taxi and private hire trades to consider temporary 
relaxation of vehicle testing and age policies arising from the impacts of the Covid-19 
pandemic. 

The following recommendations to the Committee could be accepted in full, amended 
or rejected in full: 

1.  To extend the age limit of both HCVs and PHVs by an additional year, 
until the conclusion of the Clean Air and Minimum Licensing Standards work,  

Page 109

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Licensing and Appeals Committee 30 November 2020 

when both policies will be fully revised 

2.  To reduce vehicle testing requirements to 2 tests per year for all 
vehicles except brand new vehicles, which will continue to be subject 
to 1 test within the first 12 months. To continue to require vehicles 
beyond the set age limit to 3 tests per year. 

3.  For the changes to take effect immediately and be reviewed by the 
Committee in March 2021. 

Decision 

To accept in full the recommendations within the report. 

LAP/20/8 Exclusion of the Public

Decision 

To exclude the public during consideration of the following items which involved 
consideration of exempt information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
particular persons, and public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 

LAP/20/8 Application relating to the renewal of HV602

The Committee considered the content of the report, the representations of the 
applicant and the Licensing officer. 

The Licensing Unit Manager informed the Committee that this licence had not been 
renewed by the expiry date. From speaking to the licence holder, the Licensing Unit 
Manager relayed information to the Committee that the licence holder had been 
unwell and that the email regarding the renewal had been diverted to the licence 
holder’s junk mail folder and had, therefore, not been seen by them. 

The license holder addressed the Committee and explained that they are now elderly 
with many decades service in the trade and that they had not knowingly made any 
mistake. The licence holder reported that they had attempted to visit the Town Hall 
offices to deal with the matter and found the building closed to the public due to the 
Coronavirus pandemic. 

The Committee accepted the licence holder’s version of events and, in light of 
exceptional circumstances brought about by the Coronavirus pandemic, felt that the 
renewal should be granted out of time. 

Decision 

To allow the applicant to renew the licence for vehicle HV602 out of time. 

LAP/20/9 Application relating to the renewal of HV493

Page 110

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Licensing and Appeals Committee 30 November 2020 

The Committee considered the content of the report, the representations of the 
applicant and the Licensing officer. 

The Licensing Unit Manager informed the Committee that this licence had not been 
renewed by the expiry date. From speaking to the licence holder, the Licensing Unit 
Manager relayed information to the Committee that the licence holder had been 
visiting a sick relative at the time of the renewal date. 

The license holder addressed the Committee and explained that there had been 
multiple illnesses in the family resulting in two deaths from COVID-19. The licence 
holder confirmed that when they went to renew the licence they had discovered it had 
already lapsed. 

The Committee accepted the licence holder’s version of events and, in light of 
exceptional circumstances brought about by the Coronavirus pandemic, felt that the 
renewal should be granted out of time. 

Decision 

To allow the applicant to renew the licence for vehicle HV493 out of time. 

LAP/20/9 Application relating to the renewal of HV685

The Committee considered the content of the report, the representations of the 
applicant and the Licensing officer. 

The Licensing Unit Manager informed the Committee that this licence had not been 
renewed by the expiry date. From speaking to the licence holder, the Licensing Unit 
Manager relayed information to the Committee that the reminder email to the licence 
holder had gone to their son-in-law’s email address and the licence holder had not 
been made aware of it but had made attempts to resolve the matter when the 
Licensing Unit telephoned them on 15 October 2020. 

The license holder’s grandson addressed the Committee on their behalf and 
explained that there had been two drivers on the licence who had both left the trade 
due to a lack of work arising from the effects of the Coronavirus pandemic. The 
license holder’s grandson also confirmed that the licence holder was not aware of the 
renewal date as this information had not been provided to him via his son-in-law. 

The Committee accepted the licence holder’s version of events and, in light of 
exceptional circumstances brought about by the Coronavirus pandemic, felt that the 
renewal should be granted out of time. 

Decision 

To allow the applicant to renew the licence for vehicle HV685 out of time. 

LAP/20/10 Hackney Carriage vehicle renewal – temporary delegated powers 

Page 111

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Licensing and Appeals Committee 30 November 2020 

The Committee noted the existing established practice of out of time Hackney 
Carriage vehicle renewal applications being referred for consideration by the 
Committee. It considered that due to the current difficulties being faced by Hackney 
Carriage Proprietors due to the impact of the pandemic on the Hackney Carriage 
Trade this practice should be departed from as follows:  

Applications received which are 7 days or less out of time can be granted under 
delegated authority by an officer, Applications received between 7-14 days out of 
time can be granted under delegated authority by an officer in consultation with the 
Chair of Licensing.  All other out of time applications to continue to be referred to 
Committee.  The Committee will review these arrangements in March 2021. 

Page 112

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee 19 November 2020

Planning and Highways Committee 

Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday, 19 November 2020

This Planning and Highways meeting was conducted via Zoom, 
in accordance with the provisions of the Local Authorities and Police and 
Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and 
Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020. 

Present: Councillor Curley (Chair) 

Councillors: Nasrin Ali, Shaukat Ali, Andrews, Y Dar, Davies, Hitchen, Kamal, 
Lovecy, Lyons, Madeline Monaghan, Riasat, Watson and White 

Apologies: 
Councillor Flanagan 

Also Present:  
Councillors Jeavons (ward Councillor) and Shilton-Godwin (ward Councillor) 

PH/20/63  Supplementary Information on Applications Being Considered  

A copy of the late representations that were received in respect of applications 
(126142/FO/2020, 126328/FO/2020, 127538/FO/2020, 127539/LO/2020 and 
126912/FH/2020), since the agenda was issued, was circulated. 

Decision 

To receive and note the late representations. 

PH/20/64 Minutes  

Decision 

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 22 October 2020 as a correct record. 

PH/20/65  126142/FO/2020 Vacant Land to the North of 9 and 11 Ennerdale 
Avenue, Manchester, M21 7NR - Chorlton Park Ward 

This application relates to the erection of eight dwellings with associated vehicular 
access, parking and landscaping following demolition of two existing houses on 
Ennerdale Avenue. The eight dwellings are arranged to form two pairs of semi-
detached properties (two (2 bedroom) three person and two (3 bedroom) 4 person 
dwellings) and two buildings to form four cottage flats (two (1 bedroom) two person 
and two (2 bedroom) 3 person dwellings). All the proposed buildings are to be 
developed to provide social rented properties and have been designed to meet 
Manchester’s Space Standards and have been laid out to provide for future 
adaptations such as lift provision. 

Page 113

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee 19 November 2020

The proposed dwellings have been designed to have a contemporary appearance 
and reflect the design of other recent proposals brought forward by the applicant 
elsewhere in south Manchester. The main materials to be used in the construction 
are traditional in nature (red brick with grey brick detailing). Each dwelling is provided 
with outdoor amenity space, cycle parking, an off-street car parking space (2 spaces 
each for the larger semi-detached properties) and refuse storage space. 

The Planning Officer reported that the supplementary information submitted 
contained details of an on-site indicative tree replacement scheme which were 
included within the proposed conditions. 

The applicant addressed the Committee on the proposals contained within the 
application.  

An objector to the application addressed the Committee and referred to concerns 
relating to the loss of hedges, the demolition of properties, the loss of trees, 
overlooking of neighbouring properties, loss of light and reduced security and the 
impact on the lives of residents as well as raising concerns in relation to the 
sustainability credentials of the proposed buildings and embedded energy in the 
houses to be demolished.  

The Planning Officer reported that points raised including overlooking had been 
addressed and included within the proposed conditions, it was not considered that 
loss of light would  be significant in view of the length of the garden areas, the 
orientation proposed and the issue of security that had been addressed through 
input of GMP Secure by Design, which proposed landscaping, boundary treatment 
and  improvements to the natural surveillance of the area. 

Councillor Shilton-Godwin (ward Councillor) addressed the Committee and 
welcomed the application that would help to address a shortage in the number of 
social dwellings.  

Councillor Dar made a proposal to move the recommendation and this was 
seconded by Councillor Shaukat Ali. 

Decision 

The Committee approve the application, subject to the conditions and reasons set 
out in the report submitted. 

(Councillor White declared a personal interest in the application for the reason that 
he is a Council appointed member of the Southway Housing Trust People and 
Places Committee.) 

(Councillor Leech declared a prejudicial interest and withdrew from the meeting 
during the consideration of the application.) 

PH/20/66  126328/FO/2020 Speakers House, 39 Deansgate, Manchester, M3 
2BA – Deansgate Ward 

Page 114

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee 19 November 2020

This application is for the erection of a seventeen-storey building comprising office 
use (Use Class B1a) and flexible ground floor commercial units (Use Classes A1 
shop, A2 financial and professional services, A3 restaurant/cafe and A4 drinking 
establishment), new electricity sub-station, basement cycle parking and rooftop plant 
enclosure, together with access, servicing and associated works following demolition 
of the existing building. 

Additional information had been included in the Supplementary Information.  

Councillor Jeavons (ward Councillor) addressed the Committee to request the 
Committee to hold a site visit. 

An objector spokesperson addressed the Committee and referred to the size, height 
and overbearing nature of the proposed building which would result in a loss of light 
and overlooking on the existing adjacent residential accommodation.  

Reference was also made to the contents of the deeds for the proposed site. 

The applicant’s agent addressed the Committee on the application. 

The Planning Officer advised the Committee that the issues raised had been 
addressed within the planning application and the proposed conditions. The 
Committee was advised that the reference made to the deeds of the proposed site 
were a private matter and not a material planning consideration.  

The Chair invited the Committee to comment and ask questions on the application. 

A member of the Committee supported the request for a site visit and commented 
that it would be useful for the Committee to visit the site.  

A member acknowledged the request for a site visit but considered that the proposal 
would have a negative impact on St Anne’s Square area. In addition, it was noted 
that the economic benefits had been set out in the report however, the heritage 
benefits would not be enhanced by the proposal. 

A member requested if it was possible to view the land deeds for the application site. 

The Director of Planning reported that the member could see the land deed but 
advised that it should not be discussed in the context of determining the planning 
application. 

Councillor Davies made a proposal for a site visit and this was seconded by 
Councillor White. 

Decision 

To defer consideration of the planning application to allow a site visit to be carried 
out by the members of the Committee. 

Page 115

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee 19 November 2020

PH/20/67 127538/FO/2020 and 127539/LO/2020 67-75 Piccadilly and 4-6 
Newton Street, Manchester, M1 2BS – Piccadilly Ward 

This application relates to an application for the erection of 11 storey building on site 
of 67 Piccadilly, as a Hotel (Use Class C1) with associated ground floor retail and 
leisure uses (Use Class A3 (Restaurant and Café), A4 (Drinking Establishment)and 
D2 (hotel leisure gym/ fitness area); provision of flexible amenity space at roof level; 
installation of external plant at roof level; provision of new public realm and 
associated works following demolition of 67 Piccadilly/4 - 6 Newton Street ('67 
Piccadilly')including internal and external alterations to 69-75 Piccadilly (Halls 
Building) (comprising refurbishment and infilling of an existing rear void of to provide 
a 9-storey infill) relating to the reuse, refurbishment of the building for use along with 
the new 11 storey building. The application also refers to Listed Building Consent for 
internal and external alterations to 69-75 Piccadilly (Halls Building) (including 
refurbishment and infilling of an existing rear void of to provide a 9-storey infill and 
formation of connections) relating to the reuse, refurbishment and extension of the 
building for use along with an adjacent new 11 storey building as a Hotel 
(Use Class C1) on site of 67 Piccadilly (application ref no 127538) 

Additional information had been included in the Supplementary Information and 
further representations had been received regarding noise levels and the use of the 
roof terrace. 

The applicant’s agent addressed the Committee on the application.  

The Chair invited the Committee to comment and ask questions on the application. 

A member welcomed the proposal and commented that the building would 
compliment and enhance Piccadilly. Reference was made to the use and roof top 
terrace and would a sound system be installed. Members requested that a condition 
is added to ensure there is no amplified music played on the roof terrace and local 
councillors be involved in the discussions regarding conditions on the hours of 
operation, capacity of the terrace. 

The Planning Officer reported that the proposed roof terrace is a small area and 
would be used for organised events only. It would not have amplified music. The 
hours of operation would be determined in consultation environmental health 
officers.  

Decisions 

1. The Committee approve the application, subject to the conditions and reasons set 
out in the report submitted. 

2. The Committee delegate authority to the Director of Planning Building Control and 
Licensing and consultation with the Chair of the Planning Committee to determine 
conditions for the roof terrace aspects of the application relating to: capacity, 
hours of operation and playing of music.   

Page 116

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee 19 November 2020

PH/20/68 1C Ardern Road, Manchester, M8 4WN – Crumpsall Ward 

This application relates to Erection of a two-storey side extension and a single storey 
rear extension together with the installation of a front dormer, including a Velux 
window and a dormer to the rear, porch and canopy to form additional living 
accommodation. 

The Director of Planning reported that additional late information had been received 
from the applicant and objectors to the application. In view of the lateness of the 
submissions made, it was recommended that consideration of the application be 
deferred to allow officers time to properly consider the submissions.  

Decision 

The Committee deferred consideration of the application to the next meeting of the 
Committee, to allow the planning officer time to consider additional late information. 

Page 117

Item 8



 

Page 118

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee 17 December 2020

Planning and Highways Committee 

Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday, 17 December 2020

This Planning and Highways meeting was a hybrid meeting conducted in 
person and via Zoom, in accordance with the provisions of the Local 
Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local 
Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) 
Regulations 2020. 

Present: Councillor Curley (Chair) 

Councillors: Nasrin Ali, Shaukat Ali, Andrews, Y Dar, Davies, Hitchen, Kamal, 
Leech, Lovecy, Madeline Monaghan, Riasat and White 

Apologies: 
Councillors: Flanagan, Lyons and Watson 

Also Present:  
Councillors: Jeavons (ward Councillor), Johns (ward Councillor) and Stanton (ward 

Councillor) and Taylor (ward Councillor) 

PH/20/69  Supplementary Information on Applications Being Considered  

A copy of the late representations that were received in respect of applications 
(126912/FH/2020, 128191/FO/2020, 122280/FO/2019, 128018/FO/2020), since the 
agenda was issued. 

Decision 

To receive and note the late representations. 

PH/20/70 Minutes  

Decision 

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 19 November 2020 as a correct 
record, subject to the inclusion of Councillor Leech in the list of those present. 

PH/20/65  126912/FH/2020 - 1C Ardern Road, Manchester, M8 4WN - 
Crumpsall Ward

This application relates to the erection of a two-storey side extension and a single 
storey rear extension together with the installation of a front dormer, including a roof 
light and a dormer to the rear, porch and canopy to form additional living 
accommodation. 

Page 119

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee 17 December 2020

The proposal includes at ground floor level the addition of a kitchen, hallway, WC 
and morning room. The first floor includes two bedrooms and a utility room and the 
roof space includes two bedrooms and a shower room. 

The Planning Officer provided an update including drawing Members attention to the 
late representation report.  The update related to the advice that if Members agree 
with the recommendation then it will be necessary to revise the wording of condition 
9 which relates to tree protection in order to ensure an appointed tree consultant 
supervises the excavation element and ensure that adequate protection is in place to 
ensure root protection. To also include an additional condition to require and agree 
proposed levels within the rear garden. The Planning Officer also reported that 
additional correspondence had been received from a planning consultant 
representing a neighbouring occupier which claims that the advice given to 
Committee by officers within the report in relation to the assessment and conclusions 
reached on the impact of the Conservation Area is deficient and may be seriously 
and materially misleading. Reference is made to Section 72 of the Planning, Listed 
Building and Conservation Areas Act, Paragraph 193 and Paragraph 194 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. The Planning Officer advised Members that the 
Planning Service was satisfied that the relevant guidance had been fully considered 
and taken into account in the assessment and recommendation made and is 
proportionate to the scheme proposed.  

The Committee undertook a site visit to the site prior to the meeting. 

The Chair invited the objector’s spokesperson to address the committee. 

The objector’s spokesperson referred to points raised within the report and 
highlighted the negative impact the application would have the neighbouring property 
through the loss of amenity, the conservation area (history and character), street 
scene through the terracing effect of the design and impact on trees. The application 
did not provide a balanced design and the size of the development did not provide 
any public benefit with the loss of an affordable home. It was added that there was 
no necessity for a six bedroomed property.  

The Planning Officer responded to the points raised and informed the Committee 
that the application had been substantially amended since it was first submitted. The 
concerns outlined had been addressed and met national standards regarding 
conservation areas and design. A gap was introduced to the design to prevent 
terracing effect and the investment being made to the property would benefit and 
enhance the area.  

The applicant’s representative was not present at the meeting. 

The Chair invited members of the Committee to ask questions and comment of the 
application. 

A member referred to the width of the path at the side of the property and asked if it 
is sufficiently wide enough for a wheelie bin. Also, with reference to the rear garden, 
officers were asked what level the area would be.  

Page 120

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee 17 December 2020

It was reported that the width of the path had been raised with the applicant and the 
drawing submitted shows the path width is sufficiently wide for a wheelie bin. In 
response to the level of the rear garden the Committee was informed that the plan 
submitted stated that the grassy knoll would be retained. The proposed 
recommendation is that discussions would take place with the applicant and planning 
officers on the level of the garden. 

A member referred to the size of the rear extension and the potential impact on the 
adjacent property and asked officers to explain the guidance on allowing an 
extension over 3.65metres. 

The Committee was informed that the decision to agree the extension over the 
3.65metres was considered acceptable due to the proposed building having a flat 
roof and its orientation. It was explained that the national guidance allows for larger 
extensions over 4 metres, with prior approval. 

Councillor Andrews moved the recommendation to approve the application, subject 
to an amendment to Condition 9 and an additional condition relating to the rear 
garden level. Councillor Hitchen seconded the proposal.  

Decision 

The Committee approve the application, subject to the conditions and reasons set 
out in the report submitted, the amendment of Condition 9 and an additional 
condition regarding the rear garden level. 

(Councillor Monaghan did not take part in the vote on the application.) 
. 
PH/20/71  128191/FO/2020 - Land Bounded by Ashton Canal, Great 

Ancoats Street, Munday Street and Pollard Street, 
Manchester, M4 7DS - Ancoats and Beswick Ward 

This application is for the erection of five office buildings and new public realm 
comprising: 3 no. 8 storey mixed use buildings (Buildings A, D and E) comprising 
workspaces (Use Class E) together with flexible uses at ground floor (Use Class E) 
and/or theatre/bar (Sui Generis) together with a multi-use rooftop amenity area to 
Building A; and 2 no. 5 storey mixed use buildings (Buildings B and C) comprising 
workspaces (Use Class E) together with flexible uses at ground floor (Use Class E) 
and/or theatre/bar (Sui Generis); together with cycle parking, creation of pedestrian 
and cycle routes, external amenity spaces, new public realm and other associated 
engineering and infrastructure works. 

The Planning Officer provided an update, as reported in the late representations 
received. The update related to the receipt of ten letters of support for the application 
and three letters of objection. The letters received in objection raised additional 
issues relating to loss of sunlight and daylight and reference to a newt located less 
than 500metres from the site. Ward Councillor (Councillor Majid Dar) had raised 
resident’s concerns about the application and the impact it would have on the local 
community amenity and the belief that the proposal is very excessive and 

Page 121

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee 17 December 2020

overindulgent. It was reported that HS2 had no objections to the scheme subject to 
the additional detailed conditions on the implementation of the scheme.    

The Chair invited an objector to address the Committee. The objector made 
reference to the Council’s Core Strategy (Spatial Principle 6) regarding the provision 
of green infrastructure and questioned the development on valuable green space 
which is used by the local community. It was suggested that more recognition of 
changes to working behaviour should be given, in view the increase in office space 
and the ongoing increase in homebased working. Other issues were the lack of 
infrastructure for travel to the area and the number of objections received from local 
residents. Reference was made to the cost of the sale and purchase of the land 
involved in the proposal  

The applicant’s agent addressed the Committee on the application. 

Councillor Taylor (ward Councillor) addressed the Committee to voice the concerns 
of local residents and the other two ward councillors. The main concern related to 
the loss of space which is used by residents for leisure and recreation in an area with 
properties with little or no outdoor space. Concerns were raised that the loss of 
green spaces would have an adverse impact on the health and wellbeing of local 
people at a time when access to green spaces is very much valued. It was 
considered that the new green spaces proposed in the application are too small for 
the number of residents who currently use the existing space. 

The Planning Officer reported that the Core Strategy should be considered as a 
whole and not as individual parts. The planning report submitted had addressed the 
Core Strategy and the relevant policies had been referred to. The green space 
identified for the proposal does not have any status and had been earmarked for 
development for many years. The proposal is consistent with a long-term vision for 
the area of New Islington and East Manchester. The Committee were informed that 
costs attributed to the sale or purchase of land is not a material planning issue and 
should not be considered. With reference to the proposed increase in office space it 
was reported that an economic recovery plan was in place and the increase in 
residential and office accommodation were integral to the plan. Discussions with a 
cross section of businesses within the city had indicated that there is a desire to 
return to work and there is a need for good quality office accommodation. The site is 
sustainable with a tram stop close by and the location also enables other form of 
transport to be used such as cycling. In addition, the proposal will provide large scale 
employment during the construction (1200) and afterwards. 

The Chair invited the Committee to comment and asked questions. 

A member referred to the number of blocks involved in the proposal and the amount 
of green space proposed and considered this the be insufficient to replace what is 
currently there. Reference was also made to the New Islington Metrolink stop and 
whether are any conditions included for the increase of green coverage. 

The Planning Officer reported that a third of the proposed site would be used as 
green and open space and access will be opened onto the canal towpath. With 
reference to the Metrolink it was reported that HS2 may potentially result in changes 

Page 122

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee 17 December 2020

to the Metrolink network and it would be anticipated that Metrolink would be 
encouraged to provide a suitable tram stop for a popular area, such as the tram stop 
located at Castlefield. 

In welcoming the proposal, a member referred to the accessibility of the routes into 
and around the proposed buildings and the potential loss of light on green spaces 
and the current access road currently used by residents of adjacent buildings which 
may become congested.  

The Planning Officer explained to the Committee that the development design must 
take into account elements of access, green space the proposed build and the 
integration with the surroundings and the residents living there. It was reported that 
the proposal combines different routes to allow access. With reference to light on 
open spaces it was reported that an assessment was made on the impact of the 
proposed buildings on the loss of day light and it was considered that the level of 
sunlight/ daylight would be adequate in those areas of green space. The proposal 
would mean that there will be eighty less parking spaces and this would reduce the 
number of cars and congestion. It was explained that light levels to the existing 
buildings is high due to the open nature of the space. The proposal will impact on the 
amenity of the residents of the adjacent buildings however, officers did not believe 
that this was unusual in this type of development elsewhere in the city centre. 

A member asked officers why Condition 26 had been omitted and what other 
conditions would be expected as a result of HS2. 

It was reported that Condition 26 had been removed at the request of Metrolink 
which had originally requested it to be added. The input of HS2 for specific 
conditions for the scheme were for the purpose of future proofing the site for 
potential changes to the Metrolink Network as a result of HS2 to enable co-ordination 
of both schemes. 

Councillor Andrews moved the recommendation to approve the application. 
Councillor Shaukat Ali seconded the proposal.  

Decision 

The Committee approve the application, subject to the conditions and reasons set 
out in the report submitted, the removal of Condition 26 and the addition of 
Conditions relating to arrangements for HS2 developments. 

(Councillor Leech declared a prejudicial interest and took no part in the consideration 
of the application.) 

PH/20/72 122280/FO/2019 - Land Bounded by Great Ducie Street and 
Mirabel Street, Manchester, M3 1PJ - Deansgate Ward 

This application relates to an application for the erection of new mixed-use 
development to comprise of one 10 storey building fronting Mirabel Street to 
accommodate 45 no. Use Class C3 residential apartments (9 no. 1-bed studios, 27 

Page 123

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee 17 December 2020

no. 2-bed 3 person apartments and 9 no. 2-bed 4 person apartments) and 8 no. 
residential car parking spaces  at ground level and one part 10, part 14 storey 
building fronting Great Ducie Street to accommodate 84 no. Use Class C3 residential 
apartments (31 no. 1-bed 2 person apartments, 26 no. 2-bed 3 person apartments, 
18 no. 2-bed 4 person apartments and 9 no. 3-bed 5 person apartments) and 345 
sq. m of commercial floor space at ground level (flexible use Use Class A1 shop, 
Use Class A2 financial and professional services and Use Class A3 cafe/restaurant) 
together with creation of roof terrace amenity space, cycle parking, access, servicing 
and associated works following demolition of existing building 

The Planning Officer provided an update, as reported in the late representations 
received. The report referred to representations received from ward Councillors to 
object to the development for the reasons that: 
It is an overdevelopment; 
The proposed building is too tall and fails to meet the requirements of Core Strategy 
Policy EN2;    
The development would cause overlooking; 
The development does not appropriately reflect the character of the area; 
The proposal harms the setting of heritage assets; 
The development would strain local roads; 
The proposal would promote crime and anti-social behaviour; 
The proposal does not address the existing and future deficiencies in physical, social 
and green infrastructure; 
The proposal fails to meet Core Strategy Policy H8 and mixed communities (H1). 
One further objection had been received.  

The late representation report included amendments to the conditions and additional 
conditions. 

The Chair invited the objector’s spokesperson to address the Committee. The 
objector’s spokesperson referred to the area of the proposal and suggested the 
Committee visit the site. Reference was also made to the listed building on Mirabel 
Street which had not received a response from Historic England. The objector 
spokesperson stated that the responses that had been received from the developer 
on the issues raised by objectors were considered misleading and the comparisons 
given cannot be relied upon. The design of the building using a blue grey colour 
material, was not considered to be in keeping with the surrounding area which are 
predominantly red brick and would be an eyesore. Concern was expressed on the 
narrow street which is in a state of poor repair and causes access issues for vehicles 
and may result in issues for emergency vehicle access. The area suffers from 
vehicles parking on the pavement and the number of vehicle journeys would 
increase as a result of the development. There are concerns on the lack of light 
already for buildings adjacent. A request was made that if agreed the undertakings 
proposed by the applicant are taken up. 

The applicant’s agent addressed the Committee on the application. 

Councillor Davies addressed the Committee to oppose the application as a Ward 
Councillor and then left the meeting for the consideration of the application.  

Page 124

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee 17 December 2020

The Planning Officer reported the in response to points raised: the roof terrace 
element of the proposal would be carefully controlled by a condition (Condition 14). 
The location of the bin store access gates provides to best access to the premises 
and the Condition will require this is managed properly. A further condition could be 
added to the address the issue of pavement parking by installing bollards. It was 
reported that the area of the development does not hold any heritage status, 
although there are listed buildings within the vicinity. The Committee was informed 
that this is a development site and is on a major access road into the city centre. The 
Committee has also previously agreed to a seventeen-storey building in this location. 

The Chair invited the Committee to comment and ask questions. 

A member of the Committee referred to the previous 106 agreement made in 2007 
and asked officers to provide more information. Officers were also asked to clarify 
the contribution to affordable housing, although no reason has been provided on why 
no affordable housing is being provided on site. Reference was made to a condition 
being added to introduce bollards and if this would increase access and egress from 
the area. 

The Planning Officer reported that information would be provided on the details of 
the 106 agreement. The contribution for affordable housing is £615,000, as stated in 
the report. In response to the installation of bollards and the impact on access, the 
Committee was informed that accessibility or obstruction issues on the highway 
would be subject to enforcement action. The Committee was informed that the 
application had received an independent viability appraisal, that is publicly available, 
which had identified £615,000 allocation for affordable housing. 

A member referred to the provision of electric vehicle charging points and asked 
officers if additional points were required in the development, in view of the phasing 
out of new diesel and petrol cars by 2030.   

The Planning Officer referred to the sustainable location of the site which would 
reduce the need for vehicles and the need for resilience within the development to 
provide additional charging points for future use. 

Councillor Leech proposed a Mind to Refuse the application based on the lack of 
affordable housing within the application and for the reason that the application is an 
over development. The proposal was not seconded. 

Councillor Andrews moved the recommendation to be minded to approve, subject to 
an additional condition to address parking issues through the installation of 
pavement bollards to prevent pavement parking and improve vehicular access to the 
development. Councillor White seconded the proposal.  

Decisions 

The Committee is minded to approve the application, subject to a legal agreement in 
respect of a reconciliation payment of a financial contribution towards off-site 

Page 125

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee 17 December 2020

affordable housing and subject to an additional condition to address parking issues 
through the installation of pavement bollards to prevent pavement parking on Mirabel 
Street. 

(Councillor Davies declared a prejudicial interest and spoke as a ward Councillor and 
then left the meeting and took no part in the consideration of the application.) 

PH/20/73 126328/FO/2020 - Speakers House, 39 Deansgate, 
Manchester, M3 2BA - Deansgate Ward

This application relates to the erection of a 17 storey building comprising office use 
(Use Class B1a) and flexible ground floor commercial units (Use Classes A1 shop, 
A2 financial and professional services, A3 restaurant/cafe and A4 drinking 
establishment), new electricity sub-station, basement cycle parking and rooftop plant 
enclosure, together with access, servicing and associated works following demolition 
of the existing building. 

The Committee held a site visit at the proposed development site prior to the 
meeting. 

The Planning Officer did not provide any additional information to the report 
submitted. 

The Chair invited the objector’s spokesperson to address the Committee. 

The objector’s spokesperson made reference to the concerns raised to the 
application regarding the height of the structure, overlooking on existing residential 
buildings adjacent to the proposed site, loss of light and opening hours. 

The applicant’s agent addressed the Committee on the application. 

Councillor Johns (ward councillor) Addressed the Committee and opposed the 
application. 

The Planning Officer reported that the issues raised by objectors had been 
addressed within the planning report. The Committee was also informed that the 
building One Deansgate does not have special status and the impact of the 
proposed building on light and views would be no different to that of other new 
buildings within the city centre.    

The Chair invited members of the Committee to comment and ask questions. 

Members of the Committee referred to the impact of the development on the amenity 
of residents and heritage assets, conservation area, due to its location, height, scale 
and dominance of the area and indicated that they would not support the application. 

Councillor White moved a proposal to Mind to Refuse the application the reasons 
stated. The proposal was seconded by Councillor Davies. 

Page 126

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee 17 December 2020

Decision 

The Committee is Minded to Refuse the application for the reasons that the negative 
impact of the development on the amenity of residents, heritage assets, conservation 
area, due to its location, height, scale and dominance of the area. 

(Councillor Shaukat Ali left the meeting room during consideration of the application 
and took no further part in the meeting.) 

Councillor Nasrin Ali lost connection to the meeting during the consideration of the 
application and took no further part in the meeting.)  

PH/20/74 126308/FO/2020 - 2-4 Whitworth Street West, Manchester, M1 
5WX - Deansgate Ward 

This application relates to the demolition of 2 to 4 Whitworth Street West and the 
construction of a mixed-use building, comprising flexible units for retail, food and 
drink use at ground floor level with a hotel at upper storeys, together with 
associated landscaping, servicing, cycle parking and other associated 
works. 

The Planning Officer introduced the application. 

The applicant’s agent addressed the Committee on the application. 

No objector attended the meeting. 

Councillor Jeavons (ward Councillor) addressed the Committee to oppose the 
application for the reasons that the purpose as a hotel and appearance of the 
proposed building, due to poor architecture, would not fit in with the surroundings 
and the development would result in the loss of two important, although not listed, 
heritage buildings and a rise in anti-social behaviour. The Committee was also 
reminded that there are residential dwellings to the rear of the proposed building that 
would suffer a loss of amenity.  

The Planning Officer reported that a hotel would be appropriate for this area of the 
city centre. The exiting buildings on the site are not listed. The proposed building 
being offered is a high quality modern design that has been amended that would fit 
in with the surrounding area. 

The Chair invited the Committee to comment and ask questions. 

A member of Committee referred to the existing buildings, which although did not 
have architectural merit, do have historic merit and commented that the buildings in 
question could be demolished at any time.   

A member referred to the number of street trees to be included in the development 
and whether additional trees could be included. 

Page 127

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee 17 December 2020

The Planning officer informed the Committee that Historic England had been 
approached regarding the listing of the buildings which was refused. With reference 
to street trees it was reported that agreement would be reached to ensure that the 
maximum number of street trees would be included in the development. 

Councillor Andrews moved the recommendation to approve the application. 
Councillor Y Dar seconded the proposal.  

Decision 

The Committee approve the application, subject to the conditions and reasons set 
out in the report submitted. 

PH/20/75 128002/FO/2020 - One City Road, 1 City Road East, 
Manchester, M15 4PN - Deansgate Ward  

This is for a full Planning Application for demolition of existing structures on site, 
erection of one 11-storey plus basement office building (Use Class E) and one 14-
storey plus basement office building with ground floor commercial unit (Use Class E), 
landscaping, highways works, and associated works. 

The Planning Officer did not make any additional comment on the report submitted. 

The applicant’s agent addressed the Committee on the application.  

Councillor Jeavons (ward Councillor) addressed the Committee to oppose the 
application. The Committee was informed that the objector to the application had left 
the meeting. Reference was made to the objections submitted regarding the 
development and the impact on over four hundred apartments. There would be 
overlooking and overdevelopment for the area and loss of mature trees as well as 
amenity, privacy, sunlight and daylight. The Committee was asked to reject the 
application or to defer consideration to undertake a site visit. 

Councillor Davies referred to the issues raised and objections received and 
requested that in view of this it would be appropriate for the Committee to hold a site 
visit. 

Councillor Davies made a proposal for a site visit and this was seconded by 
Councillor Hitchen. 

Decision 

To agree to defer consideration of the planning application to allow a site visit to be 
carried out by the members of the Committee. 

PH/20/76 128018/FO/2020 - Jessiefield, Spath Road, Manchester, M20 
2TZ - Didsbury West Ward 

Page 128

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Planning and Highways Committee 17 December 2020

This application relates to the erection of a part three, part four storey building to 
provide 34 retirement apartments with associated communal facilities, landscaping 
and car parking following the demolition of the existing dwelling. 

The applicant’s agent addressed the Committee on the application. 

Councillor Kilpatrick (ward Councillor) addressed the Committee to object against the 
application. 

Councillor Leech addressed the Committee as a ward Councillor to object against 
the application and then left the meeting. 

Councillor Stanton (ward Councillor) addressed the Committee to object against the 
application. 
The objections received related to overdevelopment, detrimental impact on the 
character of the area, impact on highways and road safety, impact on residential 
amenity including overbearing, overlooking, loss of privacy and increase in noise 
disturbance; loss of green space, trees and associated impacts on ecology including 
bats. 

The Planning Officer reported that there were 26 parking spaces included in the 
proposal to serve the 34 units. The location of the development is within walking 
distance of transport links and is in a sustainable area. 

Members commented that the proposed application is excessive and would be an 
over development of the site and for that reason should be refused. 

Councillor Hitchen proposed that the Committee refuse the application for the reason 
that the application would be an over development. Councillor Andrews seconded 
the proposal.   

Decision 

The Committee refuse the application, for the reasons set out in the report 
submitted. 

(Councillor Leech declared a prejudicial interest and spoke as a ward Councillor and 
then left the meeting and took no part in the consideration of the application.) 

Page 129

Item 8



 

Page 130

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Personnel Committee 20 January 2021

Personnel Committee 

Minutes of the meeting held on 20 January 2021

Present: Councillor Bridges – in the Chair 

Councillors: Akbar, Craig, Leech, Murphy, Rahman, Richards, Sharif-Mahamad, 
Sheikh and Stogia 

Apologies: Councillors Leese and Ollerhead

PE/21/01 Appointment of a Chair for the meeting 

In the absence of the Chair the committee appointed a member to chair the meeting. 

Decision 

To appoint Councillor Bridges as Chair for the meeting. 

PE/21/02 Minutes of the previous meeting 

Decision 

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 11 November 2020 as a correct 
record. 

PE/21/03 Revised Employee Code of Conduct, the Smoking and Vaping 
Policy and Digital Media Policy 

The Committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 
and the City Solicitor which presented new revised employment policies in respect of 
the revised Employee Code of Conduct, the Smoking and Vaping Policy (previously 
known as the Tobacco Control Policy) and the Digital Media Policy (previously known 
as the Social Media Policy). 

The Committee had been asked to give its approval the of the new policies, all of 
which were attached as an appendix and was invited to note the reports would also 
be considered by the Council’s Constitution and Nominations Committee prior to 
submission to the full Council meeting on 3 February 2021. 

The Director of Human Resources and Organisational Development introduced the 
report, setting out the scope and purpose of the Code. The reasons for review where 
also set out - these were largely attributed to alignment with current legislation and 
improvements of governance arrangements that had been highlighted by internal and 
external audit. The review had also provided an opportunity to align the policies with 
Our Manchester behaviours, Nolan Principles and the values that guide the 
organisation. 

Page 131

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Personnel Committee 20 January 2021

No Trades Union comments were submitted for consideration and the Committee 
agreed the recommendations. 

Decision 

To approve the Digital Media and Smoking and Vaping Policy, and to commend the 
revised Employee Code of Conduct to Council at its meeting on 3 February 2021.

PE/21/04 Kickstart Scheme 

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Human Resources and 
Organisational Development which discussed the recently launched government 
(Kickstart) scheme, aimed at Universal Credit claimants aged 16- 24 years who had 
been identified as at risk of long-term unemployment. The intention was for the 
Authority to create placements under the scheme to provide opportunities to build 
workplace skills and experience and improve chances of securing long-term 
employment. A collaborative approach would be fostered with partners such as 
Department for Work and Pension and The Growth Company to fully implement the 
scheme.

Reference was made to recent work undertaken by the City Council to identify issues 
relating to race equality in the organisation as well as workforce equality generally. 
The outcome of this work being a renewed commitment to developing a workforce 
that reflects the rich diversity of the city. 

The Committee noted that It is the intention of the Authority to pay all young people 
who are offered a placement, the Manchester Living Wage. The anticipated costs of 
the scheme were therefore provided with a caveat that actual costs would ultimately 
be dependent on the age profile of those taking up placements. It was explained that 
the budget for the operation of the scheme was already within the 2021/22 budget 
proposals being developed by the Executive.  

The Committee welcomed Manchester’s proposed approach. It was accepted that 
the number of positions the Council would initially be able to offer was constrained. 
However, the Committee hoped that in time this scheme would be developed and 
expanded to offer more younger people these opportunities. The committee also 
welcomed the example the Council’s participation in this scheme would set to other 
employers in the city, and hoped that other would now follow this lead. The 
recommendations in the report were agreed.  

Decision 

1. To endorse Manchester City Council’s approach to implementing the Kickstart 
scheme across the organisation. 

2. To welcome the Authority’s commitment to fund each Kickstart placement to 
the Manchester Living Wage level.

Page 132

Item 8



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Personnel Committee 20 January 2021

PE/21/05 Chief Executive’s Senior Management Arrangements 

The Committee considered a report of the City Solicitor which sought approval to 
regrade the position of Head of Electoral Services and to re-designate and regrade 
the position of Registration and Coroners Service Manager to Head of Registration 
and Coroners. The proposed change in grades reflected the increase in 
responsibilities. A full breakdown of the key responsibilities of each respective role 
was provided for the Committee to consider. 

As part of the consideration of the re-designation and regrade of the post of 
Registration and Coroners Service Manager, members noted the change in the roles 
and responsibilities of the post and the way those responsibilities were linked to other 
changes in the role and work of the Coroner.  

With regard to the post of Head of Electoral Services, the Committee accepted the 
growing strategic responsibilities of the role for the city and that the city itself now 
represented one of the largest and most complex metropolitan services in the 
country. The Committee also took into consideration the frequency with which the 
service had been required to deliver numerous, consecutive elections prior to 
COVID-19 pandemic. 

Having supported the specific proposals for these two posts, the Committee also felt 
that future proposals for regrading and resignations of senior posts would benefit 
from being supported by more information on the wider reorganisation and re-
evaluations that had also been undertaken within a particular section or department. 
Officers were requested to consider how best that could be achieved.  

No Trades Union comments were submitted for consideration. The Committee 
therefore agreed the recommendations. 

Decisions 

1. To approve the regrade of the Head of Electoral Services from Grade 12 
(52,716 - £56,178) to SS1 (£62,531 - £67,676) 

2. To approve the re-designation of Registration and Coroners Service Manager 
to Head of Registrars & Coroners with a salary regrade from Grade 12 (52,716 
- £56,178) to SS1 (£62,531 - £67,676) 

Page 133

Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Manchester City Council 
Report for Resolution 

 
Report to: Constitutional and Nomination Committee – 2 February 2021 

Council – 3 February 2021 
 
Subject  Constitution of the Council 
 
Report of:  City Solicitor 
 

 
Summary 
 
To enable the Constitutional and Nomination Committee to consider and the Council 
to adopt proposed amendments to the Constitution of the Council.  
 
Recommendation – Constitutional and Nomination Committee  
 
The Constitutional and Nomination Committee is requested to note and recommend 
that the Council agree the recommendations below. 
 
Recommendations – Council  
 
The Council is requested to:  
 
1. Adopt, subject to recommendation 5 below, the attached revised Sections of the 

Constitution of the Council, namely:  
 

a) Part 2 
b) Part 3: Sections, C and F 
c) Part 4: Sections A, B, C and F  
d) Part 5: Sections C, D and E 
e) Part 6: Sections B, C and E  
f) Part 8 

 
2. Make consequential and ancillary changes to other Parts of the Constitution to 

align with the changes set out in this report. 
 

3. Amend Part 4: Section E as detailed at Paragraph 4.5. below. 
 

4. Readopt the remainder of the Constitution  
 

5. Note in relation to Part 3 of the Constitution that responsibility for the discharge of 
executive functions and the delegation of such responsibility rests with the Leader 
of the Council and that the recommended delegations of executive functions set 
out in Part 3 (Sections A and F) are for the information of the Council only. 

 

 
Wards Affected: All 
 

Page 135

Item 9



Financial Consequences – Revenue 
None 
 
Financial Consequences - Capital 
None 
 

 
Contact Officers: 
 
Name:  Fiona Ledden 
Position: City Solicitor 
Telephone: 0161 234 3087 
E-mail: fiona.ledden@manchester.gov.uk 
 
Name:  Poornima Karkera 
Position: Head of Governance, Legal Services  
Telephone: 0161 234 3719 
E-mail: poornima.karkera@manchester.gov.uk 
 
Background Documents (available for public inspection): 
 
The following documents disclose important facts on which the report is based and 
have been relied upon in preparing the report. Copies of the background documents 
are available up to 4 years after the date of the meeting. If you would like a copy 
please contact one of the contact officers above. 
 
Constitution of the Council – as amended in October 2019 

 
 

 
  

Page 136

Item 9



Background 
 
1.1 Section 9P of the Local Government Act 2000, requires the Council to prepare 

and keep up-to-date a Constitution. The City Solicitor is required to monitor 
and review the operation of the Constitution on an on-going basis and, where 
necessary, bring forward amendments to the Council. The City Solicitor is, 
under Article 15 of the Constitution, also authorised to make minor changes to 
the Constitution provided that they do not materially affect the Constitution. 
 

1.2 Our Transformation is the Council’s transformation programme which aims to 
more closely align internally focused ways of working with the Our Manchester 
approach and behaviours. The annual review of the constitution this year has 
where possible been informed and influenced by the Our Transformation 
aspirations and a number of changes are proposed that would both more 
closely align how we work with Our Manchester behaviours and simplify and 
clarify respective roles and responsibilities. 

 

1.3 The proposed changes fall primarily into the following categories – changes to 
substantive content and changes to format and style to aide accessibility and 
to increase clarity. 

 

1.4 The Director of HR and OD has identified that there are opportunities to 
enable Personnel Committee in particular to align its focus and capacity with 
strategic and significant workforce issues that relate to the council’s statutory 
duties or that impact across the organisation. Equally the Director of HR and 
OD is of the view that there are opportunities to delegate more operational 
staff-related decision making to senior officers with the right level of 
accountability and appropriate checks and balances. These proposals are 
highlighted in more detail at paragraph 3.4 below 
 

1.5 This report details certain matters that have arisen since the Council 
considered the full review of the Constitution set out in the City Solicitor’s 
report to the Council meeting on 2 October 2019. Attached to this report, and 
summarised below, are revised versions of certain sections of the Constitution 
that the City Solicitor brings forward for approval. New wording appears in bold 
text in the attached revised sections. 
 

1.6 It should be noted that under the Leader and Cabinet form of executive 
governance, responsibility for the delegation of executive functions, including 
those local choice functions which the Council has designated as executive 
functions, does not rest with the Council, but is the responsibility of the Leader. 
The Leader may determine to exercise executive functions personally or to 
delegate their discharge to the Executive, a Committee of the Executive, an 
Executive Member, an area committee or an officer of the Council (without 
prejudice to the Leader’s ability to exercise such functions personally). 
Consequently, the recommended delegations of executive functions set out in 
Part 3: Sections A and F of the Constitution are for the purpose of information 
only; recommended delegations of non-executive functions set out in those 
sections remain, however, a matter for the Council. 

 

Page 137

Item 9



 
Part 2 of the Constitution – Articles 
 
2.1 A minor change is proposed to insert additional wording to Article 12(5), to 

reflect the duty of the Council under Section 4(1) (b) of the Local Government 
and Housing Act 1989 to provide the Head of Paid Service with sufficient staff, 
accommodation and other resources to align this Article with the wording of 
the relevant statutory provision more closely. The Restriction of Public Sector 
Exit Payments Regulations 2020 introduce a general cap of £95,000 on exit 
payments made to staff in the public sector. In limited circumstances the 
Council will be able to relax this cap, but such a decision must be made at a 
meeting of Full Council and is subject to the consent of the Treasury or acting 
in compliance with directions given by the Treasury. As a result, an 
amendment is proposed to the list contained in Article 4.2 of the Constitution 
of functions reserved to Full Council. 

 
Part 3 of the Constitution – Responsibility for Functions 

 
3.1 A number of changes are proposed to: 
 

 Section C (“Council (Non-Executive) Functions”); and 

 Section F (“Scheme of Delegation to Officers”) 
 

of Part 3 (“Responsibility for Functions”) of the Constitution 
 

3.2 A new delegation (18) has been added to the Licensing and Appeals 
Committee and the Director of Planning, Building Control and Licensing, in 
Part 3 Section C, in relation to pavement licences functions to reflect the new 
streamlined procedure under the Business and Planning Act 2020 enabling 
businesses serving food or drink to apply for a temporary pavement licence. 
 

3.3 In Part 3 Section C Delegation number 4, to the Constitutional and Nomination 
Committee and to the Chief Executive, in relation to European Parliamentary 
elections has been deleted. 
 

3.4 In Part 3 Section C the following amendments are proposed to the Personnel 
Committee delegations. A copy of the currently worded delegations and the 
proposed delegations are attached at Appendices A and B for ease of 
reference. References to numbered delegations relate to existing delegations. 
The majority of the substantive changes are proposed by the Director of HR 
and OD for the reasons indicated at paragraph 1.4 above: 
 
a) Delegations 1 & 3 - To correct an anomaly in appointment requirements 

for Deputy Chief Officers it is proposed that the reference to 
“designated” Deputy Chief Officers is removed here and where it 
appears elsewhere in the Constitution (for example references in the 
Officer Employment Procedure Rules (OEPR) in Part 4, Section F). The 
effect of a particular Deputy Chief Officer post being “designated” is that 
certain procedural appointment requirements that usually only apply to 
the appointment of Statutory Chief Officers are engaged, instead of the 

Page 138

Item 9



usual appointment requirements for Deputy Chief Officer posts. No 
Deputy Chief Officer post has been “designated” for many years and 
the Director of HR and OD has indicated it is unclear in what 
circumstances this would ever happen.  
 

b) Delegations 4 & 5 –The proposal is to clarify the Committee’s role in 
determining major changes to workforce strategy or major changes to 
terms and conditions and major organisational reviews. The 
amendment is proposed by the Director of HR and OD to support the 
Committee to focus attention and capacity on major changes and to 
enable minor changes to be made at the appropriate level by officers. 
 

c) Delegations 7 to 9 - The Director of HR and OD proposes that these 
items: 

 

  market rate supplements above Grade 12; 
 

  assignment and regrading of posts above Grade 12 and less than 
100K;  

 

 honoraria exceeding 12 months above Grade 12, 
 

are delegated to Chief Officers (and other Officers listed in the Scheme 
as having General HR delegations) provided they can be 
accommodated within existing budgets. This would mean that members 
would no longer have involvement in such decisions  
 
The Director of HR and OD proposes checks and balances would 
ensure probity and fairness, for example such decisions would be in line 
with existing job evaluation and other policies, and the exercise by 
officers of these delegated functions would be subject to consultation 
with the Director of HR and OD. The Personnel Committee would 
continue to be involved in the establishment and regrading of posts at 
£100k or more given the requirement to go to full Council. The Director 
of HR and OD‘s reasons for these proposals are to empower Chief 
Officers to make decisions about capacity required to deliver priorities.  

 
d) Delegation 10 – The proposal is to remove this delegation 

(concerning scheme of allowance payments above £10K to 
employees injured at work) as, in the view of the Director of HR 
and OD this is normally a Chief Officer function. It is proposed as 
a consequential measure to remove the £10K ceiling from the 
City Solicitor’s delegation for the making of such payments 
accordingly  

 
e) Delegation 12 – It is proposed to amend this delegation to clarify the 

Committee’s role of providing input in the case of a major dispute. The 
proposed amendment will reflect current practice that the employer’s 
side of any local joint committee will consist of officers. 

 

Page 139

Item 9



f) Delegation 13 – It is proposed the wording is expanded slightly to cover 
making recommendations on all statutory statements relating to staffing 
(not just the pay policy statement). 

 
g) Delegation 14 – A slight amendment is proposed so that only newly 

established or upwardly regraded posts whose salary would be £100K 
and over would need to go before full Council. There would be no need 
to take a post to Personnel Committee or full Council if the salary for an 
existing post exceeded £100K simply because of the annual pay award 
or where a post was regraded downwards (but the salary remained 
above £100K) because it would be within previously agreed 
arrangements. 

 
i) Delegation 15 – 17 – relate to coroner recruitment. The delegations 

have been slightly amended to reflect the current position that the 
Personnel Committee makes recommendations to Council (or to the 
City Solicitor acting under delegated powers). The proposed 
amendment also clarifies that recommendations are subject to any 
order made by Lord Chancellor regarding the number of assistant 
coroners. 

 
j) Delegation 18 – This delegation relates to agreements for placing staff 

at the disposal of other Councils. It is proposed to delete this delegation 
as it duplicates an existing delegation to the Chief Executive. 

 
3.5 A review of the Scheme of Delegations to Officers (Part 3, Section F of the 

Constitution) has been undertaken to consider whether: 
 

a) there are any Council functions (new or pre-existing), that it would be 
appropriate to delegate to officers via the Scheme; 

b) there are any currently delegated functions that need to be transferred 
from one officer to another (e.g. because of a service redesign); 

c) there are any currently listed delegated functions that should be deleted 
(e.g. because the function is no longer a function of the Council); 

d) the scheme should otherwise be reworded (e.g. to improve clarity). 
 
3.6 In addition to the above, in this year’s review there has been focus on 

streamlining, rationalising and simplifying the Scheme of Delegation to 
Officers, where appropriate, and reducing the level of granularity as part of the 
Our Transformation Agenda. The approach adopted has been to remove 
repetition and the granular listing of specific items where an existing broad 
delegation is considered adequate and to merge items where appropriate. 
Granular listings for non-Executive functions have in the main been retained 
as these align with wording in regulations and their retention assists in relation 
to enforcement and regulatory matters and maintains clarity on which 
functions are non-executive given publication and other requirements flow 
from this distinction.  
 

3.7 Consequential changes have been made to the Scheme of Delegation to 
reflect changes proposed to the delegations of the Personnel Committee. 

Page 140

Item 9



 
 
Part 4 – Rules of Procedure 
 
4.1 Minor changes are proposed to the Council Procedure Rules (Part 4 Section 

A) to change the reference to ‘Town Hall’ to ‘Council Offices’ and to reflect the 
recent practice that the review of the Council’s Constitution is not automatically 
considered at the Council’s Annual meeting. 

 
4.2 Rule 31.4 of the Council Procedure Rules is amended to clarify that, when 

granted under the category of Outstanding Contribution to Manchester, The 
City of Manchester Award may be made to individuals or organisations that 
have previously lived, worked or studied in the city, as well as to individuals or 
organisations that at the time of the award live, work or study in the city. 

 
4.3 It is proposed that an additional Rule 25A be added to the Access to 

Information Procedure Rules (Part 4 Section B) to align the wording more 
closely with the relevant legislation.  

 
4.4 It is proposed to amend the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules 

(Part 4 Section C) to reflect the changes to virement thresholds and approval 
for use of reserves requested by the Deputy Chief Executive and City 
Treasurer and set out in Part 5 below. 

 
4.5 It is proposed that the reference to “The Chief Executive of the Skills Funding 

Agency” is deleted from Rule 8A.1 of the Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Part 4 
Section E). This is to reflect a change in the list of relevant partner authorities 
contained in section 104 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in 
Heath Act 2007. 

 
4.6  The Director of HR and OD proposes that the Officer Employment Procedure 

Rules (Part 4 Section F) should be amended so that In relation to Deputy 
Chief Officer posts the relevant Chief Officer will determine whether 
appointments to such posts should be made by an officer in consultation with 
an all officer panel or an officer in consultation with a mixed panel of officers 
and members. It is considered this streamlining would support the intention of 
supporting the committee to focus at an appropriate level. 

 
Part 5 – Financial Procedures  
 
5.1 The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer has proposed that Section C 

(Policies, Risk Management and External Arrangements) of the Council’s 
Financial Procedures in Part 5 of the Constitution be amended by deleting 
reference to trading operations because the Deputy because it appeared to 
relate to old direct labour / service organisations. Profit targets are no longer 
set for these organisations.  

 
5.2 The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer recommends some specific 

changes to thresholds in Part 5 of the Constitution including for the use of 
reserves and virements:  

Page 141

Item 9



 At present unless the planned use of a reserve is specifically included in 
the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP), any change over an 
aggregate of £2m requires full Council approval. Given that reserves are 
held to support capital projects where the spend profile is often uncertain, 
to smooth investment over a number of financial years or are required 
where external funding is used over more than one financial year, this is 
resulting in a significant number of recommendations to Council. With the 
use of reserves likely to increase to mitigate the impact of covid-19 has to 
be mitigated then some changes to this process are required. 

  Recommends a removal of some of the double decision making around 
capital spend. For example, if a programme of funding is approved for 
special school provision this is approved by Council. Once the funding 
requirements for individual schools within that programme are identified 
Council approval is required again to vire the funding. 

 Proposes a review of virement limits so that only virements over £500k 
which are between Directorates or are in support of a policy change which 
is different to when the MTFP and Business Plan were agreed or for capital 
changes of £1m or above would go to full Council. Virements will continue 
to be reported to Executive as now. In reality budgets should be updated to 
ensure they best reflect the agreed council priorities being delivered and 
budget holders should have the responsibility to ensure that this is carried 
out.  

 
5.3  In addition, some minor changes are proposed to Parts C and D for the 

purposes of clarity. 
 
5.4 The Contract Procurement Rules in Part 5, Section E have been updated to 

replace references to “EU Procedure” with “Statutory Procedure” to reflect the 
UK’s departure from EU. 

 
Part 6 – Codes and Protocols 
 
6.1 Minor changes are proposed to the Planning Protocol for Members and 

Officers in Part 6, Section B for the purposes of clarity. 
 
6.2 The Use of Council Resources Guidance for Members (Part 6 Section C) is 

proposed to be updated to reflect the current position that in addition to a 
mobile phone members will be provided with such IT equipment as the 
Director of ICT considers appropriate to enable them to undertake their 
Council duties. In addition, it is proposed to amend reference to the “Transport 
for Greater Manchester Committee” to read “The Greater Manchester 
Transport Committee” to accurately reflect the name of this joint committee 

 
6.3 The proposed refreshed Code of Conduct for Officers as considered and 

reviewed by the Personnel Committee at its last meeting is attached as this 
forms Part 6 Section E of the Council’s constitution. 

 
Part 8 of the Constitution – Management Structure 
 

Page 142

Item 9



7.1 It is proposed that amendments are made to the management structure set 
out in Part 8 of the constitution to reflect changes to the senior management 
structure and the realignment of senior management portfolios. The role title of 
the Head of Commissioning & Delivery has been amended to read ‘Director of 
Commercial and Operations’ to reflect a change made in-year. Similarly 
references to the ‘Director of HROD’ are changed to ‘Director of HR and OD’ 
throughout to reflect the role remit and for consistency. Any references to 
these roles elsewhere in the Constitution will be amended accordingly. 

 
Recommendations 
 
8. The recommendations appear at the beginning of this report. 
 
 
  

Page 143

Item 9



Appendix A – Personnel Committee, Current Delegations 
 

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 
 
1. To establish at the appropriate time panels of members as a sub-committee to 

act as appointment panels for the appointment of the Chief Executive, Chief 
Officers (except where the Chief Executive exercises his delegation to appoint 
Non-Statutory Chief Officers (as defined in the Officer Employment Procedure 
Rules)) and designated Deputy Chief Officers. 

 
2. To establish at the appropriate time two sub-committees to act as an 

investigating and disciplinary committee and an appeals committee in relation to 
disciplinary proceedings against the Chief Executive, the Monitoring Officer and 
the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer. 

 

3. To determine which Deputy Chief Officer posts should be designated to be 
appointed by a panel of members. 

 
4. To determine collective and corporate terms and conditions of staff. 

 
5. To consider major Staffing and Organisational Reviews. 

 
6. To provide the Head of Paid Service, the Monitoring Officer and the Chief 

Finance Officer with such staff as are in their opinion sufficient to allow their 
statutory duties to be performed. 

 
7. To determine "market rates" supplements for posts above SCP 51. 

 
8. To determine the assignment and re-grading of posts: 
 

 above SCP51 (Grade 12) and below £100,000 p.a.; or 
 up to and including SCP51 (Grade 12) where there is disagreement 

between the Chief Executive and the relevant Chief Officer, or where the 
Chief Executive considers that the matter has corporate significance. 

 
9. To determine the payment of honoraria exceeding 12 months duration in 

respect of posts above Grade 12. 
 

10. To determine claims arising under the Scheme of Allowances for employees 
injured in the course of their employment above £10,000. 

 
11. To determine policies relating to local government pensions and discretionary 

compensation for early termination of employment. 
 

12. To constitute the Employers’ side of any Local Joint Committee with the relevant 
trade unions. 

 
13. To make recommendations to Council in relation to the annual Pay Policy 

Statement and any amendments to such statement. 
 

Page 144

Item 9



14. To make recommendations to Council in relation to decisions affecting the 
remuneration of any post whose remuneration is or is proposed to be or would 
become £100,000 p.a. or more and in relation to proposed severance packages 
with a value of £100,000 or more. 

 
15. To make recommendations to Council in relation to the appointment of the 

senior coroner for the coroner area of Manchester (City) and to make 
recommendations to Council in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 15 
of Schedule 3 to the Coroners and Justice Act 2009 in relation to agreeing the 
salary to be paid to the senior coroner where the salary is or is proposed to be 
or would become £100,000 p.a. or more. 

 
16. To determine whether the Council should appoint an area coroner for the 

coroner area of Manchester (City), and to determine the number assistant 
coroners to be appointed for the coroner area of Manchester (City); 

 
17. To agree in accordance with the provisions of paragraphs 16 and 17 of 

Schedule 3 to the Coroners and Justice Act 2009: 
 

 the salary to be paid to any area coroner; and 

 the amount of the fees to be paid to any assistant coroners. 
 
18. The making of agreements with other local authorities for the placing of staff at 

the disposal of those other authorities. 

 
Delegation 
 
In exercising the above powers and responsibilities, the Committee shall have 
delegated power (subject to Council Procedure Rule 9 – Reference to Council of 
decisions taken under Delegated Powers) to make decisions on behalf of the 
Council, except in relation to delegations 12 - 14 or any matter where: 
 
(a) the Head of the Paid Service determines the matter should be considered by full 

Council, or 
 
(b) the Council has resolved to determine the matter. 

 
Note: The Committee may itself determine not to exercise its delegated powers and 
instead make recommendations to Council. 
 
  

Page 145

Item 9



Appendix B – Personnel Committee, Proposed Delegations 
 

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 
 
1. To establish at the appropriate time panels of members as a sub-committee to 

act as appointment panels for the appointment of the Chief Executive and Chief 
Officers (except where the Chief Executive exercises delegated powers to 
appoint Non-Statutory Chief Officers (as defined in the Officer Employment 
Procedure Rules)). 

 
2. To establish at the appropriate time two sub-committees to act as an 

investigating and disciplinary committee and an appeals committee in relation to 
disciplinary proceedings against the Head of Paid Service, the Monitoring 
Officer and the Chief Finance Officer. 

 
3. To determine major changes to workforce strategy and major changes to 

terms and conditions. 
 

4. To consider major Organisational Reviews. 
 

5. To provide the Head of Paid Service, the Monitoring Officer and the Chief 
Finance Officer with such staff as are in the opinion of those officers sufficient 
to allow their statutory duties to be performed, where there is a specific 
statutory duty on the Council to make such provision. 

 
6. To determine policies relating to local government pensions and discretionary 

compensation for early termination of employment. 
 

7. To provide input, alongside the officers constituting the Employers’ side of 
any Local Joint Committee with the relevant trade unions, in the event of a 
major dispute. 

 
8. To make recommendations to Council in relation to the annual Pay Policy 

Statement, other statutory statements relating to staffing, and any 
amendments to such statements. 

 
9. To make recommendations to Council in relation to decisions affecting the 

remuneration of any newly established or upwardly regraded post whose 
remuneration is or is proposed to be or would become £100,000 p.a. or more 
and in relation to proposed severance packages with a value of £100,000 or 
more. 

 
10. To make recommendations to Council (or to the City Solicitor acting under 

delegated powers) in relation to the appointment of the senior coroner for the 
coroner area of Manchester (City) and to make recommendations to Council in 
accordance with the provisions of paragraph 15 of Schedule 3 to the Coroners 
and Justice Act 2009 in relation to agreeing the salary to be paid to the senior 
coroner or any area coroner where the salary is or is proposed to be or would 
become £100,000 p.a. or more. 

 

Page 146

Item 9



11. Insofar as is compatible with any order made by the Lord Chancellor 
under Paragraph 2 of Schedule 3 to the Coroners and Justice Act 2009 to 
recommend whether the Council (or the City Solicitor acting under 
delegated powers) should appoint an area coroner for the coroner area of 
Manchester (City), and to recommend the number assistant coroners to be 
appointed by the Council (or the City Solicitor acting under delegated 
powers) for the coroner area of Manchester (City); 

 
12. To make recommendations to the Council (or to the City Solicitor acting 

under delegated powers) in relation to: 
 

 the salary to be paid to any area coroner (except in respect of where the 
salary is or is proposed to be or would become £100,000 p.a. or more, 
in which case any recommendation should instead be made to 
Council in accordance with delegation 9 above); and 

 the amount of the fees to be paid to any assistant coroners, 
 

in accordance with the provisions of paragraphs 16 and 17 of Schedule 3 
to the Coroners and Justice Act 2009 

 
Delegation 
 
In exercising the above powers and responsibilities, the Committee shall have 
delegated power (subject to Council Procedure Rule 9 – Reference to Council of 
decisions taken under Delegated Powers) to make decisions on behalf of the 
Council, except in relation to delegations 8 - 12 or any matter where: 
 
(a) the Head of the Paid Service determines the matter should be considered by full 

Council, or 
 
(b) the Council has resolved to determine the matter. 

 
Note: The Committee may itself determine not to exercise its delegated powers and 
instead make recommendations to Council. 
 

Page 147

Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Manchester City Council 
Report for Information 

 
Report to: Council – 3 February 2021 
 
Subject:  Urgent Key Decisions 
 
Report of:  City Solicitor 
 

 
Purpose of report 
 
To report those key decisions that have been taken in accordance with the urgency 
provisions in the Council’s Constitution. 
 
Recommendation 
 
To note the report. 
 

 
Wards affected: All 
 

 
Financial consequences for the Revenue budget 
 
None 
 
Financial consequences for the Capital Budget 
 
None 
 
Implications for: 
 
 

Antipoverty Equal Opportunities Environment Employment 
No No No No 

 

 
Contact officers: 
 
Fiona Ledden 
City Solicitor  
0161 234 3087 
f.ledden@manchester.gov.uk 
 
Donna Barnes 
Governance Officer 
0161 234 3037 
d.barnes@manchester.gov.uk 

Page 149

Item 10



 

 
Background documents: 
 
None. 

Page 150

Item 10



 

1. Background 
 
1.1 The Constitution (Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules) establishes a 

procedure for dealing with key decisions where action needs to be taken 
immediately for reasons of urgency and is therefore not subject to the normal 
call in arrangements. 

 
1.2 The procedures states that the chair of the appropriate scrutiny committee 

must agree that both the decision proposed is reasonable in all the 
circumstances, and to it being treated as a matter of urgency. 

 
2. Such decisions are to be reported to the Council.  

Page 151

Item 10



 

 
3. Urgent Key Decisions taken since the last meeting of Council 
 
3.1 A list of key decisions requiring exemption from the call in procedure that have been taken since the last meeting of Council 

is listed below. 
 

Date Subject Reason for urgency Decision Taken 
by 

Approved by 
 

2 December 
2020 

COVID winter 
grants for food 
provision 

The Council were only formally notified of the grant 
allocation on 10/11/20 and full guidance on this was 
published on 25/11/20.  An urgent decision is required 
due to the tight timescales to meet the ambition of 
providing support over Christmas break for c41,000 
children and young people who would normally access 
food at school/setting or college during term time. This 
will involve the commissioning and procurement of a 
significant number of food vouchers from key 
supermarkets to provide a reach across the city.  The 
timescale from procurement to distribution which will 
be via schools is exceptionally tight in order to reach 
vulnerable families by end of school term (18/12/20).  
 
A delay will compromise the Council’s legal position by 
not meeting the expectations in the grant conditions 
and not support vulnerable families.  This may lead to 
a surplus which would be returned to central 
government  

The Executive Cllr Stone (Chair 
of Children and 
Young Peoples 
Scrutiny 
Committee) 

22 January 
2021 

Determine the 
Council Tax 
element of the 
estimated 
Collection Fund 

The calculation of the estimated surplus or deficit uses 
the most up to date information (i.e. end of December 
2020) which is not available until the end of the first 
week in January. Due to the statutory requirement to 
notify precepting authorities in January 2021 it is 

Deputy Chief 
Executive and 
City Treasurer 

Cllr Russell (Chair 
of Resources and 
Governance 
Scrutiny 
Committee) 

P
age 152

Item
 10



 

2020/21 year-end 
surplus or 
deficit  

requested the decision is exempt from call in. 
Following a report to Resources and Governance 
Scrutiny Committee on 1 December 2020 the Chair of 
the committee has agreed to exempt this decision from 
call in 

 

P
age 153

Item
 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Proceedings of the Executive
	7 Scrutiny Committees
	8 Proceedings of Committees
	9 The Council Constitution
	10 Key Decisions Report

